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Financial Highlights
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F % Change
or the year ended December 31, 2022 For the year ended December 31, 2021
BE-Z--F+-A=+—BILEE BE-Z-—F+-A=+—BILEE BOLLEE
REVENUE ¥ &

19,957,19

RMB Thousand AR #F 7T

GROSS PROFIT £

7,023,954

RMB Thousand AR#F 7T

GROSS PROFIT MA

35.2%

percentage point {B & 2 B

EBITDA HIERFI B -

4,777,240

RMB Thousand AR¥F 5t

NET PROFIT #t#

2,990,088

RMB Thousand AR¥ T T

NET PROFIT MARG

15.0%

percentage point {B & 2 2

EARNINGS PER SH

0-22 RMB AR¥ 7T
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Five-Year Financial Summary

I FMFHHEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EE¥E - BEREE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
I B TZITF B-NAEFE ZTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥ETT AERETT AERETRT ARETT
REVENUE & 19,957,199 22,294,000 20,961,708 21,375,248 20,863,557
Cost of sales P E R -12,933,245 14,138,394 -12,720,812 -12,883,785 -12,812,816
Gross profit EF 7,023,954 8,155,606 8,240,896 8,491,463 8,050,741
Other income and gains EHg AR Uk & 1,451,152 1,428,745 1,036,617 886,733 649,339

Selling, distribution and HE ~ KIH R

administrative expenses THEX -4,283,991 -4512,431 -4,161,329 -4,230,482 -3,949,250
Finance costs EhE AN -127,352 -86,241 -9,574 -1,413 -

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM B EETEH
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  BRIRATIEF 4,063,763 4,985,679 5,106,610 5,146,301 4,750,830
Income tax expense Fri8Mps -1,073,675 -1,260,454 -1,257,957 -1,305,730 -1,033,469

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM  FFEBASE LM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS il 2,990,088 3,725,225 3,848,653 3,840,571 3,717,361
Profit attributable to: BUR A LFELS -

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ=DN 2,990,088 3,725,225 3,848,653 3,840,571 3,717,361
Total assets BEEMAE 27,003,384 27,405,454 22,710,756 19,947,612 18245489
Total liabilities B(E4ERE 8,309,376 8,169,430 5,245,320 3,670,986 2,830,819
Total equity RETS4E %R 18,694,008 19,236,024  17,465436 16276626  15414,670

ENEREEARAT | £k 2022 5
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRSES

Dear shareholders,

In 2022, the external environment has become more complex and severe due
to the combined effect of international geopolitical conflicts and epidemic
factors. Although the consumption scenarios have gradually recovered in an
orderly manner with the optimization and implementation of the epidemic
prevention and control policies, uncertainties remain in the short term and
consumer spending tends to be rational. In this challenging environment, the
Group continued to promote industrial upgrading, brand innovation and
channel construction, and its multi-category business portfolio showed full
resilience. During the year, the Group realized revenue of RMB19.96 billion.
With the fundamentals remaining positive in the long run, the steady increase
of residents’ income, and the expansion of innovative consumption scenarios
in China, the consumption structure will continue to be optimized and
upgraded.

Snack food segment remains the largest contributor to revenue. With a deep
and wide channel network and an extensive product portfolio, the Group has
built up a strong competitive barrier, with the number one Chinese brand in its
sub-segment, Daliyuan, and the number one national brands, Copico and
Haochidian, in their respective sub-segments. As a leading Chinese enterprise
in the industry, we always adhere to the principle of “Quality with Heart” and
provide consumers with healthy, nutritious, quality, and delicious food. In
2022, staying abreast of the market trends towards healthy and quality food as
well as younger consumers, we kept launching a variety of new products in the
snack food segment and upgrading our brand image. Meanwhile, we
strengthened our control of channels and the construction of a professional
retail team. By optimizing the profit distribution mechanism with distributors
which has enhanced their motivation, we have established long-term win-win
relationships to make sure that the launch of new products can efficiently
reach a wide range of consumer groups.

We continued to develop the scenario of convenient breakfast in the
household consumption segment. Thanks to the increasing consumer
demand for convenient breakfast boosted by the consumption upgrade in the
post-epidemic era, the soy milk and short shelf-life bread business has been
on the rise, accounting for 18.6% of the Group’s total sales. Doubendou has
maintained its No.1 position in the industry since 2021 with consistently
increasing market share, and driven the industry expansion by promoting the
dietary philosophy of green and healthy plant-based products through
continuous market education. At the same time, the product portfolio of
Doubendou was further enriched. With constant refinement of the
development process, Doubendou has expanded the organic whole soy milk
product category into new organic series including organic whole soy milk,
organic pure soy milk, and organic black soy milk, to establish a high-end and
healthy brand image. Meibeichen has established a solid nationwide
infrastructure with increasing depth and breadth of outlets, covering 150
thousand retail shops, based on which the sales quality has been
consolidating.

SHAEARE

TECTH > ERGBOAE RN BRERS
20 SNERIRIREBERRIL - SEABERIBD
EHRBIEEE  HEBRBHEFNE B
HATHEERRDAGFE  HEEXHBNE
o FRMPEBRIRIET - EEFEHRESEEA
R mRERIMRRERR > ZmiEhENERE
fERREDEME - 2FEERBA199.6(87T - &I
RE > PEIHERMIAEFNESERERE > #
BERBARSERIHEESSANIGE  HE
SRR BRI -

AR mEERRARNHE SRR - £EERRE
RERENEENRERES  UNREREENE
mAE > ERUERANGIES > EAMDE
BRI E—MNENE > BEMEPEEE
D EEBER B —BYRI LS ~ FFIZEE o (ERTTE
BENRELEF RMABKRFTACAIRE]
WERES BARAEXNHEERMHEEREE
2 mBEEE DRBEEKNER ZT°°
£ KEBRBERIBERRL - B F8IE
WIS EE  TEHER LR > RETEREE
W&o BRMRREEES > MIEFRCKIHKEK
RS > BIEFESHEBIA RO RS > B
HERAEIRE - B RAHFERAG - REN DAY
W RES B EEZPVHERTRS o

KEHERRRERHERTES SR - FENE
EEHATHEAR T HEEHRERERFEN
BRFEFERA > SOHNERESEBTEER
EEBERIHERELET186% c AT
T —FRARITES M > mEETER
o ARENTSEHE TEEEMEERGER
RONRBIES » HHTHEES - B 24T E
—FSBEEMER > ERNTEBENRETE
ARSI PHNEMSR LIRRHR - EHARE
TP ARAEN  ARESNSARRT
BIISHRENRETR - RIERERIERE
WEEMEERRN  ERRENEERERTA
BERGBHEET EE > fRERENEZEER
BRAHFEHELS
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

The Group focused on long-term value for the ready-to-drink beverage
segment, and strengthened the construction of channels and brand image. Hi-
Tiger continued to emphasize its brand positioning as a professional energy
drink, deepen its interaction with consumers and strengthen its brand image
through sponsorship of sports events and innovative marketing. In terms of
channels, the Group focused on retail construction and high-quality outlet
development, improving the quality of outlet output through terminal freezer
displays and other approaches. For the tea beverage segment, the Group
stayed abreast of healthy and youthful consumption trends, and promoted
product innovation with the launch of the new tea drink “Tea U” series, which
focuses on sugar-free pure tea and low-sugar fruit tea, as well as the new
herbal tea “He Cha” series. The brand image has been continuously upgraded
through innovative research and development.

The impact of the epidemic has changed the behaviour and habits of
consumers in terms of information access and consumption decisions, putting
forward higher requirements for companies on product design, media
communication and consumer interaction. In 2022, the Group actively
promoted brand marketing innovation, formulated highly precise marketing
strategies and differentiated marketing approaches, deepened its insights on
consumer groups, achieved efficient reach and close communication with
consumers, and accomplished multiple objectives including brand value
conveyance and sales conversion.

As a leading group in China’s food and beverage industry, the Group attaches
great importance to corporate governance, environment and climate
management, and social responsibility. In terms of team management, the
Group adheres to a people-oriented approach, continuously strengthens its
performance evaluation system and constructs a scientific corporate
organization structure to promote sustainable development. In terms of
environment, climate and carbon neutrality, the Group continues to improve
the collection and analysis of data resources related to environmental
governance, implements the green concept and cooperates with third-party
organizations to jointly manage the risks and opportunities arising from
environment and climate. In terms of public welfare, the Group attaches great
importance to social responsibility and has set up a number of charitable
funds to continuously deliver a positive energy to all sectors of society with
practical actions.

The Group regards benefits to shareholders one of its primary focus and aims
to provide its shareholders with solid returns. The Group has maintained
strong financial position with reliable cash flow. In view of rewarding its
shareholders with incremental returns, the Board recommended a one-off
special dividend of HKS$0.053 per share to its shareholders. Aggregating this
with the final dividend of HK$0.053 per share, the Group recorded a 100%
corresponding payout ratio for the second half of 2022.

B RIEE EERRIVERE > INRREM BT
REVER o ERFEBAE XD REE
i BBBEEEHNAHEHROEEERS
BIEREBLRNEE - REHEEFRHERIEE
RMNEHEREMAZ  BRRIRKERIET
I BAEMELES o SRR > £F
BIEFIBE R ERUH B R - B EMRRIR
YEH AT SRR AN R A PO TR AR T3¢

r#uy
25 MURHRORS TFE) R0 Bl
B RIEE R B FHAR o

BIERRNEENSE T HEETERERIIHE
ARENTAEE > HEENERRS - HES
BURHBEEEHRHESER - _T " F >
SERIBHEF RREHAN > FIESBESHR
PR EZEREH S REEHEERENR
2 BRWHBENSMBENRZBE > 7Tl
mEEEGENHEBEELERR -

ERFEATREBRRAHTENELER  sEE
REERE  BREREEENTEEMT - EEK
EEFE > EEBRLUABE  TERICEEST
BEiER  BEMSNEEERERE  RETFE
R HRIBEREMKRTHSE > EFEFETS
RIBQEARBBERNRENDNT - BITRE
B TEBEaME=SHBEF  HEEERER
RIEFROEBNES - TRm A H > EESE
ERMEER ERUZELGZZRSES BB
BITBTERTERAEELEEES -

ESESEERKRENNG > EEAKRRIREHER
BB - EEPBRAREE > WERETE > B4
IRERIREEEFMCER > EFEEZEORRIRE—
RIEAFRIIE B EIRERE0.053 7T > EREKAAKRES
BB 0.053 70 0 ZE - E N HEEHEIIRER
#100% ©
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Looking ahead, with the consumption scenarios coming back to normal, the
steady recovery of the economy and the implementation of various efficient
internal mechanisms, the Group will fully capitalize market opportunities and
forward-looking advantages to continuously promote the healthy growth of
snack food, stimulate the market of the ready-to-drink segment to gain new
momentum, promote high-end and innovative plant-based products, expand
quality sales outlets and the scale advantage of short shelf-life products,
consolidating its leading position under the trend of consumer upgrade and
healthy lifestyle.

During the past year, the Group achieved significant development, which was
inextricably linked with the staunch support of our business partners, the
effort made by all of our Group’s staff and the trust of consumers. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to all Dali staff, business
partners and consumers. In 2023, Dali will adhere to the principle of “Creating
Quality with Heart” with a pragmatic yet proactive corporate culture. We will
keep our faith to offer more delicious and healthy products for the consumers.
We will continue to strive for enormous returns for our shareholders, and forge
ahead to new achievements for the Group’s business.

Xu Shihui
Chairman

Hong Kong
March 29, 2023

RERRK > BEHESIHME  LENRTE
B RN EE RS H R KT OIEE
TIHRBNAERRED  TEEERRERR
FIE R - B RV ERARIR G BT I5IE ) o HEE
EYENSHAART - BRI R BERIRERS
HRMNRELCEDR  THEARMERREERSAT
FERESEERBITIL -

BEN—F  AEERNSTRENERE  BHES
EBHHNARNIZF - EEEEBETINE N EX
HEENERETAD c AAEAREFERER
fIEFMA -~ SEBHAHEE R THARHE -
TEC-FENRCREERSRORRERNE
SMBEEMNDEE » AT @B
BEEWRERNK  BENER  ARRAIEEE
BIEIER - FEENFERRT BEHLEE -

T
FFitiE

)

—E-=#=B=+hA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE w1

In 2022, under the impact of the pandemic and extreme weather conditions,
coupled with the volatile geopolitical situation, the macro environment in
China faced greater complexity and severity. Although the optimisation of
pandemic prevention and control policies brought about an orderly recovery
of consumption scenarios, uncertainties still existed in the short term, in
addition to the economic slowdown which made consumers more rational
about their spendings. In the face of this volatile environment, the Group is
planning various strategies to capture growth opportunities. In the long run,
the long-term positive fundamentals of Chinese consumption remain
unchanged and the consumption structure will continue to be optimised and
upgraded.

The Group is a leading food and beverage company in China with a diversified
presence across multiple categories and industrial segments, a number of
highly recognized consumer brands, and a core competitive advantage built
through an extensive and in-depth nationwide channel network. Looking back
on 2022, the Group continued to consolidate its leading edge, capture market
opportunities in various industry segments and make significant
improvements in channel management, product innovation, precision
marketing, team building and social responsibility. With the recovery of
consumption scenarios after the pandemic, the Group’s solid foundation in
offline channels and the implementation of efficient internal mechanisms will
further strengthen its competitive advantages, driving a healthy and steady
growth in performance.

TECTF RARIEBERE  BRERRER
ZEE > BIBNEEARBEESR  RERIRIE
EREANEHIEMERIE T - BARTIBHIEBE
BIEWRTHESRAFNE  BREHANTRE
ERRDMAFE > IINEEREEIHEEER
SHEMEY - AN ZERIREG 0 EEREZE
RISBIEIZRILIS - RIAZRE > PEDHERIA
WEAERBNE  HEGBRIFEREEAR -

EEETEERAEEEEDSE  BRGRSEEN
ZmENHR EEZEHEESER TN
iR WIBIBEZMARANZE T RIEMERILE
BROBEFH CE_Z__F > EETHSES
BHESED > W EXRRRNHISRE > 1
EREEE  EmAl  BEEH - BERERMN

i - EER T RENLBERM A RES
BUEME— D RIEERFBE - HEEERE
RRIEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEm R

Strategic presence across categories and continuous innovation for the
future: From an industry perspective, the snack food industry, being a
trillions-worth market, is the largest contributor to our sales, in which its
market and presence provide huge room for the Group’s long-term steady
growth. Although the sales revenue of the snack food segment declined due to
the pandemic, it will continue to gain market share in the future through
product upgrades and emerging markets; the household consumption
segment benefits from consumers’ demand for convenient breakfast, with
obvious competitive edges and strong growth opportunities brought by
continuous market cultivation, resulting in solid sales growth; in the ready-to-
drink beverage segment, consumer demand for energy drinks was expanded,
and although the lack of consumption scenarios and cost policy adjustments
have led to a year-on-year decline in sales, high growth is expected with the
repair of travel and consumption scenarios and the optimization of people
and organisation. The Group is committed to providing consumers with
healthier, more nutritious and greener products. In 2022, Doubendou
launched a high-end plant-based organic soy milk series with a higher sense
of quality, and its self-developed “zero-additive natural soy milk whole bean
production technology” won the Grand Prize of Science and Technology
Award from the China National Food Industry Association (FRE & & T2 1%
BRI BT ELL), demonstrating its strong technological research and
development ability. With consumer-centric approach, the Group capitalised
on the trend of high-quality in the face of consumption upgrading and
enhanced its brand positioning with stronger product power, and relied on an
optimised product portfolio and high value-added new products to further
boost profit levels, with gross profit margins in the snack food and household
consumption segments improving significantly in the second half of the year

compared to the first half.

BRI EREMS > ERRRFERN : LEX
BELRE > KEERAABETSEE  BE&KA
HIHEERIRGE > THERENKREAERRRR
RIERREHERTEREME > EARBBETERHER
mmiRIREE E WA B PR T > BRFEERITRIENR
HEMBTIERE S R TEERNTHISMEE
REHERRZDOIEERNNEREENT
R BIEAIFERRE > BRI IE A HRAARR
REKE  HERRBER  BRRRTHEEY
ABADMMRBTIRER  BRAHBERRAE
MERABRARERHERLLETE » BEEHTT
MHBSREVEE » DIREHINEANER > &
HIBRAIH - EER O AHEERHMERE &
B -REOENER —ZT°F> SAQEHER
ARSIHEMERIMRT > FIRBBEEHE
B ITRATAMENETEERM BERTER
mIEBERFNMBRMEEFR  RRET A
RBIBAMTAERES) - EELUHBEEFRBZO
BEHBEARTMECEE > UERANE®R
FRF @R EN » REBIENERB SIS
B RE—TRAFENKT » KEBRMKE
HERE T ¥ FERN KL EHFREERT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEm R

A brand matrix with high consumer recognition and continued brand
rejuvenation: The Group’s multi-brand and multi-category strategy drives
sustainable growth and continues to inject brand momentum in long-term
accumulation. The sales of seven core brands exceeded RMB1 billion, with
four of them exceeding RMB2 billion. Daliyuan and Doubendou ranked No. 1
in the Chinese market, while Copico and Haochidian ranked No. 1 among
domestic brands. With products that closely match consumer preferences and
a diversified product portfolio that meets the needs of various consumption
scenarios, the Group has significant brand recognition and reputation in the
minds of consumers. On this basis, the Group has further deepened its
marketing capabilities in a number of areas to consolidate brand assets,
enhance user loyalty and pursue long-term brand development. Firstly,
innovative and precise marketing strategies were developed based on core
consumer needs to deepen consumer education and drive industrial upgrade.
For example, as a leading brand in the soy milk industry, Doubendou, in
conjunction with national authorities and experts, released the Consensus on
Nutrition, Health and Consumption of Soy Milk ({ 2 {3 & & & B 84 &
F£ 3 ). Secondly, in terms of reaching target consumers with precision and
efficiency, the Group communicated closely with young people through social
media channels such as Weibo, Xiaohongshu and Douyin, deepened its
emotional connection with household consumers through marketing media
such as big screens, elevator media and TV dramas, and conducted precision
marketing according to the consumer groups of different brands to emphasise
a differentiated brand image. To improve the efficiency of marketing spending,
the Group continued to refine its teamwork and enhance internal and external
collaborations, strengthening team cooperation and using innovative
marketing methods to boost marketing efficiency.

HEESESTNREER  FEBERMTER
1t ERUZREL R ERKRY I FEER
RIBERPNEEARMEBEE - CEZO R
EREBAREET > HPEEZOmEHEE
MEBARE TR - EMNE Ex2Ha2
BEHHEE— At FIEHERBEERES
—  EmERLGHEERT > ZUtERES
MELEHBSERHR  EETHEEO0ETE
FRENRERIEMEEE - FILER L &
BEZEREE—TRCEHEN  NREEE
ERABFPEHE EXREENER -8
7 RBHEEZOBREERFBEENZH
RE > MRHEBEHE > EBEZEAR - HIW
SAREFREMTENEERME » BEBERER
WBREREM(TPEERBEBHEH-H) - H
R ERESHBEEERBBEARSH  £E8
BIE - MIE ~ HESFHERERFEARE
TEIE BEKXF - BE  BERAIFEHENR
ERREHBEABRNBRES L AERBEFE®
IEBUHBRRETERCEREN  RPAERE
MRETR - ERBEE L - EEFEEHECE
BB EFERAINC S > IR E X171 > EARA
HE D R IBEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEm R

Leveraging the advantages of extensive channels and enhancing the
professional operation capability of the team: The Group has the core
advantage of a nationwide channel network which cannot be replicated by
other industry players. The Group has established long-term and stable
business relationships with over 6,000 distributors to achieve large-scale
expansion of retail outlets, covering millions of sales outlets. Combined with
36 food and beverage production bases across the country, this enables new
products to reach mass consumers efficiently and with significant channel
synergies, laying a solid foundation for a better unleashing of the potential
advantages of the multi-brand and multi-category strategy. In 2022, the Group
further defined business indicators and visualised data management,
optimised profit distribution mechanism to enhance retail outlet activity and
profit levels, and continued to consolidate long-term win-win relationships
with distributors. In terms of channel operation, the Group enhanced the
professional operation capability of the team through a divisional
organisation structure to further develop the market and improve efficiency,
while refining the management of outlets and improving outlet control. The
breakfast division has further increased its support for distributors to create a
quality nationwide infrastructure to accelerate healthy sales growth and
consolidate its leading position. As an energy drink brand highly recognised by
consumers, Hi-Tiger optimised its operational capabilities in terms of sales
management, outlet coverage and shelf display to further strengthen retail
outlet coverage. With the increase in quality outlets and refinement of channel
operations, the Group will be in a better position to grasp the growth
opportunities from a wide range of product categories, and the effect of
people and be realized organisation optimization will continue to be realized,
laying a solid foundation for long-term sound growth. The Group believes that
talent is one of the core competitiveness of an enterprise. In terms of team
management, the Group adheres to a people-oriented approach strives to
maximize the potential of its employees. In recent years, the Group has been
strengthening its performance evaluation system, bringing in quality talents
and improving team management; in terms of professional operations, the
Group has built a sound corporate organisational structure to continuously
promote efficient operations and sustainable development. In 2022, the Group
continued to bring in professional talents, optimise performance targets and
incentive mechanisms, improve the professionalism of its teams and
continuously strengthen its overall efficiency. In order to further motivate
employees and to further enhance the Group’s strategic growth in the future,
the Board resolved in January 2023 to grant a total of 224,330,000 incentive
shares to the Group’s employees and senior management under a share
award scheme, further tying the long-term interests of core employees to the
enterprise and also creating effective conditions for the recruitment of new
teams.

BIEEZREED  RADKEREESERN &
EEAHEMBEERNTERNNEREENREHE
ZMEES o EE BB IE N TELHEEm R R
BENEERG > TRAMERECER B
EHEBHERE  Ea2BE=t+NEBREE
it SN AESMEEATHERE > BE
ERRWNERE > ABFIENRSRIELSEN
BHEBITTREERTIE TS24 &£HF
E— T B EBIERMARCEREIE » BEF
HR R ZE B LR S AR m AR AR AT > 548
ZEHLHEBRALERG - REEE @ &
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Practicing social responsibility and exploring sustainable development:
As one of the leaders in the food and beverage industry in China, the Group
attaches great importance to environmental and climate management as well
as social responsibility. In terms of the environment and climate and carbon
neutrality, the Group has continued to improve the collection and analysis of
data resources related to environmental governance in recent years, putting
green concepts into practice and working with third-party organisations to
jointly identify, assess and manage risks and opportunities arising from the
environment and climate, and exploring sustainable business models in
various aspects such as resource efficiency, supply chain management and
product planning in the long term. In terms of public welfare, the Group
attaches great importance to social responsibility and continues to deliver a
positive voice to the community through practical actions, having set up
numerous charity funds. Coinciding with the 20th anniversary of Daliyuan, the
Group, together with the China Youth Development Foundation, launched the
“Care for Left-behind Children, Smile to Embrace Hope” (BAE & FRE » 5
f&Bh 117 EE) charity campaign on June 1, the International Children’s Day, to
support the construction of Hope Primary Schools and showcase its public
welfare image. During the pandemic, the Group actively took up its social
responsibility by donating materials to the Shanghai Children’s Foundation
and other charity organisations to help the people affected by the pandemic.

In 2022, the Group’s revenue reached RMB19,957 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 10.5%, of which, revenue from the household
consumption segment increased to RMB3,705 million with a year-on-year
increase of 1.9%; revenue from the snack food segment decreased to
RMB9,030 million with a year-on-year decrease of 9.2%; and revenue from the
ready-to-drink beverage segment decreased to RMB5,123 million with a year-
on-year decrease of 22.3%. Gross profit amounted to RMB7,024 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.9%. Gross profit of the household
consumption, snack food and ready-to-drink beverage segments were
RMB1,512 million, RMB3,104 million and RMB2,369 million, respectively,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.3%, 8.7% and 24.8%, respectively.
The Group has a profit level that is significantly better than the industry
average. Its overall gross profit margin was 35.2%, showing a decrease of 1.4
percentage points as compared to last year. Profit before tax was RMB4,064
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 18.5%; net profit decreased
by 19.7% year-on-year to RMB2,990 million, with a net profit margin of 15.0%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.7 percentage points. Net cash
reached RMB11,249 million at the end of the year.
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With the upgrading of consumption, enrichment of scenarios and emergence
of innovative products, the consumer market will continue to expand in the
future and there will be huge room for market development. Looking ahead to
2023, the Group will continue to promote healthy growth in snack food,
stimulate the ready-to-drink beverage segment to show new market
dynamics, promote the premium quality and innovation of plant-based
products, and expand the layout and scale of the quality retail outlets of short
shelf-life products. At the same time, benefiting from the implementation of
the share incentive scheme, the team’s professional execution capability and
more efficient organisational system will further drive performance
enhancement. With the Group’s deep accumulated advantages in products
and channels over the years and the more effective and dynamic
organisational structure, the growth potential of business performance is
expected to be realized continuously, which will create greater returns for
shareholders.

SNACK FOOD BUSINESS

At present, the snack food business has reached a market worth of trillions
RMB, with a relatively low market concentration, but the industry
concentration will further improve along with the rising costs of labour, brand
investment, sustainable production resulting in a competitive landscape
dominated by the stronger industry players. Meanwhile, with the recovery of
consumption scenarios and the prominent effect of industrial upgrade, the
advantages of leading enterprises in the whole industry chain and industry
chain and channel layout are becoming increasingly obvious.

As a representative brand of snack food in China, the Group has developed in
the industry for two decades, building a multi-brand and multi-category
business portfolio with the largest industrial scale and development potential
in China, and has established an extensive nationwide channel network. In
2022, due to the impact of the epidemic, our sales revenue decreased by 9.2%
to RMB9,030 million from RMB9,943 million in 2021, and our gross profit
margin increased by 0.2 percentage point to 34.4%, which was mainly due to
the optimised product portfolio that offset the impact of the significant price
increase in raw materials such as edible oil, eggs and sugar.

In recent years, the Group has continued to build the professional retail sales
teams and enhance the maintenance and development of outlets. At the
same time, the profit distribution mechanism with distributors has been
optimised to enhance the motivation and profit level of distributors and
establish long-term win-win relationships. On this basis, the Group’s retail
penetration rate continued to increase, enabling an optimised product
portfolio and high-value new products to reach consumers more effectively
and comprehensively. The Group is deeply engaged in traditional and modern
channels and has an irreplaceable dominant advantage in channel layout. Itis
believed that the Group’s offline channel advantages will continue to be
released as the consumer scenario resumes.
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With the long-term trend of consumption quality upgrading and healthy diet

becoming increasingly evident, snack food has grasped the healthy and green
consumer demand, made continuous breakthroughs in research and
development, tapped into upstream quality production sources and raw

materials to provide consumers with high quality products, and continuously

upgraded and rolled out new products with a more youthful look, including
soda biscuits, small curved chips, wafers, cookies, etc., to enhance the brand
image.

16

Bakery

Bakery is the largest category among snack food in China. Compared to
developed countries, China’s per capita consumption of bakery is still
relatively low. Companies with strong brand power, R&D capabilities
and channel resources will be able to further expand their sales scale
and increase their market share.

As a household name in the bakery industry, Daliyuan has, over the past
decade, consistently topped the market share of the industry in terms of
sales volume, and has built up a solid competitive advantage based on
its prominent leading position in niche categories and its well-
established brand image.

In 2022, Daliyuan utilised high-value new products to enhance profit
margins and further optimised its management and investment in
channels. In terms of products, the Group has always adhered to the
brand philosophy of “Creating Quality with Heart”, strictly controlled the
product quality and kept bringing healthy and delicious bakery
products to consumers while actively keeping abreast of the
personalised and youthful consumer trend. In 2022, Daliyuan focused
on creating single products such as tiramisu pie and whole wheat bread
to further enhance its healthy brand image, and partnered with the
Forbidden City to launch a 20th anniversary gift box, continuously
injecting new vitality into the national brand. Leveraging on product
portfolio optimisation and high-value new products, the Group’s
product pricing power and bargaining power on the channel side
continued to increase. It also continued to strengthen the investment in
its retail sales team and digital management while continuously
expanding modern channels and promoting the upgrading of channel
structure on the basis of consolidating the advantages of traditional
channels.

In the future, Daliyuan will continue to consolidate its existing
advantages, strengthen its innovation capabilities, promote new
products and improve the efficiency of its channels to drive up revenue
scale and gross profit levels.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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Chips, Fries and Others

Benefiting from the support of young consumers, the chips market in
China is developing rapidly, with the market scale expanding
continuously and maintaining healthy compound growth over the past
decade. Under the general trend of consumption upgrading, young
consumers’ demand for quality ingredients and healthy food has
increased, and the industry’s entry threshold and process requirements
have continued to rise, promoting the concentration of top brands.

As the leading brand of chips in China, Copico has been number one in
the industry for 10 consecutive years and has a good reputation among
young consumers, a well-established consumer base, a strong R&D
capability and a diversified product matrix. Copico has accurately
captured the preferences of young consumers and continuously
optimised its products and marketing to further build a youthful brand
image. In terms of product processing, Copico has selected premium
potato varieties to launch its pure cut series, and has strengthened its
control over raw materials and product quality with an in-depth layout
of upstream provenance and nationwide production scale. In terms of
product innovation, Copico launched the new “chips with small curls”,
which optimises the specifications and packaging of the original pure
cut chips to enhance taste and meet the individual needs of young
consumers, presenting a differentiated product image at the retail end.
At the same time, the Group continued to invest in innovative marketing
and deepen its efforts in younger generation oriented marketing
scenarios such as campuses to maintain close and multi-dimensional
communication with young consumers.

Looking forward, Copico will continue to capture the consumption
trend of young consumers, promote product innovation and brand
marketing, actively promote omni-channel expansion, and build a
younger core customer base through innovative specialty products and
packaging, thereby continuously increasing Copico’s market share.

Biscuit

Despite years of development of the biscuit market, there is still a gap in
the market scale compared with developed countries. Driven by the
continuous extension of consumption scenarios, the industry still has
much room for expansion.
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As the No. 1 national biscuit brand, Haochidian has great brand
awareness, with a comprehensive product portfolio, covering a variety
of consumption scenarios and consumer groups. In 2022, starting from
the expansion of consumption scenarios, the Group continued to
explore niche categories and further laid out high-value potential
product lines such as soda, cookies and wafers to cover a wider range of
consumers groups and move towards the high-end development. The
“SOULDAR” soda biscuit series caters to the healthier needs of
consumers; the “Veekin” wafer series is designated to meet consumers’
individual preference in flavour in casual consumption scenarios and
continues to expand in the market along with consumer upgrading; the
“Landy Castle” biscuit series was awarded the Superior Taste Award by
the renowned judges of the Belgium-based International Taste Institute.
Its excellent taste and packaging design fully meet the needs of gifting.
In response to the diversified consumption scenarios, the Group has
continuously upgraded its channels and actively developed new
incremental channels such as convenience stores and snack chain
stores, so as to closely interact with consumers by providing a more
convenient and instant consumption experience.

Looking ahead, Haochidian will build a multi-dimensional product
structure, further explore its core competitiveness in terms of products,
channels and marketing, promote the high-end development of the
brand and expand its influence.

HOUSEHOLD CONSUMPTION BUSINESS

In 2022, the household consumption business saw a stable growth
momentum with an increase in sales revenue by 1.9% to RMB3,705 million in
2022 from RMB3,635 million in 2021, accounting for 18.6% of the sales of the
Group. Gross profit margin saw a decrease of 2.2 percentage points to 40.8%,
mainly due to the price increase of raw materials. With the Group’s continuous
investment in and optimisation of its sales system and channel network, the
household consumption business has established a leading market position
nationwide. In the future, the Group will continue its brand and channel
building while enhancing its brand reputation continuously through
innovative marketing of products, good channels and retail experience to
further drive high quality revenue and gross profit growth.
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Short Shelf-life Bread

As consumers’ consumption levels rise and the pace of life accelerates
under the urbanisation process, consumer demands for convenient
breakfast is becoming more and more prominent. The penetration rate
of short shelf-life bread continued to increase due to its fresh, nutritious
and tasty product characteristics which meet consumers’ higher
requirements for convenience and quality. At the same time, the barriers
to entry in the industry has further increased as consumers attach
greater importance to the brand reputation of short shelf-life bread.

As a leading brand of short shelf-life bread, Meibeichen has maintained
its position as top two market leaders since its launch in 2018. With a
nationwide infrastructure and a wide retail network, it currently covers
over 150,000 retail outlets, with an obvious scale advantage. Based on
quality research and development processes, it continues to launch
affordable and quality products to meet the diverse needs of
consumers. Although the transportation chain and offline consumption
scenario of short shelf-life bread was impacted to a certain degree by
the control measures during the pandemic, the Group promptly
adjusted its product strategy in a timely manner to replenish some of its
medium shelf-life products, demonstrating its flexible operation
capability under the uncertain environment. In 2022, sales revenue
increased by 3.5% to RMB1,438 million.

Meibeichen always emphasises product differentiation and functionality
and continues to refine its product matrix. In 2022, it launched ready-to-
eat burgers and other best-selling products, which were well accepted
by young consumers. It has continuously optimised its distributor
system, strengthened its management and resource investment in
distributors, set refined targets for distributors at different stages of
development, enhanced focus and profitability, and established a solid
partnership. In terms of retail outlets, with the recovery of the offline
consumption scenario, we continued to expand our quality retail outlets
represented by supermarkets and school channels.

Looking ahead to 2023, as a nationwide leading brand in short shelf-life
bread, Meibeichen will continue to strengthen sales quality, expand
market share, improve operational efficiency and continue to provide
affordable and quality products for consumers.
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Soy Milk

In recent years, with the increasing health awareness and concern over
sustainable development by consumers, plant-based products have
seen rapid growth and are becoming the mainstream around the world.
Soy is one of the most nutritious and marketable plant-based products,
which has high nutritional value and is easily accessible on a large scale.
Compared to overseas markets, the per capita consumption of
packaged soy milk in China is still very low and there is ample room for
improvement. As consumers’ awareness of the nutritional value of soy
milk continues to rise and the consumer population continues to
expand, there is huge scope for market expansion and further
concentration for top brands.

Since 2021, Doubendou has been the number one leading brand in the
soy milk industry, and its market share has continued to rise. Benefited
from the gradual reveal of the outcome of category education, the
further enrichment of the product ecology and the continuous
improvement of the channel network, Doubenbou continued to lead
industrial development and ride on the wind of health to build a new
benchmark for plant-based nutrition. In 2022, sales revenue increased
by 0.9% to RMB2,266 million.

. In terms of consumer education, in 2022, Doubendou, together
with authoritative institutions and experts, released the
Consensus on Nutrition, Health and Consumption of Soy Milk (“&
oy & BT B & £ ), and joined hands with industry
experts to promote the healthy diet concept of “two cups of milk
per day, one for soy milk and one for cow milk”, deeply
disseminating the knowledge and concept of “double protein”
balanced diet and broadening the capacity of the soy milk
industry.

. In terms of products, Doubendou has been introducing new
products under the continuous refinement of the research and
development processes. The latest research and development
process “zero-additive natural soy milk whole bean production
technology” provides consumers with healthier and more
comprehensive plant nutritional value, and continues to expand
on the basis of organic whole soy milk products, launching
organic whole soy milk, organic pure soy milk, organic black soy
milk and other organic series to establish a high-end healthy
brand image.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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. In terms of distributor management, we brought in high quality
distributors through reasonable profit distribution, leveraged our
resource advantages and achieved diversified network coverage
in supermarkets, restaurants, schools and convenience stores,
with sales quality constantly improving.

Looking ahead to 2023, Doubendou will continue to help improve
national dietary health, and further lead the healthy development of the
soy milk industry through continuous refinement of technological
processes and innovative marketing. The Group believes that with its
capabilities in product creation, brand operation and channel
expansion, Doubendou will continue to empower the industry and lead
the plant-based industry to greater success, benefiting from both
market growth and increase in market share in the future.

READY-TO-DRINK BEVERAGE INDUSTRY

In 2022, the recurrence of the pandemic brought about a certain lack of offline
consumption scenarios. The sales revenue of the Group’s ready-to-drink
beverage segment decreased by 22.3% from RMB6,596 million in 2021 to
RMB5,123 million in 2022, and the gross profit margin decreased by 1.6
percentage points to 46.2%, which was mainly due to the rising price of raw
materials such as paper sheets, partially offset by product portfolio
optimisation. In the face of the challenges brought by the pandemic, the
Group focused on long-term value, strengthened the construction of and
control over retail outlets, stabilised price levels and brand image, fully
enhanced the execution and motivation of the sales team and distributors by
optimising team assessment indicators and cooperation mechanisms, etc.,
and improved the channel network system. The Group believes that with the
recovery of economic activities and consumption scenarios after the
pandemic and the enhancement of the team’s professional execution
capability, the revenue of ready-to-drink beverages will improve significantly.

. Energy Drinks

As the pace of society accelerates and the number of people engaged in
fitness and sports increases, the consumer base of energy drinks has
been expanding, covering two major consumption scenarios: work and
leisure sports, with a rapid growth in the market and a continued
expansion of the market size. Relying on the clear functional attributes
of the products, energy drinks show high user stickiness and high
repurchase rate, and have become a high-quality competing category
leading the beverage industry in recent years. Meanwhile, the recovery
of outdoor sports and events after the pandemic will further inject
growth vitality into the category.
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Through professional brand image, differentiated specification
positioning and strong channel network, Hi-Tiger has built up a loyal
consumer base in the industry, highlighting its advantages as a leading
brand. In 2022, due to the lack of offline consumption scenarios caused
by the resurgence of the pandemic, the sales revenue of Hi-Tiger
decreased year-on-year by 12.4% to RMB2,823 million.

In 2022, Hi-Tiger strengthened the construction of retail outlets and the
development of high-quality outlets, enhancing the quality of high-
output outlets through freezer displays and other means, while further
strengthening its ability to operate retail outlets through the
optimisation of team structure and the enhancement of incentive
mechanisms to strengthen ground team execution capabilities and
digital management. In terms of brand marketing, it continued to
cooperate with professional sports events both online and offline to
establish a professional brand image and attract target consumers.

Looking ahead, Hi-Tiger’s strong channel network and continuous
channel construction will enable it to benefit significantly from the
recovery of consumption scenarios after the pandemic. On the other
hand, Hi-Tiger will actively grasp the opportunities brought about by the
changing competitive landscape and continue to strengthen its brand
image as a professional energy drink to enhance the brand’s market
share while actively capturing incremental market growth.

Tea Beverages

China’s tea culture has a history of thousands of years and a huge
consumer base. As a product derived from traditional tea drinks, herbal
tea beverages can meet a variety of consumption scenarios, such as
spending, emotion and social interaction, and have now reached a
market size of 100 billion. In recent years, ready-to-drink tea beverages
products have been upgraded centering around high-quality, high-end
raw materials and packaging, with huge development potential. The
Group’s ready-to-drink tea beverages segment includes herbal tea, the
“Tea U” series and other tea beverages, with an enriched product matrix
and effective synergy. Due to the pandemic, the sales revenue of tea
beverages decreased by 32.3% to RMB1,524 million in 2022.
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Herbal tea has hundreds of years of cultural accumulation, with
extensive and robust market capacity, good foundation and stable
prices. As a leader deeply engaged in the herbal tea industry, Hegizheng
has empowered industry upgrades through a series of innovative
initiatives. In 2022, Hegizheng broke the industry boundaries by
launching the new herbal tea “He Tea”, which incorporates the special
flavours of flowers and tea into the traditional herbal tea, highlighting
the low-sugar herbal tea formula with flowers and tea, catering to the
daily little health needs of young consumers. In terms of marketing, with
newcomers in the workplace and college students as the target
consumer groups, Hegizheng created a number of trending topics on
various new media platforms to communicate and interact with young
consumers, which achieved good consumer feedback. Through
continuous innovation in product and marketing strategies, Hegizheng
is precisely meets the needs of young consumers and seizes the
opportunity of the fast-growing new tea beverages market to inject new
vitality into the herbal tea industry.

With consumers’ increasing health consciousness, the market size of
sugar-free and low-sugar beverages is growing rapidly. The Group is
keenly aware of the market trend with its long-term product
accumulation and insights on users, has launched the “Tea U” series, a
new tea product focusing on sugar-free pure tea and low-sugar fruit tea,
with healthy and green ingredients and innovative packaging to
enhance the brand image. It will attract young consumers and drive
growth.

Looking ahead, ready-to-drink tea beverages will continue to cultivate a
young consumer base through innovative products to enhance brand
perception and achieve healthy growth in sales quality.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by 9.0% from
RMB3,884 million in 2021 to RMB3,536 million in 2022, which was mainly
due to the decrease in marketing and promotion costs. Such expenses
as a percentage of revenue increased from 17.4% in 2021 to 17.7% in
2022.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 19.0% from RMB628
million in 2021 to RMB748 million in 2022. Such expenses as a
percentage of revenue increased from 2.8% in 2021 to 3.7% in 2022,
mainly due to the increase in personnel cost as a result of the
implementation of its share award scheme.
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Cash

The Group meets its liquidity needs mainly through cash flow generated
from operation. The total value of the Group’s pledged deposits, cash
and bank deposits increased from RMB16,647 million as at December
31,2021 to RMB16,739 million as at December 31, 2022.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories decreased by 11.0% from RMB1,194 million as
at December 31, 2021 to RMB1,063 million as at December 31, 2022. It
was mainly due to the decrease in the balance of finished goods at the
end of the year as a result of the Group’s more effective control over
finished goods inventory in line with the market demand for its
products. The inventory turnover days increased from 28.9 days in 2021
to 31.4 days in 2022.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables increased by 8.9% from RMB1,371 million
as at December 31,2021 to RMB1,494 million as at December 31, 2022. It
was mainly because the Group eased the credit terms for certain high-
quality distributors, which led to the increase in trade receivables. The
trade receivables turnover days increased from 18.3 days in 2021 to 25.8
days in 2022.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables decreased by 5.2% from RMB1,028 million
as at December 31, 2021 to RMB975 million as at December 31, 2022,
which remained relatively flat as compared to last year. The trade
payables turnover days increased from 25.6 days in 2021 to 27.9 days in
2022.

Borrowings

As of December 31, 2022, the balance of loans of the Group was
RMB5,490 million (December 31, 2021: RMB5,273 million). The loans of
the Group are unsecured bank borrowings with interest rates ranging
from 1% to 5% per annum.
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As at December 31, 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was 30.8%. The
gearing ratio is the total liabilities divided by equity plus total liabilities.
The slight increase in gearing ratio from 29.8% as at December 31, 2021
was mainly due to the addition of unsecured bank loans of the Group in
2022.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and nearly all
transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China were
denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland
China were not subject to significant foreign currency risk. As at
December 31, 2022, the Group’s assets and liabilities denominated in
HKD were mainly held by the Company and certain subsidiaries
incorporated outside Mainland China which had currencies other than
RMB as their functional currencies.

The Company and those subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland
China also held bank balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign
currency exposures arise. The Group did not conduct any hedging
activities.

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Pledge of Assets

As at December 31, 2022, the Group’s balance of pledge deposits
amounted to RMB69 million (December 31, 2021: RMB0.831 million).

Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
November 20, 2015 with net proceeds from the global offering of
approximately HKD8,665 million (after deduction of underwriting fees
and commissions and estimated expenses payable in connection with
the global offering). According to the intended use as set out in “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus published on November
10, 2015 (the “Prospectus”), the amount utilized as at December 31,
2022 were as follows:
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing (as of December 31, 2022) LTHRERIERAR(BE-S-"5+=A8
=+-A)
Unit: HKD million B BEET
Utilised during Utilised Unutilised  Expected timetable
the year ended asat asat  of the use of the
December 31, December 31, December 31, unutilised net
No. Items Percentage Available 2022 2022 2022  proceeds
KI§ZZ gE-2—-C HE—Z-C FERXER
+ZA=+—-H +ZB=+—-H +ZA=+—-H FmMEIEEEN
F#  1BH f&EE AIEA ILFEEEHA LEREEBHA ERetRBA  FHERER
1 Development, introduction 20% 1,733 - 1,733 - N/A
and promotion of AEA
new products
& IR
HER
2 Expansion and upgrade of 20% 1,733 - 1,733 - N/A
production facility and AEA
manufacturing network
BRREEE
IR AR
3 Enhancing presence 20% 1,733 - 1,733 - N/A
in sales channels and TBA
promoting brands
RAEHEREN
Eukinysids
4 Potential acquisitions and 30% 2,600 - - 2,600 ltisexpected to be
business cooperation fully utilised on or
BIWERERAE before December
31,2024
R Z B mE
+ZBA=+—-H
K2 A2 EHEA
5 Working capital and 10% 866 - 866 - N/A
other general corporate B
purposes
EEESRHEM
—RABAR
Total &3 100% 8,665 - 6,065 2,600
The Company does not intent to utilize the proceeds for purposes KABEEEESEREARNIBRE
different as described in the Prospectus. RFFB R o
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Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group had capital expenditures of RMB670 million in 2022, primarily
used for (i) the construction of plants and workshops for new factories;
and (ii) the equipment upgrades and renovation work for each
production workshop of the factories.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group’s capital commitments relating to
property, plant and equipment were RMB413 million, which were
primarily used for (i) the construction of plants and the acquisition of
equipment for new and expanded factories; and (ii) the equipment
upgrades in factory.

Human Resources and Staff Remuneration

The Group always believes that talent is the core competitiveness of
enterprises and regards employees as important strategic resources for
corporate development. It has made active efforts in establishing a
sound talent selection and training mechanism to improve employees’
overall competitiveness and their sense of belonging to the Group. In
2022, the Group continued to introduce a large number of professional
high-end talents, and actively identified talents from the existing
employees and jointly established a training mechanism with key
universities and colleges in China on a long-term basis. The Group
established a tutor management system and a training management
system, and a learning and development model such as visiting external
model enterprises, formed a talent selection and promotion mechanism
for competition for posts and performance appraisal, maintained the
core competitiveness of corporate talents, and cultivated an
experienced, stable and reliable management team. Meanwhile, the
Group continued to optimise and upgrade our management structure,
promote fine management, upgrade information management and
strengthen the headquarters’ control of the market, laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s sustainable development.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 39,518 employees (as
at December 31, 2021: 40,745 employees). The Group’s employees are
remunerated with reference to their positions, performance, experience
and prevailing salary trends in the market. In addition to basic salaries,
the Group provides various staff benefits to its employees. For the year
ended December 31, 2022, the total employee benefits expenses
(including Directors’ remuneration) were RMB2,557 million (for the year
ended December 31, 2021: RMB2,538 million), which was primarily
attributable to the slight increase in total employee benefit expenses as
a result of the combined effect of the implementation of the Group’s
share award scheme and the reduction in the number of staff employed.
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Report of the Directors
EFTHRS

The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is a
leading branded food and beverage company in China with a diversified multi-
brand product portfolio focusing on high-growth product categories. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and
beverage in China. The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015.

Segment analysis of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set out
in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. A list of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries, together with their places and dates of incorporation,
types of legal entity, principal activities and particulars of their issued shares/
registered share capital, is set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future
development, and an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators as required under Schedule 5 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 8 and the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 27 of this annual report which
constitute part of this report of the Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the market, operational, financial and compliance
risks in relation to the industry in which the Group operates and each business
division of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our operations, the
potential risks to our business increase as well. We have implemented a risk
management system that covers each material aspect of our operations,
including finance, supply chain, security, technology and compliance. As our
risk management is a systematic project, each of our departments is
responsible for identifying and evaluating the risks relating to its area of
operations. Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing and assessing
our risk management policy and they supervise the performance of our risk
management system. Details of the principal risks during the year are set out
in Risk Management and Internal Controls under Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
onpages 175to 176.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On November 19, 2018, the Company adopted a dividend policy for the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profit to shareholders of the
Company as dividends. According to the dividend policy, in recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of Association and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the Company
and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

. financial result;
cash flow conditions;
business conditions and strategies;

. future operations and earnings;

. capital requirements and expenditure plans;

. interests of shareholders;

. potential investment, mergers and acquisitions;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and
any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board for a financial year or period as follows:

. interim dividend;
. final dividend;
special dividend; and
any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders” approval.
Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association. The Board will review the dividend
policy as appropriate from time to time.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HKS0.071 per ordinary share for the six months ended
June 30, 2022 was declared during 2022.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.053
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.0469) per ordinary share for the year
ended December 31, 2022 (the “2022 Final Dividend”) and a special dividend
of HKS$0.053 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.0469) per ordinary share for
the year ended December 31, 2022 (the “2022 Special Dividend”),
representing a total payment of approximately HK$1,451,576,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,284,465,000). The payment of the 2022 Final Dividend and the 2022
Special Dividend are subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on May 18, 2023.

Upon Shareholders” approval to be obtained at the AGM, the 2022 Final
Dividend and the 2022 Special Dividend are expected to be paid on July 7,
2023 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on May 31, 2023.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years, as set out on page 5 of this annual report, is extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31,
2022 amounted to approximately RMB5.82 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The events occurred after the Reporting Period are disclosed in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share premium and other
reserves. As at December 31, 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB9.84 million (2021: RMB5.48 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015. The net proceeds from the Listing were
approximately HKD8,665 million (after deduction of underwriting fees and
commissions and estimated expenses payable by the Company in connection
with the global offering).

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Use of Proceeds from the Listing” on pages 25 to 26 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS

Brief biographies of the Directors as at the date of this report are set out in the
Board of Directors and Senior Management section of this annual report. The
Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang

Ms. Xu Yangyang

Ms. Huang Jiaying

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Xu Biying
Ms. Hu Xiaoling

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan (resigned on March 28, 2022)
Mr. Liu Xiaobin

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Ng Kong Hing (appointed on March 28, 2022)

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan has resigned as an independent non-executive director,
a member of nomination committee and a member of audit committee of the
Company with effect from March 28, 2022 due to his old age.

Mr. Ng Kong Hing has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director, a member of nomination committee and a member of audit
committee of the Company with effect from March 28, 2022.

Each of Mr. Xu Shihui, Mr. Zhuang Weigiang, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Ms. Huang
Jiaying, Ms. Xu Biying, Ms. Hu Xiaoling, Mr. Ng Kong Hing, Mr. Liu Xiaobin and
Dr. Lin Zhijun shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming AGM
pursuant to article 16.19 of the Articles of Association or the Listing Rules and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE AND COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in Note 35 “Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
(as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director or
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 2022 or
atany time during 2022.

None of the Directors has interests in any businesses apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete with the Group’s business,
either directly or indirectly or would otherwise require disclosure under Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the year as disclosed in Notes 35 to the
consolidated financial statements constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined under the Listing Rules but are exempt from the
reporting, announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(a).

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at December 31, 2022, the interests of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

I Interest in shares or underlying shares of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest

ERNR 8515 tEmttE
Mr. Xu Shihui® Interest in controlled corporation
SRt NSz NE Y

Ms. Xu Yangyang®
sEmL L

Beneficiary of a discretionary trust®

HIBEEHNRmAY

EFRNEERS - BRSO RR
ENEL

BRo A PSRRI sE 35 TRAM 5 32 57 ) FRIREEE
5o BEEEET ML BR AR T ~ HIER AT SEE MM
BRrERAERXBLAR  MALRNEFHRE
FEREENERIIERRRE (EER LHRA) 1
EhEAEARD (TRERIER > LERT
BT CHERN B FNEREBDALERA
E2X5 2N (EER LHRAK
+7%)

MEESFENAEREFLUOINMERERZEBBN
BF AR BR F R ER T E RN EEE
ARmmZARE EHARR S 8. 101F FLUKEE -

FAE 523

A SRR FIIRBENAREEREA TR
ZER EHRBFTRENFERMER S » BIRIE
F14A76(1)(a) K ER RETRE - 15 FESH
1% BB B SR LR TE ©

EFREETHA SRR

NI ZF+"H=1+—H > ARBEE &R
BITBRAEBRAABNEER LB (EERE
K ERE R B xvER) BURRD ~ FERIARD SEHEE
o BEAREESRPEREEINEETFER
B MATE SRR AR ; ARIERZESTA
NG ARNT RGP R R BT ¢

. RAERERMERMRDNER

Approximate
percentage of

interestin

Number of Shares the Company
RAEATELD

iab ES Y= S T= e
11,640,000,000 85%
11,640,000,000 85%

ENERERBRAT | £k 2022 33



Report of the Directors
EFEWRS

Interest in shares of associated corporations of the Company

. RAEQEEECERRGIES

Approximate

Number of  percentage of

sharesinthe interestin the

Name of associated associated associated

Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature of interest corporation corporation

K REEE

hR B A E R B

R MBEERTE g5, EmtE v 4= S T= e

Mr. Xu Shihui® Divine Foods Limited  Interestin controlled corporation 50 50%
St BsELE (‘Divine Foods’)  WAEEHIEEIIEH

Note: B EE -

(1)

Divine Foods is 50%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine
Foods-2 Limited and Divine Foods-3 Limited respectively. Divine Foods-1 Limited is
74% and 26% legally owned by Mr. Xu Shihui and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively.
Divine Foods-2 Limited and Divine Foods-3 Limited are in turn wholly-owned by Hi-
Tiger Limited. Hi-Tiger Limited is an investment holding company incorporated in
the BVI wholly-owned by Cantrust (Far East) Limited (the “Trustee”), and Hi-Tiger
Limited holds 26%, 100% and 100% shareholdings in Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine
Foods-2 Limited, and Divine Foods-3 Limited respectively. The Trustee is a company
incorporated in the BVI and the trustee of a family trust which is a discretionary trust
established by Mr. Xu Shihui as the settlor and Ms. Chen Liling, Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms.
Xu Yangyang as the beneficiaries at the time of establishment.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, none of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

34

(1) Divine Foods FH Divine Foods-1 Limited ~ Divine
Foods-2 Limited & Divine Foods-3 Limited 43 5!/
& & ¥ B 50% ~ 10% 2 40% © Divine Foods-1
Limited EH &F t & 5% 4 Rz Hi-Tiger Limited 43 B!
& & ¥E A 74%K26% © TDivine Foods-2
Limited & Divine Foods-3 Limited B4 Hi-Tiger
Limited 2 Z # A © Hi-Tiger Limited 2 — R 1*
BEBMERFEEMRLNKEZERAST > A
Cantrust (Far East) Limited T Z5EA)) 2B %
A ° Hi-Tiger Limited 43 I #F %5 Divine Foods-1
Limited ~ Divine Foods-2 Limited & Divine
Foods-3 Limited B9 26% ~ 100% Sz 100% 1% i% 1
o AR KR EBMHRESEMA L
HAB > TARKETNZFEA » KIEET
AT HEREEAMER T ARIINEIEE
5t MMRARIL 2B » FREER Z L ~ FFiigs
Y RFBGZLAZEA

MR EXFriREEN N E - F+-B=+—
B> BEAQNGAEEXNETETHRAEBEFRES
%EEZK’ATYEW%AEI (EERBHERPER

BISE XV ER) B1D ~ HERARMD N ES N E MR K&
KB MBIREBES MBERAIEXNVIETRS
DEBEH B IR IRAZZE R R BRI & 242 B Kb
ZZFT ©
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL TERENES RS
SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2022, the interests or short positions of the following AT F+ZHA=+—H> FTHAL(EA

persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) inthe BEZR&ESTHASRIN REARATREES
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register  KARGEIEHIE 3361 BTHENE EH%FEEE%%E’\J

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows: KANT PGP HARRIRR D PEE NS R AW
T

Approximate

percentage of

Number of Shares interestin

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest (long positions) the Company

RAEATELR

R B EmE RIFEE (FE) S T=Radn

Divine Foods Beneficial owner 11,640,000,000 85%

Bm#EAA
Divine Foods-1 Limited™ Interest in controlled corporation 11,640,000,000 85%
(“Divine Foods-1") NEEGEENE R

Divine Foods-2 Limited® Deemed interest as an associate of 11,640,000,000 85%

(“Divine Foods-2") a substantial shareholder

R —R T ERRHB AR IR

Divine Foods-3 Limited™® Interest in controlled corporation 11,640,000,000 85%
(“Divine Foods-3”) REREREENER

Ms. Chen Liling®®? Interest of spouse 11,640,000,000 85%

BRAER L RiBE

Cantrust (Far East) Limited Trustee; Interest in controlled corporation 11,640,000,000 85%

(“Trustee”)”

Cantrust (Far East) Limited ZEEA; IRNSIEEEE LS

G-I

Notes: 5L -

(1) Divine Foods is 509%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2 and (1) Divine Foods F Divine Foods-1 ~ Divine Foods-2 &z
Divine Foods-3 respectively. Divine Foods-1 is 74% and 26% legally owned by Mr. Xu Shihui Divine Foods-373 Bl & J& #E B 50%  10% K2 40% ©
and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively. Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 are in turn wholly- Divine Foods-1 F 5 t 18 5 4= Jz Hi-Tiger Limited 93 5]
owned by Hi-Tiger Limited. Hi-Tiger Limited is an investment holding company incorporated & &k ¥ B 74% K 26% ° i Divine Foods-2 Az Divine
in the BVI wholly-owned by the Trustee, and Hi-Tiger Limited holds 26%, 100% and 100% Foods-3 F Hi-Tiger Limited 2 B #E A © Hi-Tiger Limited
shareholdings in Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2, and Divine Foods-3 respectively. The H—RRABERBESHEMANREZER AT
Trustee is a company incorporated in the BVI and the trustee of a family trust which is a HEEAZE A o Hi-Tiger Limited 23 B35 5 Divine
discretionary trust established by Mr. Xu Shihui as the settlor and Ms. Chen Liling, Mr. Xu Foods-1 ~ Divine Foods—2?§zDivine Foods-38926%
Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang as the beneficiaries at the time of establishment. 100% K& 1oo%§~’“ﬂszém cRAAAB—RNEBHER

BEEMMILNATE  THARKEELHNZTA - K
REEAFFHEAREERMERT ARINEIERE
5t MR 2 B > IRREEI L ~ TS A K5

BHRLEAZEA
(2) Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Chen Liling are spouses. Accordingly, each of Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms.  (2)  FFHIBRE KRB LT ARME - AL > FES K
Chen Liling is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all shares and underlying shares in which HE®RFIMES > FHBEERBRER L TSEHA
their spousal counterpart is interested in for the purpose of the SFO. é%?ﬁ;f'ﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ P A IR R AR RA AR 17
Bl o
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the disclosure in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” as set out below, for the year ended December 31,
2022, the Company has not entered into (i) any agreement that will or may
result in the issuing Shares of the Company; or (ii) any agreement requiring our
Company to enter into any agreement specified in (i).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on August 25, 2015 to
enable the Company to grant share options to Qualified Participant (as
defined below) as incentive for their commitment towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Shareholders, and
to maintain or attract business relationship with the Qualified Participant
whose contributions are or may be beneficial to the growth of the Group.

Qualified Participant

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe
for such number of Shares as the Board may determine to:

(@) any executive Director, or employee (whether full time or part time) of
the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or any
subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(b)  any non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the
Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(c)  any customer, business or joint venture partner, advisor, consultant,
contractor, supplier, agent or service provider of the Company, any
subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or any subsidiary holds
any equity interest who is an individual; or

(d)  any full-time employee of any customer, business or joint venture
partner, advisor, consultant, contractor, supplier, agent, customer or
service provider of the Company or any subsidiary or an entity in which
the Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest,

who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or will
contribute to the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company
or any subsidiary holds any equity interest (collectively, the “Qualified
Participant”).
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Maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed the number of Shares that shall
represent 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(such total number of Shares being 13,694,117,500 Shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate”, being 1,369,411,750 Shares), excluding for this purpose options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company. As at the date of this
report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,369,411,750 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Qualified Participant

Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting in the manner prescribed
in the Listing Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any grantee if the
acceptance of those options would result in the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his options (including both
exercised and outstanding options) during any 12 month period exceeding 1%
of the total Shares then in issue.

Grant of options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme must be approved by all the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is also a grantee of the options).

Any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting if the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and proposed to be granted to him (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) in the 12 month period up to and including the proposed date of
grant:

(i) would represent in aggregate more than 0.1% of the Shares then in
issue; and

(i) would have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares
at the date of each grant, in excess of HKD5,000,000 (or such other
amount as shall be permissible under the Listing Rules from time to
time).

The grant of options shall be subject to approval by Shareholders in the
General Meeting.
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Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Qualified Participant by
written offer letter in such form as the Board may from time to time determine,
requiring the Qualified Participant to undertake to hold the option on the
terms on which it is to be granted and to be bound by the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme. The offer shall remain open for such period (not
exceeding 30 days, inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board may
determine and notify to the Qualified Participant. There is no minimum period
for which any option must be held before it can be exercised unless the Board
otherwise determined and stated in the offer letter of the grant of options.

An option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HKD1 by
way of consideration for the grant of the option shall have been received by
the Company on or before the last day for acceptance as set out in the offer
letter. The remittance is not in any circumstances refundable. Once accepted,
the option is considered to be granted as from the date on which it was
offered to the relevant Qualified Participant. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from the
offer date.

Subscription Price

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board but in any
event shall be at least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of offer;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Duration

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the
Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption. As at December 31, 2022, the remaining life of
the Share Option Scheme is around 2 years.

Since the listing of the Company and up to the date of this report, no share
option had been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

With effect from January 1, 2023, Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules has been
amended. The Company will ensure that any grant of share options in the
future will be made in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time) and related transitional
arrangements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On December 2, 2021, the Board approved the adoption of the Share Award
Scheme. The Share Award Scheme is funded by existing Shares of the
Company, and does not involve any grant by the Company of (i) new Shares of
the Company; or (ii) options over new Shares of the Company. No
Shareholders’ approval is required for the adoption of the Share Award
Scheme under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Purpose of the Share Award Scheme

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions
by certain Eligible Participants (as defined below) and to provide them with
incentives in order to encourage and retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

Eligible Participant

Subject to the scheme rules, the Board may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion select any Eligible Participant as a grantee for grant of an award.
The following persons are eligible to participate in, and be granted awards
under, the Share Award Scheme (each such person being an “Eligible
Participant’):

(i) anydirector (including any executive, non-executive and independent
executive director) of any member of the Group;

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), executive or officer of any
member of the Group;

(i) any person who is granted awards under the Share Award Scheme as an
incentive to enter into employment contracts with any members of the
Group;

(iv)  any director or employee of the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or associated companies of any member of the Group;

(v any person who provides services to the Group on a continuing or
recurring basis in its ordinary and usual course of business which are
material to the long term growth of the Company as determined by the
Board or the remuneration committee of the Company;

(vi) any consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise being
engaged whether on an employment or contractual or honorary basis
or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid) of any member of the Group;
and

(vii) any person as determined by the Board to be eligible to participate in
the Share Award Scheme;
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who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to
the growth and development of the Group.

Acceptance of Awards

The amount, if any, payable on application or acceptance of the award and
the period within which payments or calls must or may be made or loans for
such purposes must be repaid shall be determined by the Company from time
to time and may be specified in the relevant grant letter.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board pursuant
to scheme rules, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective from
December 2, 2021 to the date the last of the awarded Shares granted during
the scheme period has been vested and transferred to the relevant grantee or
has lapsed in accordance with the scheme rules, provided that no award shall
be made on or after the scheme period. As at December 31, 2022, the
remaining life of the Share Award Scheme is around 9 years.

Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares which will
result in the number of Shares awarded by the Board under the Share Award
Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued shares of the Company as at the adoption
date of the Share Award Scheme (i.e. 684,705,875 Shares), representing 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a grantee under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued Shares of the
Company as at the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme (i.e. 136,941,175
Shares).

Share Purchase Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme repurchased an aggregate of 506,388,500 Shares for a total
consideration of approximately HK$2,113,980,000 for the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.
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Unvested Shares and Share Grant Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme

The details of unvested share awards under the Share Award Scheme during
the financial year were as follows:
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Number of unvested share awards

FHBRALEYE
Asat Granted Vested Lapsed Cancelled Asat
Name or category Purchase January 1, during during during during  December31,
of participant Date of grant Vesting period price 2022 the year the year the year the year 2022
28% RIBZZ RZFZZ
fRsER BHAN BEH fEAE -B-B REARYE REARE  RERXY  REAESE +ZAS+-A
Five highest paid March 29,2022 March 29,2022 to Nil - 1463400 - - - 1463400
individuals March 27,2024
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Other employee March 29,2022 March 29,2022 to Nil - 48443300 - - - 48443300
participants March 27, 2024
AffeB2HE 3T CE - g
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3
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Total: - 49,906,700 - - - 49,906,700
e
Note (1): MysE(1)

To the best of the Directors” knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry,
no award had been granted to any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or their respective associates or connected person of the Company.

The awarded shares are subject to certain performance targets with reference to the annual results
of the Company and the Eligible Participant’s individual key performance indicators for the financial
year preceding the vesting date.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the awarded shares were
granted during the financial year was HKD4.010.

The fair value per awarded share granted during the financial year was HKD3.970, which was
measured based on the market price of the Company’s shares at the respective grant date. No
expected dividends were incorporated into the measurement of fair value. Information on the
accounting policy for the grant of awarded shares is provided in the note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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On January 16, 2023, the Board resolved to grant a total of 224,330,000
awarded Shares to 274 employees of the Group pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made
all reasonable enquiry, none of the grantees is a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or their respective associates or
connected person of the Company.

For more details of the share grant pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated January 16, 2023.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Divine Foods, Divine Foods-1,
Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the
Company dated August 25, 2015 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) as set out
in section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders — Non-
Competition Undertaking” under the Prospectus. The independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed and the Controlling Shareholders had
confirmed their compliance with all the undertakings provided under the
Deed of Non-Competition as of March 29, 2023. The independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the compliance of the Controlling
Shareholders with the Deed of Non-Competition and there are no matters
required to be deliberated by them in relation to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-Competition and considered that the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme purchased an aggregate of 506,388,500 Shares with a total
consideration of approximately HK$2,113,980,000 for the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries have purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended December 31, 2022.

MINIMUM PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as approved by the Stock
Exchange during the year ended December 31, 2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands (place of incorporation of the Company) or under the Articles of
Association which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year, nor was there any plan
authorized by the Board for other material investments or additions of capital
assets during the year ended December 31, 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Board considered that during the year ended
December 31, 2022, the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code, save and except for code provision C.2.1, details of which
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) by bands for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set out
below:
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Remuneration bands

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial

statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended to the
Board by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market trends.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award
Scheme” in this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was
4.4% by value of the Group’s total goods sales during the year ended
December 31, 2022, with the largest customer accounting for 1.1%. The five
largest suppliers of the Group comprised 10.9% by value of the Group’s total
purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounting for 3.0%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or a Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme, at no time
during the year ended December 31, 2022 was the Company or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable and
environmental friendly environment, we strive to minimise our environmental
impact by saving electricity and to build our corporation in a sustainable way.
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We have adopted a set of emergency planning, response and control
procedures as counter-measures for unexpected environmental pollution
accidents to minimise our impact on the environment and the adverse effect
on our business. We incurred RMB19.89 million (2021: RMB19.49 million) in
environmental compliance costs for the year ended December 31, 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in China
and Hong Kong in all material respects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
Relationship with our distributors

Consistent with market practice in our industry, the customers of the Group
are primarily distributors. This network penetrates a wide range of points-of-
sale, enabling us to sell products at all levels of the market, from provinces to
counties, villages and towns throughout China. As at December 31, 2022, we
had more than 6,620 distributors covering all provinces, cities and most of the
county-level divisions in China, and had approximately 13,100 dedicated sales
personnel to maintain and support approximately two million points-of-sale.

1.  Standard for selecting distributors

We select our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications, marketing capabilities, reputation, breadth
and quality of sales network, number of personnel, and logistics and
transport capabilities.

2.  Comprehensive support

In order to enhance our relationship with distributors and to provide
adequate support to the distributors in meeting sales targets, the Group
provides comprehensive support to its distributors. The Group develops
and executes strategic and tactical sales plans with the distributors,
provides support and implements incentive measures to promote sales.

Further, our sales team provides comprehensive support coverage in
various counties and cities. They contact and cooperate with local
distributors closely to enhance and maintain the relationship with the
distributors. A sustainable relationship with our distributors also helped
to expand the network of points-of-sales in China and the number of
products being sold in different outlets.
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3. Inventory management

We closely monitor the distributors’ inventory policies and movement
and ensure their policies and practices are in compliance with the
agreed requirements. The requirements include (a) the maintenance of
an adequate inventory level that equals to the estimated monthly sales
volume; (b) first-in-first-out policy; (c) evaluation of inventory based on
its aging and expiration; (d) age of inventory shall be kept within one
third of the shelf life; (e) if the age of inventory exceeds one third of the
shelf life, sales personnel shall cooperate with the distributors to carry
out sales plan to promote the sales of the specific products; and (f) if
age of inventory exceeds half of the shelf life, it must be reported to the
headquarters and the sales personnel shall cooperate with distributors
to undergo promotions in specialty channels to promote sales of the
specific products. We also conduct periodic stock taking and our sales
representative, sales manager and region manager undertake specific
responsibilities in respect of stock taking with the distributors.

Maintaining effective management of the sales team and distribution
network is crucial to sustainable development of the Company. We
established systems to enhance the management of personnel on the
basis of relationship development, and placed the development of
effective management as the core policy of the Company. With the
combined effect of systematic management and personalized
management, we have improved the cohesion and the capability of the
Company through systematic division of labor and effective
cooperation.

Relationship with our suppliers

We generally centralise the procurement of packaging materials and the raw
materials used in the production of our food and beverage products to take

advantage of economies of scale and to increase our bargaining power with

suppliers. We believe that our centralized procurement system enables us to
obtain more competitive prices and avoid regional or other price variation.
Our raw materials are generally available from a number of domestic
suppliers, and we normally have various source of supply for each type of raw
materials to reduce our dependency on a single supplier. Our suppliers grant
us payment terms that vary depending on a number of factors including our

relationship with the suppliers and the size of the transactions.
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We uphold the principle of equality and cooperation for mutual benefit and
maintain a sustainable and long-term relationship with various suppliers. To
ensure the quality of the procurement, we typically work with large reputable
domestic suppliers to secure the key raw materials used in our production
process, based on criteria like product quality, reputation, scale of production,
price and ability to meet our delivery schedule. Further, we established and
maintained a mechanism and database of suppliers to perform a detailed
evaluation and audit on the suppliers, which takes into account of
comprehensive indicators like food safety, quality control, financial strength,
technology research and development ability, environmental protection and
reputation in the industry. These indicators reflect the criteria we look for in
our suppliers under the long term development goal of the Company. We also
require the suppliers to comply with the commercial code of conduct of the
Group.

Relationship with our employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of the Group, the
objective of the Group’s human resources management is to reward and
recognise outstanding employees by providing competitive remuneration
packages and implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and progression
within the Group by providing adequate training and opportunities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the conclusion of the
AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Shihui
Chairman

Hong Kong
March 29, 2023
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EFELEREERE[KE

DIRECTORS
Xu Shihui (EF1iHE)

Chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer

Mr. Xu Shihui (5Ft#E), aged 65, is the founder of the Group, Chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company and was
appointed as a Director on November 4, 2014. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xu has been the chairman and
the president of Fujian Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Dali”) since its
establishment in 1992 and has served as the chairman of all subsidiaries of the
Group since their establishment. Under Mr. Xu’s leadership, the Group’s
business has grown from a local food manufacturing company in Fujian
province to a nationwide food and non-alcoholic beverage company in China
with a diversified multi-brand product portfolio focusing on high-growth
product categories. Mr. Xu has accumulated 35 years of experience in food
manufacturing industry. Mr. Xu has been a representative of the eleventh and
twelfth National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China (FFZEA
RAFMBEZEARMKERAS) in 2008 and 2013. Mr. Xu was also the News
Figure of China Food Industry Elite Forum of the 30th Anniversary of the
Reform and Opening Up (BN EREBEB0EFFEHE @I TEBEREMEAY)
in September 2009. Mr. Xu was appointed as a senior consultant of the third
session of the board of Quanzhou Food Industry Association (RN E &IT
#1%E) by the association in January 2016. Mr. Xu had also been bestowed
with following awards: the China Charity Award - Special Contribution Award
(FREEZREE — 15 RIERREE) by the Ministry of Civil Affairs of the PRC in 2008;
Nomination for the 9th China Charity Award (TEEZEE IR Z ) by the
Ministry of Civil Affairs of the PRC in December 2015; and the National Charity
Association Caring Entrepreneur (REIZEEE O RZEES) in January 2019.
Mr. Xu is the father of Ms. Xu Yangyang, the brother of Ms. Xu Biying and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Chen Baoguo. Mr. Xu is a director of Divine Foods and
Divine Foods-1, the controlling shareholders of the Company.

Zhuang Weiqiang (§{£38)
Executive vice president and executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Weiqiang (§¥F{£58), aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on June 14, 2015. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in 1998
and has more than 20 years of experience in management with the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has been the executive vice president of the Group in charge of overall
marketing and distribution of products of the Group since 2006. Prior to this,
Mr. Zhuang had been the general manager of Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. (&
EFBRARAE) from 2004 to 2006 and the general manager of Chengdu
Dali Foods Co., Ltd. (BRESEF B mBRAE]) (“Chengdu Dali”) from 2000 to
2004. He had been a financial specialist of Chengdu Dali from 1998 to 2000. Mr.
Zhuang graduated from the continuing education course of Sichuan
Agricultural Management Cadre Institute (P0) || 22 E P H# IR with a
certificate in business administration in January 2007. Mr. Zhuang obtained a
professional title as senior economist in Jilin province in January 2010.
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Xu Yangyang (3¥[5[53)
Vice president and executive Director

Ms. Xu Yangyang (5FB5R5), aged 39, is the vice president and executive
Director of the Company in charge of making corporate and operational
decisions and managing the day-to-day operation of the Group. Ms. Xu was
appointed as a Director on November 4, 2014. She is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. She joined the Group in 2008 and
has worked as a director and the vice president of Fujian Dali from 2009 to
date and is also the supervisor of various subsidiaries of the Group. With more
than 10 years of experience in the Group, Ms. Xu has held various positions in
Fujian Dali from July 2008 to date, including the chairman of the labour union,
workshop director and deputy factory manager. Outside the Group, Ms. Xu
Yangyang also holds various important positions, including serving as: (i) the
vice president of Fujian Association of Health Care Products and Cosmetics (&
BARRMEIRE) since September 2012; (ii) the representative of the twelfth
and thirteenth People’s Congress of Fujian Province (Bl 2EE+_RE&%H
+=/E AKRE) since March 2013; (iii) the honorary president of the third
session of Quan Zhou Food Industry Association (RN B @RITER D) since
January 2016; (iv) vice president of the fourteenth Quanzhou Federation of
Industry and Commerce (B+PUERMNT IEEBMSERIERE) since
January 2017; (v) standing committee member of the eleventh Fujian
Provincial Federation of Industry and Commerce (B2 & T2 e T H
+—E®ZEZE8) since August 2017; (vi) standing vice president of the sixth
session of the Standing Committee of Youth Chamber of Commerce of the
Youth Entrepreneurs Association of Quanzhou (RMH B ELERIFES
) since July 2018; (vii) committee member of the twelfth Fujian Youth
Federation Committee (B + _EREBSEMEETEEZTEE) since
November 2018; and (viii) committee member of Fujian Province’s 13th
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (f@8#2&
B#HE+=EZEEZEE) since December 2022. Ms. Xu Yangyang was
awarded the honorary title of the 16th Fujian Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur
(B NEREREF L EIEZETETR) in 2016, the Bearer of Red Flag March
8 (BE= NALFEFEEEHESR) in 2017, and elected as the Ten Outstanding
Young Entrepreneurs of Quanzhou (SRINTI+AEEH B ERZEZR) in 2018. Ms.
Xu Yangyang graduated from Xiamen University (EFIAZ) with a bachelor’s
degree in international economy and trade in 2005. Ms. Xu is the daughter of
Mr. Xu Shihui, the niece of Ms. Xu Biying and the nephew of Mr. Chen Baoguo.
Ms. Xu is a director of Divine Foods and Divine Foods-3, the controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Huang Jiaying (E{E¥)
Executive Director

Ms. Huang Jiaying (B{£%), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on February 8, 2021. Ms. Huang joined the Group as
investor relations director in September 2020. Ms. Huang has extensive
experience in the area of investment banking and investor relations. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Huang worked as the Vice President of investor relations
at Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from 2018 to 2020. Before that,
she worked at investment banks, securities firm and accounting firm from
2001 to 2018, including serving as a director at Bank of China International
Limited; as a vice president at Barclays Capital Asia Limited and Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Limited; as a research analyst at Lehman Brothers
Asia Limited; as a manager at BNP Paribas Peregrine Limited; as an analyst at
Platinum Holdings Limited Shanghai Representative Office; and as an auditor
at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (Shanghai) (B 2h & st EREF5FT(L8)),
specializing in the research of China’s consumer sector. Ms. Huang obtained
her bachelor’s degree in English for Finance and Trade from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in the People’s Republic of China in July 2001.

Xu Biying ($FE2)
Non-executive Director

Ms. Xu Biying (5FE3), aged 67, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on June 14, 2015. With 34 years of experience in the food
manufacturing industry, Ms. Xu Biying has been the vice president of the
Group, participating in the formulation of the corporate and business plans of
the Group, since the establishment of the Group in 1992 until 2010, and has
rich experience in the food industry and corporate management. Ms. Xu Biying
has over 20 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Xu received the
Certificate for Qualified Accountant (& sHET{EREEE:EE) from Department
of Human Resources and Social Security of Fujian Province (f882& ANE R
M ZRIEEE) (previously known as the Personnel Department of Fujian
Province ({872 A ZEE8)) in December 1998. Ms. Xu Biying is the sister of Mr.
Xu Shihui, the aunt of Ms. Xu Yangyang. She is also the sister-in-law of Ms. Chen
Liling and the cousin-in-law of Mr. Chen Baoguo.
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Hu Xiaoling (&AB%1%)
Non-executive Director

Ms. Hu Xiaoling (¥8BEES), aged 53, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. She was appointed as a Director on May 4, 2015. She is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Ms. Hu is responsible for
providing advice on investment activities of the Group. Ms. Hu joined CDH
Investments in 2002 and has ceased to be a managing director of CDH
Investments Management (Hong Kong) Limited, which is a Hong Kong
company incorporated under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on April
22,2003, with effect from May 31, 2020. Ms. Hu is also currently a director and
general manager of CDH Investments Management (Xiamen) Limited (5%
EEIE(EF)AEFRAR]), a manager of CDH Investments (Tianjin) Limited (4
BRI E (K 2)BPMRAT) and a director and manager of CDH Hetai
Investments Management (Xiamen) Limited ([REEFZREEIE(EM) SRR
AB]). Ms. Hu is currently a director of Belle International Holdings Limited (a
company delisted on the Stock Exchange since July 28, 2017, stock code:
1880), a non-executive director of Baroque Japan Limited (a company listed
on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, stock code: 35480) and Topsports International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6110)
and director of Hangzhou Beika Industrial Co., Ltd.. Ms. Hu had also been a
director of Anhui Yingliu Electronmechanical Co., Limited (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 603308) from March 2011 to April
2017; a director of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000333) from August 2012 to July 2017; and a
director of Beijing Motie Book Corporation Company from July 2010 to
December 2017. Prior to joining CDH Investments Management (Hong Kong)
Limited, Ms. Hu had worked at the direct investment department of China
International Capital Corporation Limited and Arthur Andersen. Ms. Hu
graduated from Beijing Jiaotong University (AEEX321@AZ2), previously known
as Northern Jiaotong University (575 22:8K&2), with a master’s degree in
Economics and Accounting and a bachelor’s degree in Economics. Ms. Hu has
also been a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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Ng Kong Hing (2 H)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Ng Kong Hing (527#8H), aged 69, joined the Group as an independent
non-executive director on March 28, 2022. Mr. Ng has over 50 years’ experience
in the area of accounting, taxation, company secretarial, financial
management, strategic planning and due diligence service. Since 2011, Mr. Ng
has been a director of K. H. Ng & Partners Limited (Z/BEEEMARAE). He
was the owner and director of K. H. Ng & Company (2 8B & 5+ 5#5F) and K.
H. Ng & Company Limited (2B ELEEF A FR2 B]) respectively for accounting,
financial management and taxation from 1977 to 2011. Prior to that, he
worked on auditing at . S. Li & Co. (ZEf@1H & 5HEMZE75FN) from 1973 to 1976.
He was a director of Lucky Industrial Group Limited (2 T ERBRAT)
for manufacturing of toys and die-cast products from 2008 to November 11,
2022.

Liu Xiaobin (2l/J\iK)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Xiaobin (2I/)MiE), aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on August 25, 2015. He is also a member of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Liu has been engaged in teaching Chinese in Xiamen University (BFIAZ)
since September 1989. He was an assistant professor of Chinese language and
literature from August 2007 to July 2010, and currently holds the position of a
lecturer at the Overseas Education College of Xiamen University. Mr. Liu
graduated from Xiamen University in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in Arts
(Chinese Literature) and Northwest University in China in June 1989 with a
master’s degree in Arts (Classic Chinese Literature).
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Lin Zhijun (HFEE)
Independent non-executive Director

Dr. Lin Zhijun (}EE), aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on August 25, 2015. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Dr.
Lin is currently an independent non-executive director of Sinotruk (Hong
Kong) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3808),
China Everbright Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 0165) and BOCOM International Holdings Company Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3329). Dr. Lin was an independent
non-executive director of Springland International Holdings Limited (a
company delisted on the Stock Exchange since March 2, 2020, stock code:
1700) from February 2008 to March 2020, and was an independent non-
executive director of CITIC Dameng Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1091) from October 2016 to July 2021. Dr. Lin has
been the Director of Academic Accreditation Office and Professor at the Macau
University of Science and Technology since July 2022, having previously
served as Vice President and Dean of the School of Business of the Macau
University of Science and Technology until June 2022 and August 2020
respectively. From August 1998 to January 2015, he was a Professor and Head
of the Department of Accountancy and Law in Hong Kong Baptist University.
Prior to these positions, Dr. Lin also taught at The University of Hong Kong
from August 1996 to June 1998, Lethbridge University in Canada from
September 1990 to August 1998 and Xiamen University (8P AKZ) from
September 1982 to August 1990. Dr. Lin worked at the Toronto office of an
international accounting firm from December 1982 to November 1983.

Dr. Lin holds a master’s degree in Science in Accounting from University of
Saskatchewan in Canada in October 1991 and a PhD degree in Economics
(Accounting) from Xiamen University in December 1985. Dr. Lin is also a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since August
1995, the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June 1995,
the Washington Institute of Certified Management Accountants since May 1995
and the Australian Institute of Certified Management Accountants since 2003.
He is a member of various educational accounting associations including the
American Accounting Association.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chen Baoguo (FREE)

Vice president in charge of production

Mr. Chen Baoguo (BREE[E), aged 53, is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Chen is responsible for overseeing and managing overall production activities
and quality control of the Group. With over 30 years of experience in the
Group, Mr. Chen has served in Fujian Dali as the head of production
technology development department from 1992 to 2010. He is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Xu Shihui, uncle of Ms. Xu Yangyang and the brother of the sister-in-
law of Ms. Xu Biying.

Mr. Chen graduated from the Professional Online Education Program in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) of Jiangnan University CLEIAES) in 2011
and further obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering with a major in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) from Jiangnan University (LFIAZE) in
January 2017. Mr. Chen was awarded the professional qualification of Grade 1
Senior Technician by the Ministry of Labour and Social Security of the PRC (4
#E A\ RHEME BT E1RFEER) in December 2008. Mr. Chen was awarded
the Certificate of Professional Technology Training by the Technology Training
Center of the China Food Industry Association (Bl & & T # 7 & firiEsl
FC)) in December 2007, and was appointed as a member of the Expert
Committee of the China National Food Industry Association (B8 & T 217
BHERXEEETZEE) during the same period. He was awarded the certified
qualification of senior baker by the Bakery Food and Confectionary Expert
Committee of the Society of Food Science of Shanghai (L8 BRED) in
April 2004.

Luo Bin (&)
Vice president in charge of beverage sales

Mr. Luo Bin (#8%&), aged 44, was appointed as the vice president of the
Company in January 2023 and is responsible for the marketing strategy and
daily operation management of the beverage sales segment. Mr. Luo has
excellent experience in frontline sales management and headquarter brand
channel management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo worked in the key
accounts and sales management departments of Swire Coca-Cola (China) Co.,
Ltd. from 2003 to 2009 and in the marketing channel department of Coca-Cola
BIG China from 2009 to 2014. Thereafter, Mr. Luo served as the regional general
manager and national marketing director of Nongfu Spring Co., Ltd. From
2014 to 2022. Mr. Luo graduated from China Three Gorges University with a
major in business administration.
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Fan Xinpeng (SEEE)
Chief financial officer

Ms. Fan Xinpeng (SB#l&), aged 44, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of the Group on March 22, 2023. Ms. Fan has professional experiences in
global investment banking, capital market financing, mergers and
acquisitions, as well as corporate finance management in the Chinese
consumer industry. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Fan was the chief financial
officer and group vice president of EastGarden International Group Limited (B
MEIPRERAIRAT]) from 2022 to 2023, an executive director and the head
of China financial and fintech industry under the investment banking division
of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited (EE1R £ Ff3FEEMNABRAF]) from 2010 to
2022. Prior to that, she worked in other leading global investment banks and
accounting firms from 2004 to 2010, including PricewaterhouseCoopers (Hong
Kong) (EEEKE G sHENETEFT(EA)), Merrill Lynch (Asia) Limited (2K (ER
INAFR/AT]), Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (New York) (fE2h& sHEM S TSR (4R
#)). Ms. Fan graduated from the University of Texas at Austin in 2004 with a
master’s degree in accounting, and graduated from Beijing Technology and
Business University with a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1999. Ms. Fan is
also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Chen Ying (Fk3E)
Company secretary

Ms. Chen Ying (BR%E), aged 37, joined the Group in 2016. She was appointed
as a joint company secretary on March 18, 2018 and has served as the sole
company secretary since August 27, 2021. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chen
was a lawyer at Shanghai Llinks Law Offices from 2011 to 2016, specializing in
capital market with extensive professional experience in securities issuance,
merger and acquisition, corporate assets reorganization, equity investing and
financing and post-listing legal and compliance matters. Ms. Chen graduated
from Xiamen University with a master’s degree in law in 2011 and graduated
from Southwest University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor’s
degree in law in 2008, as well as a bachelor’s degree (dual degree) in English
literature from Sichuan International Studies University in the same year. Ms.
Chen obtained her practicing certificate in Law in the PRC issued by China
Ministry of Justice. Ms. Chen is also a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Huang zhiqing (E&3)
Chief procurement officer

Mr. Huang Zhiqing (E&35), aged 56, is the chief procurement officer of the
Group and has held the current post since 2008. Mr. Huang is responsible for
supervising and managing the overall purchasing and supply of the Group.
With over 29 years of experience within the Group, Mr. Huang had served as
the head of the procurement department in the Group from 2006 to 2008, as a
purchasing manager in Fujian Dali from 1998 to 2006 and as a purchasing
specialist in Fujian Dali from 1993 to 1998. Mr. Huang was awarded the
professional title of senior economist by the Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Jilin province in 2012. Mr. Huang was elected as a
representative of the sixteenth People’s Congress of Quanzhou Municipality
(BHNERIMNHAKRNFE) and recognized as one of the Top 10 Professional
Managers in 2016 for Food Industry in Quanzhou (RN B RITE T —N
FEHEBZELIEA) in2017.

Le Zhengiao (44RZR)
Head of product research and development department

Mr. Le Zhengiao (#3RER), aged 45, senior engineer, is the head of product
research and development department of the Group (in the grade of general
manager in the Group headquarter) and has held the current post since 2007.
Mr. Le is responsible for research and development of new products and
supervising the quality control of the products of the Group. Mr. Le has over 19
years of experience within the Group.

Mr. Le graduated in 2001 from Shaanxi University of Science and Technology (Bt
FaRHE K2, previously known as Northwest Institute of Light Industry (FAIEES
T 253657), with a bachelor’s degree in Biochemical Engineering, with a minor in
Computer Application and Maintenance. Mr. Le completed the food safety
capacity building program organized by the Department of Human Resources
and Social Security (AJTERFM#T FIRFESS) and China Food Industry
Association in 2014. Mr. Le was awarded the professional qualification of
Engineer of Biochemistry by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Fujian Province in 2009. Mr. Le was awarded the Certificate of
Professional Qualification in Quality Specialization (B & ZE T A BREE
T&EEE) by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (F1ZE A RFHANE A F3F) and
the AQSIQ in 2005. Mr. Le was engaged by the Committee of Standardization
Administration of the PRC (FEIBIZKRIZZE{LEIEZEE) as a member for the
National Committee of Snack Food Technology Standardization (SAC/TC490)
(B & RIZECRMTZEE ) in 2009 and as a member for the National
Committee of Baked Product Technology Standardization (SAC/TC488) (=B
FESY LAZEE(EIMTZE ®) in 2004. Mr. Le was awarded the honorary title of
National Advanced Worker for Quality Works (2EE & T{E4ciE T1EE) by
the China Quality Inspection Association (I B £1%E&17E) in 2014.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with high ethical standards. This reflects its belief that, in the
achievement of its long-term objectives, it is imperative to act with probity,
transparency and accountability. By so acting, the Company believes that
Shareholders” wealth will be maximised in the long term and that its
employees, business partners and the communities in which it operates will
all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensure that its
objectives are met. The Board is committed to maintaining and developing
robust corporate governance practices that are intended to ensure:

— satisfactory and sustainable returns to the Shareholders;
— thattheinterests of those who deal with the Company are safeguarded;
—  thatoverall business risk is understood and managed appropriately;

—  the delivery of high-quality products and services to the satisfaction of
customers; and

—  thathigh standards of business ethics are maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the Company to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and enhance corporate value,
formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange and the Company has
adopted the CG code as its own code of corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended December 31, 2022
the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
save for code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, detail of which is explained in the
relevant paragraph in this report.
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The Board will periodically review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet the requirements of
the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the transactions of
securities of the Company by the directors and the relevant employees who,
because of their office or employment in the Group, are likely to possess inside
information of the Company, the Securities Dealing Code, on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors by the Company and all of
them have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and the
Securities Dealing Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2022.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for its leadership and control and be collectively responsibility for promoting
the Company’s success by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
Directors take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly
reviews the contribution required from a Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company and whether the Director is spending
sufficient time performing them that are commensurate with their role and
the Board responsibilities. The Board includes a balanced composition of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang

Ms. Xu Yangyang

Ms. Huang Jiaying

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Xu Biying
Ms. Hu Xiaoling

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan (resigned on March 28, 2022)
Mr. Liu Xiaobin

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Ng Kong Hing (appointed on March 28, 2022)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 48 to 56 of this
annual report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed under
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 48 to 56 of this
annual report.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of any
legal action against its directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by Mr. Xu
Shihui who is the founder of the Company and has extensive experience in the
industry. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same individual would enable the Company to achieve
higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating business
strategies and executing business plans. The Board believes that the balance
of power and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
Board, comprising the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing not less than one-third of
the Board) with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a board independence evaluation mechanism
which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure a strong independent
element on the Board as well as allows the Board effectively exercises
independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness, maximize
strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or further
development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the
Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance,
for instance, addressing individual training and development needs of each
Director.

Pursuant to the board independence evaluation mechanism, the Board will
conduct annual review on its independence. A board independence
evaluation report will be presented to the Board which will collectively discuss
the results and the action plan forimprovement, if appropriate.

All Directors have completed the independence evaluation in the form of a
questionnaire individually to review the board independence for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A board independence evaluation report was
presented to the Board and the evaluation results were satisfactory.

The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the board
independence evaluation mechanism and the results were satisfactory.
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Appointment and Re-election of Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company are appointed for a specific term of one year, and the term is
renewable for one year automatically upon approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the Group
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company.
The Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily
operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the following Directors participated
in the following trainings:

Directors Type of Training "ot
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Shihui AB
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang AB
Ms. Xu Yangyang AB
Ms. Huang Jiaying AB
Non-executive Directors
Ms. Xu Biying AB
Ms. Hu Xiaoling AB
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Hanchuan A,B
(resigned on March 28, 2022)
Mr. Liu Xiaobin A,B
Dr. Lin Zhijun AB
Mr. Ng Kong Hing AB
(appointed on March 28, 2022)
Note:
Types of Training
A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars, conferences and
workshops
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the website of the
Company and of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) and
are available to Shareholders upon request. The board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice and
other assistance under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 3 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting system, internal control and risk
management systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to discuss the audit
process and accounting issues with the external auditors and to review,
among other things, (i) the annual financial results for the year ended
December 31, 2021 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30,
2022 and the relevant reports prepared by the external auditors relating to
2022 annual audit and interim review plans and major findings in the course
of audit/review, (i) significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, (iii) the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, (iv) appointment of
external auditors and their relevant scope of work, as well as (v) continuing
connected transactions.

During the year, the Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice
without the presence of the management of the Company to discuss the audit
procedures and accounting issues.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration; as well as reviewing and/or approving
matters relating to the share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing rules.

To fulfill the requirement of the new amendment of the CG Code, the Board of
the Company has adopted a new terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee with effect from December 5, 2022. For the amended terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated December 5, 2022.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company and the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out
under “Report of the Directors — Senior Management’s Emoluments” on page
43 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning for directors, reviewing
the board diversity policy and director nomination policy of the Company, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to strengthen the performance of the Board,
promote effective decision-making and better corporate governance and
monitoring. The Company considered that diversity of board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, experience and cultural and educational background,
geographical, industry and professional experience, ethnicity, gender, age,
knowledge and length of service.
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Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination Committee has
recommended and the Board has adopted the following measurable
objectives:

(a)  at least one-third of the Board members shall be independent non-
executive Directors; and
(b)  at least one of the independent non-executive Directors shall have

obtained accounting or appropriate professional qualifications.

The above measurable objectives have been achieved. The Nomination
Committee shall continue to monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy and update/review the progress of its measurable objectives
from time to time.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group. The
following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the Group,
including the Board and senior management as at the date of this Annual
Report:

REFEENESGTE  RREEQREMES
GO T YIRS EIER

EL=p7—HNEFEREARBIIFHR
TEF &

b ELE-—BBIFRATESHEASHNE
ENFXERK -

R HEERDET - ER B RS RELS
EEY S L BRI B R B R A
HEISERE o

#RZ Tt

FRBERAEEESRENERN ST - TERH
IIRAFRAN  AEEET (BEEFERS
REEE) 145 LRIMELE

Unit% BB : %
Female Male
Category a5 7t B
Board o 44.44% 55.56%
Senior Management EREEE 33.33% 66.67%
Other employees HMEE 56.40% 43.60%
Overall workforce BREeT 56.40% 43.60%

The Board had targeted to achieve and had achieved at least 30% of female
Directors, 30% of female senior management and 30% of female employees of
the Group and considers that the above current gender diversity is
satisfactory.

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of the
Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company, the continuity of
the Board as well as appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

. Candidate’s age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
qualifications, academic qualifications, background and other personal
qualities

Impact on the composition of the board and the diversity of its
members

. Commitment by the candidate to devote sufficient time and effectively
perform his or her duties

The number and nature of the positions of candidates in public
companies or organizations or other administrative appointments or
other important work commitments

Potential/actual conflict of interests with the Company upon
appointment of candidates

Candidate’s independence

. Length of service of the proposed re-election of independent non-
executive director who has been serving to the Company

Other factors that the Nominating Committee considers to be relevant
on a case-by-case basis

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended December 31, 2022, Mr. Cheng Hanchuan has
resigned as the independent non-executive Director and Mr. Ng Kong Hing has
been appointed as the independent non-executive Director on March 28, 2022.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the 2022 Annual General Meeting. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board Committees
meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the year ended
December 31,2022 is set out in the table below:

<EATRIBISTRMRSCE AL

FRN > EFGTEBRNAARNEEERBERRS
R EEkSREEEBNEINIRGEEEER
AREEETENINGEERENBRAER &8
SIRETRIRESFEE TR URETEEERT
AR A E RIS TIFHATIREE -

ERENHE TR
TRENSEEHERE "S- _F+ 5
SH-BEEENSRTHNEFARESEETY
BURAATREAGEE |

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE BRERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Bl EFT EREZEET FHEST ReZS5g RERAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Shihui HBEE 44 NATER  NATER 171 1/1
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HEmLE 44 NARER  NARER  NATEH /1
Ms. Xu Yangyang B e 44 NATRER Yl NARBEH 171
Ms. Huang Jiaying EESYL 44 NARER  NATER  NATEH /1
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Ms. Xu Biying FEEYL 44 NARER  NATER  NATEAR 11
Ms. Hu Xiaoling tHES T+ 4/4 2/2 N/A R iE A N/A R A 1/1
Independent non-executive BUIFHITESR
Directors
Mr. Cheng Hanchuan 2E)kE 1/1 1/1 N/A i 1/1 N/A i B
(resigned on March 28, 2022) (R—E_—F
ZBAZ+N1H
FHE)
Mr. Liu Xiaobin 2/ ESTE 44 N/ATER 1/1 11 1
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEEEL 4/4 2/2 Y1 NATEH /1
Mr. Ng Kong Hing SBELEE 3/3 1/1 N/A B N/A i 1/1
(appointed on March 28, 2022) [
=ZA=+NH
BZT)

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 169 to 174.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. Ernst & Young, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set out below:

EFAMMBHRRNEE

EERNHEGRRAEERE_T_—_F+°A8
=+—HLIEFEAHMBRENEE

AABEBIUZEMEREN FHRRNBEETE
BEENE 169 B EF 174 BB IZEEIRER o

%S 6 Y Fr M
RBE-T-—F+-A=+—HLEEENER
BRI RIFB LRI A A A DML HEN 2K & 5t
BB RS HBM AR T :

Service Category BR#EEER Fees Paid/Payable
Bt EHER
RMB
AR
Audit Services BIZIRFE 4,500,000
Non-audit Services (including tax compliance service, FEEIZARTS ( &TE&FA%@HEF TRTEFEER
tax advisory, ESG reporting advisory and 1815 - ?iﬁ)i'z%:/éiﬁ EAnEIN
risk management reporting advisory) RREIEREEH) 660,000
Total &5t 5,160,000
COMPANY SECRETARY [EE
Ms. Chen Ying was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Companyon ~ BREEZ TR 22— N\FE=A+N\BEZEALXA
March 18, 2018 and became the sole company secretary of the Company with ~ BIZEFEABIME » TR -2 -_—FN\BZ+t
effect from August 27, 2021. She has satisfied the training requirement for the ~ BiEARAB ZH—ABME - R T

year of 2022 under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

FEEANNTET LHRAIE 320 FEEHEIE
E_R o
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of HKEX after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding together, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, shares representing not less than one-tenth of the voting rights, on
a one vote per share basis, of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
written requisition shall be deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office of the Company, specifying the objects of the
meeting, the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and signed by
the Requisitionist(s). If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Cayman Islands Companies Law
for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director of the Company” which is posted on the
Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally
deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following;
Address:  Room 2601, 26th Floor, One Harbourfront, 18 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.dali-group.com as a
communication platform with shareholders of the Company and investors,
where the financial information and other relevant information of the
Company are available for public access.

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has amended its Memorandum
and Articles of Association. Details of the amendments are set out in the
circular dated April 21, 2022 of the Company. An up-to-date version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s
website and HKEX’s website.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a shareholders communication policy. The policy
aims at to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the
Company’s shareholders, both individual and institutional, and, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, are timely provided with
complete, equal and understandable information about the Company
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments, governance and risk profile), in order to enable Shareholders
to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to enhance the
communication between the Shareholders, the investment community and
the Company.
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The Company has established the following channels for maintaining an on-
going dialogue with its Shareholders to communicate their views on various
matters affecting the Company, as well as to solicit and understand the views
of Shareholders and stakeholders:

1. Shareholders’ enquiries to the Company and the Company’s share
registrar regarding the information published by the Company and their
shareholdings respectively

2. Corporate communication (e.g. annual report, interim report, circular,
proxy form, etc.)

3. Corporate website (http://www.dali-group.com)
4. Shareholders’ general meetings

5. Investment market communications (arranging investor/analysts
briefings and group/one-on-one meetings, roadshows and media;
participating in marketing activities and forums for specialists, etc.)

The Company recognizes the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and will not
disclose Shareholders” information without their consent, unless required by
law to do so.

The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders
communication policy and the results were satisfactory.

Anti-Fraud Policy

The Company has also in place the Anti-Fraud Policy to safeguard against
corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has an internal
reporting channel that is open and available for employees of the Company to
report any suspected corruption and bribery. The Anti-Fraud Policy also serves
as a Whistle-blowing Policy as it sets out the system and procedures for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the Company to raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Internal Audit Division and
Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matters related to the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibility for Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Board of Directors, as the supreme leading organ in risk management of
the Group, undertakes ultimate responsibility for construction and effective
operation of the overall risk management system, takes charge of the
establishment, improvement and efficient operation of the overall risk
management system and has the discretion to delegate senior management
and operational division of each department in the risk management system.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Group is prepared to take in achieving its
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board has an audit committee which is responsible for overseeing the
appropriateness of the risk management and internal supervision procedure
and the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group, as well as
providing a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.
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Characteristics of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Group has implemented the risk management throughout its operation
and has established the internal control system in accordance with the 2017
risk management framework requirements issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“C0S0”) of the
United States of America, which covers five essential elements including
Governance and Culture, Strategy and Objective Setting, Performance, Review
and Amendment, Information, Communication and Report. It forms an
internal control system that adapts to business characteristics and resource
endowment, allowing for coordinated development in strategic goals,
performance and risk management, which provides reasonable assurance
that business operations comply with relevant rules and regulations, and
ensures reliable maintenance of financial accounting records in accordance
with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.
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Risk Management Organizational System

The Group has established a three-line monitoring system for risk
management, based on its practical business needs and with full
consideration of management efficiency and resources coordination, which
provides strong support for a healthy and harmonious development of the
company, ensures effective risk management and forms a long-term
mechanism. It contains the following roles and responsibilities at different
levels.

The Board of
Directors
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Figure 2: Risk Management Organizational System
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Line 1 comprises various functional departments as well as the subsidiaries of
the Group. As a risk bearer, it undertakes the primary and direct
responsibilities for the risks in business activities. Its main functions include
establishing and maintaining various risk management mechanisms for
departments/subsidiaries, continuously collecting original risk information in
daily activities and assisting the Risk Management Taskforce in carrying out
risk management work, including providing necessary data and samples,
determining significant risks associated with departments/subsidiaries and
identifying significant risk countermeasures.

Line 2 consists of the Risk Management Taskforce and responsible persons of
various centers and subsidiaries of the Group who are responsible for the
Group’s implementation of its risk monitoring and control work. The Risk
Management Taskforce, staffed by professionals from the Legal Department,
Human Resources Department and Financial Operation Center, facilitates the
improvement and execution of risk management and control measures
through the transfer and accumulation of professional knowledge and skills
as well as the coordination, integration and monitoring of risk exposures and
management in each business area. The primary duties of responsible persons
of various centers and subsidiaries of the Group are coordinating and
formulating the Group’s risk management and internal control policies and
systems as well as implementing major risk countermeasures and pivotal
internal control processes.

Line 3 is the Internal Audit Division, which is responsible for conducting
independent supervision and inspection of the risk management work carried
out by various business units and risk management lines, evaluating whether
the Group’s risk management mechanism is effectively implemented, urging
relevant departments or subsidiaries to carry out rectification in response to
the areas identified during the audit process, continuously following up on
rectification progress, and reporting the results of various audits and
inspections to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
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Achievements of Risk Management and Internal Control

Risk management is considered as an essential component of the Group’s
operational processes. The Group has developed a comprehensive and

R EERAMEEERETERR

EREREAEEMAEERREER R > &
ABELR—ENSEEEERE - 25 URR

systematic risk management and internal control system that is tailored to its MR A EIREAIITHI B R 0 MEB RS
management characteristics, which not only integrates risk management EBIEFERAZERIREHEIES > B UATENG
further into business strategies and daily operation, but also offers forward- (R AEHEIEEEKEIR - EXTERECERRE

looking support for the achievement of the Group’s strategies. The main

BUE ~ RREHEDT - EEREEEE « R

processes of this system include Collection of Risk Information, Analysis of  4&EEF1/E R EIEBE1L

Risk Assessment, Risk Countermeasures, Continuous Supervision of Risks and

Optimization of Risk Management.

Deepening and expanding the breadth and depth of risk management and control with a focus on

the underlying logic of risk relationships

RICAARARERENRE - BERRAEEERR

Targeting key risks to further explore their source and optimizing risk response and tracking system

HERRRRE  OTRERRRE @ EEREHREHER

Optimization of
Risk Management

=
Continuously optimizing the integrated and comprehensive risk management system and increasing Ji‘, Fﬁ =) }E{E ‘“Z

awareness of risk management within the organization

FEEC-RE2FURREERE  SERBREEER

Continuously tracking identified risks management through a top-down monitoring

Bi5R  BEMTEEES

Regularly monitoring and reviewing with bottom-up supervision
of the management process

EHER L BTmL

Establishing a comprehensive and sound internal control environment and developing

differentiated risk countermeasures for specific business

WEXEBRNAIEERE - SHHRERBHEZRCRREH R

Implementing detailed risk countermeasures to maximize the effectiveness of

respective functions of the “Three-line monitoring system”

AERBRELENE - RACRE [ZEHR] SRBEE

Formulating risk assessment standards to classify key risks
HIERBRFERE - SBERREAR

Introducing risk assessment tools for multidimensional analysis of the
causes of risk and comprehensive assessment of their potential impact
SIABRFHETA - ZHNUASMERKE - KAFHRBREY
Combining regular and project-based frequencies for risk assessment to

identify significant potential risks in a timely manner

ERRHERRERERBAES - REREEOEERE

Collecting external industry information and conducting industry
benchmarking analysis with a focus on key risks

SMEBRIFTRIE BB E - (TRHEN - MIEHAR
Paying attention to changes in external regulatory requirements
and perceiving market trends and keeping abreast of industry
dynamics

FESMNBESE BB L - REMIFEA - TRITRBIAE

Conducting dynamic management of risk information and
updating the Group’s risk database

RRESBHEER - EXNRERREEE

Continuous
Supervision
of Risks
R FEEE

Risk Countermeasures

[\ B P X 4 B

Analysis of Risk Assessment

BB AE 2 A

Collection of Risk Information

R RE B WE

Figure 3: Risk Management and Internal Control Process
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Collection of Risk Information

The Group continued to pay attention to and collect internal and
external risk-related information in order to effectively identify and
focus on monitoring various risk points with a combination of historical
data, future forecasts and risk appetites related to the industry. In 2022,
on the basis of identifying the risks related to business operation, the
Group updated the Risk Map by selecting, extracting, consolidating and
analyzing external risk information. Based on the 2021 Risk Map, risk
analysis and risk driver descriptions were added to Level 3 risks under
several Level 2 risks, such as Market Competition, Supply Chain
Management, Production Management, and Brand Reputation
Management to further enhance the comprehensiveness and accuracy
of the Risk Map from the perspective of risk cause analysis.

Analysis of Risk Assessment

The Group reviewed the current risk control management situation on a
regular basis, taking into full account the causes, consequences,
likelihood, scenarios and current countermeasures of the risks faced.
During the year, the risk assessment was carried out from both
qualitative and quantitative aspects. By means of questionnaires, expert
consultation, management interviews and quantitative methods such
as data statistics and modelling statistics, we understood the potential
risks in various business processes and corresponding
countermeasures. In addition, the Risk Management Taskforce guided
department employees to score each risk in the Risk Map in terms of the
likelihood of occurrence and degree of impact, combined with their
own business situation, and screened out the risks that the Group is
facing or will soon face. The Risk Management Taskforce evaluated and
classified risks according to the established criteria, which serves as the
basis for prioritizing risk management tasks.

During the year, the Group’s risk management effort has the following major AEE » EEEARSETENTIEERMEN
constructive achievements: :
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Risk Countermeasures

Based on the risk appetites of 2021, the Group determined the overall
risk management objectives and requirements for the year and
continued to improve risk countermeasures. With the direction of the
overall risk management objectives of the year, the Group refined the
key links of business management and control as well as risk
countermeasures to further step up efforts on the improvement and
optimization of normal and emergency response mechanisms, and to
clarify risk control responsibilities with practical implementation. To
better respond to external macro-economic and political changes and
the resultant market volatility, the Group relied on its emergency risk
response system and bottom-up reporting channels to give full play to
the initiative of the front-line business departments in risk response
with a view to further enhancing the precision, timeliness and
effectiveness of the implementation of risk countermeasures.

Continuous Supervision of Risks

The Group continued to improve its long-term mechanism for risk
prevention and control, focused on risk points to promote the shift of
supervision checkpoints forward, adhered to the risk management
system as the core and leveraged the role of departmental risk
prevention and control duties, ensured continuous detection, dynamic
control and effective prevention of highly concentrated risks. The
concept of normalizing risk supervision was established within the
Group to continuously track the progress of the implementation
progress of risk countermeasures, monitor whether risks were within the
tolerable risk level, set critical risk indicators to higher standards, and
ensure compliance with national laws and regulations and external
regulatory policy requirements. The Group established a sound risk
warning mechanism to improve the speed and quality of risk reporting
by proactively identifying emerging risks as early as possible with rapid
response and active intervention, and effectively responding to and
resolving risks brought about by internal and external changes of the
Group through the front-end risk prevention mechanism.

Optimization of Risk Management

Based on the Risk Map and internal risk assessment results, the Group
steadily promoted the optimization of the risk management system and
continuously improved the comprehensiveness and advancement of
the risk management system. Meanwhile, in order to better respond to
changes in the market environment, we accelerated the establishment
and transformation of a modernized risk management system based on
digital concepts. By focusing on the four dimensions of data, models,
systems and applications, the Group has explored business risk
identification, risk warning, cause tracing, simulation analysis and
solutions, and strengthened its intelligent risk management under the
direction of its day-to-day business and in accordance with the business
processes.
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Major Risks and Management Measures in 2022

Through the risk assessment work carried out during the year, the Group has
continued to advance its risk management efforts. The Group has identified
six major and potential risks in the industry. By integrating them with the
characteristics of the value chains in the food industry, and gaining an
understanding of the potential impacts of these major risks on the Company’s
core processes, the Group proactively pressed ahead with the comprehensive
risk rectification, specifically formulated and effectively implemented risk
countermeasures, so as to safeguard the stable and healthy operation and
development of the Group.

Procurement planning management
BRA T RIEE
Procurement order management
23 HE 435
Procurement supplier management
PR SRR EIE
Logistic and transportation

WREBER

Design and R&D
Rathr

Trial production and testing

HERR

Process improvement

TEXE

TR CFEREARKRERER

BEHERFERRIMGE I SEEAREEIE
FFERRIHEE - EEBRIH T /RIREKRRERRIT
FEEEE  HORMTENEEERR 188
EXREBRBABZOMENEERLE » RIRHES
ElRiraEEs A MG E X S WA ITREE
FEHIENE - HERTREBENESHRIBHFRE

Brand strategy

AR

Media cooperation

REEAE

Brand promotion

AR HE R

Production and processing Public opinion supervision

EEMT

minEE

Figure 4: Major Risks - Business Procedure
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In respect of its risk exposures, the Group has designed and monitored the
implementation of the following countermeasures through collation of
business processes:

hiFHF AR

ErRREERAEITERERS  FEEL
REM  SMTEPBENRSE B
BITERBIRBEEDE o LIk > fEE 7z it
f(Mz ) > thiga ML) » 519954
ZF 2009 EHEM—A) IERE » JHEEHH
BEIREEELERRE  HEREPR L
BERRAGTSEN T EREFTERN
e HEFER - MHEERBEEZHER
EHBELTTIK « BEEEREMIIRS
HEZEMNE BN BREESTESH
Lo ABFRERRAEHNE ST BRIEEE
BUBERKEE EEBEPENNER
HEER BERBEERTREFR
B RRIESHSHEETANRE » 1M
REFEEETHEERMA  BRAFELER

1. Market Competition Risk 1.

Currently, there are a wide variety of product categories with low
standardization in the food and beverage industry of China, coupled
with the characteristic of low entry threshold, resulting in a relatively
fragmented competitive landscape. In addition, with the rise of
Generation Z (“Generation Z”, also known as the “Internet
Generation”, referring to the generation born between 1995 and 2009),
consumers’ consumption concept has evolved towards health and
wellness, and the co-development of online e-commerce and offline
retail in the consumption channel has required the Group to meet the
diverse consumer demands in terms of product functionality,
promotion methods and product mix structure. Failure to compete in
this environment could result in reduced operating profit, market share
and revenue of the Group. In order to have better responses to changes
in the consumer goods market environment and evolving consumer
demand in China, the Group must focus its efforts on product mix

80

structure, concentrate on brand value, strengthen channel upgrades, LR o

and adhere to the brand concept to drive consumer behavior change,

so as to maintain the Group’s leading position in the industry and

achieve sustainable long-term development.

Countermeasures: FEEHHENE

(1)  Enriching brand product lines to build a product structure (1) REARBERGEEE > ITEERE

moat:

In 2022, bearing the principle of “Creating Quality with Heart” and
given the changing demands from our target customers and the
competitive market, the Group determined differentiated
positioning and strategic roles of each major brand’s product
lines among its three major segments, strengthened the brand
potential while continuously rejuvenating the brand,
consolidating the differentiated product mix structure.
Doubendou, a new popular product, firstly launched a high-end
organic-series product in the first half of 2022, which constructed
a brand-new “Plant Organic” series with organic pure soy milk,
organic soy milk and organic black soy milk to lead another
upgrade in China’s plant protein industry. In November,
Doubendou rolled out the oatmeal and chocolate-flavored
soymilk, catering to consumer demands for enriched tastes. In
the bakery market segment, Mei Bei Chen launched “Instant
Burger” to create a new consumption fashion and continue to
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break the industry pattern of short shelf life and medium shelf life
bread. Moreover, the “new creation from the old series” of
Daliyuan, Hegizheng and Copico further diversified their brand
products. Daliyuan added the “brand new little white roll”, the
upgraded version of Swiss roll to its product portfolio. Copico
launched the “chips with small curls” created under the product
concept of raw-cut potato chips, filling the product with youth
vitality. Hegizheng innovated plant drinks with the advantage of
traditional herbal tea, and launched a new style of herbal tea “He
Cha” to accelerate the reshaping of the herbal tea landscape.

Further implementation of omni-channel and multi-scene
planning strategy and setting clear goals for channels to
promote growth:

The Group has upgraded the planning strategy and refined
management for its channels from an “omni-channel slogan” to
“omni-channel operation”. In terms of the Group’s sales channels,
the online sales channel with multiple platforms and scenarios
has realized interconnectivity among users of online platforms
such as WeChat communities and official accounts for customer
acquisition. In addition, leveraging the connectivity of more than
6,000 distributors nationwide, we have restructured the layout
and management mode of offline sales channels and further
optimized the offline sales model with strong horizontal coverage
and vertical refinement, while setting up more rational goals of
omni-channels in a progressive manner and promoting the
monetization of sales targets for omni-channels. On the other
hand, in response to the change of how consumers are connected
to the media, the Group focused on user behaviors to achieve
precise targeting and improve the concentration of advertising
placements. After considering the reach, frequency and quality of
touchpoints, the Group set differentiated marketing goals and
matched the optimal media mix to ultimately achieve an effective
closed-loop of audience, time, location and content. In 2022,
Doubendou Soymilk increased its effort in brand communication,
focusing on CCTV prime time and channels with high
concentration of household viewers, and covering household
consumers through elevator media in the community.
Additionally, we have realized profound delivery of brand content
on new media platforms through targeted advertising. While
Doubendou joined hands with the television talk show, A Date
with Luyu, to cultivate Chinese soy milk consumer awareness, Hi-
Tiger was dedicated to navigation media to accurately cover
driving users, with a view to highlighting the value of energy
drinks and enhancing brand influence.
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(3) Tracking of market dynamics and going with reasonable
options for further market penetration:

We have established a diversified market information collection
and tracking mechanism to achieve dynamic monitoring of the
industry. The Group adopted diversified means of information
collection, mainly through on-site visits and research by front-line
business personnel, supplemented by data from third-party
market research firms and other methods to understand the
market situation and provide first-hand information for the
Company’s product positioning, pricing and tone, etc. For online
products, the Group delved deeply into the single small data of
high value, analyzed brand search terms and sensitive keywords
in e-commerce, and analyzed the highlights of signature products
of celebrities and viral products as well as consumer concerns to
thoroughly study consumer consumption behaviors and motives,
and improve market sensitivity to further release more value from
the online market.

Food Safety Risk

As living standards continue to improve, food safety and health have
become the primary concerns for consumers against the backdrop of
upgraded consumption. Food safety is an essential factor in the Group’s
entire industrial chain, from raw material procurement, product design,
production and manufacturing to transportation and logistics and
terminal sales. Failure to implement whole-process and closed-loop
control in maintaining food safety in terms of standard formulation,
process deployment, testing capability and production environment
may lead to inaccuracies, which could result in food safety incidents
that could damage the Company’s reputation and cause the Group
economic losses. As more and more consumers prefer a wider range of
nutritious food products, product features including zero additives,
sugar free and high protein will become a major development direction
for the structural transformation and innovation of the Group’s product.
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Countermeasures:

(1)

Refining food safety management system with all-round
upgrades on food safety quality:

In 2022, the Group has adhered to the policy of high quality and
stringent requirements for food safety and quality by attaching
importance to compliance, controllability and safety as the
cornerstone of its quality management system, with the three-tier
food safety management system as the core pillar and high
standard of food quality as the driving force to support
sustainable development. The Group promoted the multi-
dimensional deepening of the existing three-tier management
system while strengthening the top-down and bottom-up
interaction. The Group controlled the safety and quality standards
of the entire product line from a macro level with high profile and
high standards. It also delivered the food safety and quality
requirements to regions for regulation, and in turn, realized
refined quality monitoring of each factory operation. Each region
and subsidiary has formed a regulatory mechanism of “Unified
Management of All Areas”, following the Group’s quality
management policy to build an established food safety
management policy. The Group carried out multiple, diversified
and differentiated supervision through routine patrolling and
inspection by regional personnel and sampling of specialized
products, so as to eliminate regulatory “blind spots” and build a
solid defense line for food safety across the Group.

Dynamic update on quality certification systems and
coverage expansion of food quality control:

The Group has secured its leading position in the industry with
high standard safety management system and quality
certification. On the basis of meeting the 1ISO14001 environmental
management system, 1ISO09001 quality management system and
1S022000 food safety management system certification, the
Group has achieved full coverage of HACCP food safety standard
certification and Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point
(HACCP) system certification in its subsidiaries. In addition, the
Group’s inspection center has been certified by the China
National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS)
for over 200 items such as preservatives, colorings and heavy
metals, which ensures that the food quality and safety control
capabilities of the Group’s inspection center maintain a leading
position in the domestic industry and continue to gain
international recognition. Furthermore, the Group not only
participated in the formulation of group standards to enhance
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the market standard system but also jointly published the
Consensus on Nutrition, Health and Consumption of Soy Milk ((&
oh = & 2 BT B8 B 2 3 ) with the China Food Industry
Association to set an industry quality benchmark. Meanwhile, the
Group realized organic production from source to processing of
the Doubendou organic soy milk series, creating a full-chain
traceability system of organic soy milk products through “Product
Identification” of one code per box using organic certification
agency method.

Advancing digitization of food quality management by
building a food data testing platform:

To meet higher standards of food safety monitoring, the Group
optimized its organizational structure and established a
dedicated team for food processes and quality control as a part
of quality improvement in 2022. The Group’s high-standard
testing center is required to meet international standards in
relation to all aspects of safety testing, such as personnel
capability and level, laboratory equipment, environmental
requirements, and technical development capabilities. To better
align its products with the testing standards from the source and
safeguard new product development with strict control of the
whole process, the Group, on the one hand, has incorporated the
production concept of pharmaceutical companies into food
safety management, and on the other hand, conducted food
safety monitoring ahead during the research and design stage of
new products. Taking advantage of its existing quality equipment
monitoring system and visual monitoring and analysis tools, the
Group built an information-based testing platform, under which
corresponding testing techniques were designed for each
monitoring point through spectral modeling to carry out online
protein monitoring throughout the production process of
Doubendou yogurt products, to control the total amount of
protein and update online quality control technology. In 2022, a
total of 2,129 batches of internal and external inspections were
conducted, and the test results of which met the requirements of
national standards.
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Raw Material Price Fluctuation Risk

In 2022, the world economy was still under recovery as the aftermath of
the global pandemic lingered. As geopolitical conflicts fueled tensions
among countries and disrupted the efficiency of global supply chains in
the first half of the year, international commodity prices remain high
and fluctuate. This, coupled with other factors such as a rising consumer
index, fluctuation in exchange rates, and increased natural disasters
due to global climate change, have dealt a blow to the supply-demand
balance and price stability of the raw materials the Group needed,
including palm oil, eggs, soybeans and other agricultural and sideline
products, bringing tremendous uncertainties to the production costs
and going concern of the Group. If the Group fails to have a
comprehensive analysis on macroeconomic and the trends of raw
material prices and to make scientific forecasts thereof, or lacks
effective strategies to cope with adverse fluctuations in such prices, it
may not be able to acquire sufficient raw materials with the required
quality, and the Group’s production volume or quality may fall short
from expectations, which may have effects on its cost management and
adversely affect its revenue.

Countermeasures:

(1) Optimizing the establishment of our supply chain system
throughout the industrial chain to enhance its resilience:

The Group has stepped up to transform and upgrade its supply
chain eco-system. On the basis of the existing supply chain
network, we have differentiated the procurement management of
key and general materials with a focus on refining the
management of upstream suppliers. At the same time, as our
procurement of raw materials is subject to the characteristics of
traditional agriculture, which involves agricultural products,
farmers and cultivation activities, the Group has further
strengthened the resilience of its supply chain through external
acquisitions, internal development or exploring potential
cooperation opportunities. In order to ensure the quality of raw
materials for Doubendou, our organic soybean series, Dali has
established its own organic farms, where organic certification is
required for all agricultural elements such as water sources and
fertilizer to ensure the quality of soybeans. Similarly, to ensure the
supply of high quality raw materials, Copico’s raw-cut potato
chips are made from raw materials from the Group’s production
base of pure potato powder in Gansu, which has the largest scale
in Asia. In addition, the Group has further expanded its local
supply resources to enhance procurement efficiency and reduce
sourcing costs.
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Establishing a mechanism for forecasting and analyzing raw
material prices and further opening up the communication
channels with upstream suppliers:

In late 2021, the Group’s procurement department collected
information on the market prices of commodities and other raw
materials to conduct an in-depth analysis and forecast, and
formulated our procurement plan for 2022 based on the results
thereof, whereby we purchased in advance at particular price
levels to control procurement costs while securing inventory
levels. In the actual process of procurement, the procurement
department has performed its tasks according to the quarterly
procurement target and plan. Through longitudinal comparison
of historical purchase prices of raw materials, horizontal
comparison of market price fluctuation trends and the trade-offs
between market supply and demand, we have predicted the
future trend of raw material prices and set up differentiated
strategies for purchasing various materials. In order to split the
burden of rising raw material costs, the Group further promoted
cross-functional cooperation with upstream raw material
suppliers, opening up communication channels with
standardized and clear negotiation strategies, and enhancing
mutual trust with suppliers through multi-dimensional
communication.

Broadening the Group’s procurement mix with “multi-sources
and diverse means” to promote the structural optimization
and reorganization of raw material procurement costs:

With the prediction based on the macroeconomic and market
condition, the Group continued to optimize the current
procurement mix under the premise of “multi-sources + diverse
means”. The Group has established a mechanism for source
search and price consultation, enhanced our supplier
management and procurement price management, and
safeguarded the Group’s procurement process through various
methods such as advance procurement, off-season procurement
and long-term strategic cooperation. For raw materials with
frequent price fluctuations, the Group has locked in contracts
with material suppliers in advance to avoid adverse impact of
fluctuating procurement prices. We also entered into long-term
procurement contracts or futures trading contracts with futures
traders by way of forward points, so as to lock in raw material
prices in advance and control procurement costs effectively. In
addition, the Group selected the best procurement method by
applying a strategy that balances agreed prices and market prices
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to reduce the risk of market price fluctuations. In the actual
procurement of materials, the Group used cost regression
analysis or cost engineering practice to dissect and benchmark
the costs of different product lines, closely monitoring, analyzing
and controlling raw material costs through the introduction of
cost-oriented and value-oriented design, so as to facilitate the
Company’s cost management and operation optimization.

Brand Reputation Risk

Brand reputation refers to consumer’s comprehensive perception of,
among others, the brand’s product quality, service experience, brand
values and culture, which stemmed from their long-term opinion of the
brand. It is an important intangible asset of an enterprise that plays a
vital role in its sustainable development. Driven by demographic
structure, social changes and technological advancements, the
consumer market of the PRC is increasingly complex and diverse. Brand
reputation management ensures the stable operation of business
activities, and a positive brand reputation and corporate image can
enhance consumer loyalty and recognition, enabling the Group to
maintain its leading position in the market. If the Group fails to
formulate effective strategies to prevent brand reputation risks, it will
not be able to deal with reputation incidents in a scientific, reasonable,
timely and efficient manner, and negative public opinion may damage
the Group’s brand reputation and social image, which is detrimental to
the Group’s long-term development.

Countermeasures:

(1)  Winning numerous awards and building outstanding brands:

In 2022, the Group was listed on the Hurun China Food Industry
Top 100 and ranked 33rd in the “2022 Hurun China Food Industry
Top 100 (202288 B R E & mITZE B 58FE))". In addition, the
whole bean processing technology of the Group’s Doubendou
Soymilk won the Grand Prize of Science and Technology of China
National Food Industry Association. Daliyuan’s Landy Castle
Cookies have been recognized by renowned judges of the
International Taste Institute in Belgium and won the International
Excellent Taste Award. The Group’s successful implementation of
a multi-brand strategy has given each brand a unique
characteristic to meet diverse demands of consumers. By
continuously enhancing the brand image and value, improving
customer satisfaction and boosting product competitiveness, the
Group has upgraded its brand image, enhanced its brand
reputation, and propelled its growth.
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Strengthening public opinion monitoring and deepening
brand building:

The Group continued to optimize its public opinion monitoring
system and improved the team formation for handling public
opinion information. The brand department, quality department,
R&D department, sales department, President’s Office, legal
department and other departments jointly established a public
opinion crisis response team, which routinely screens information
related to the Group through search engines and make public
opinion analysis and early warnings, monitors the Group’s public
opinion information in real-time, reports the relevant public
opinion information in a timely manner, and takes targeted
measures to guide and resolve conflicts in the nascent stage.
Each subsidiary emphasized the education and promotion of
public opinion monitoring and enhanced employee’s ability to
solve public opinion crises through daily training, striving to build
a “firewall” for public opinion monitoring.

Forging ahead with social responsibility:

The Group actively fulfills its social responsibility by adhering to
serving society, giving back to the public and supporting social
welfare undertakings. In 2022, the Group was awarded the
Responsible Brand Award at the 11th China Charity Festival for its
continuous contribution in the field of public welfare. In addition,
the Group set aside RMB10 million as an elderly fund, which was
granted to senior citizens aged above 60 who do not receive
pensions in some villages and towns in Hui’an. As of 2022, Dali
Foods has granted old-age subsidies for 13 consecutive years
with an accumulated amount of over RMB100 million, benefiting
more than 100,000 elderly person-times in the local community.
In the battle against the epidemic, the Group donated over RMB5
million worth of supplies to anti-epidemic frontline units in
Quanzhou. The Group has integrated social responsibility with
brand building in its corporate development, focusing on the
improvement of brand reputation and social value to promote
sustainable development.
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Consumer Behavior Change Risk

Amidst the continuous evolution of population structure and society,
and the strong external impact of COVID-19 epidemic on customer
behavior and mentality, consumers’ consumption preference, habits
and confidence are constantly changing, leading to the emergence of
many subdivided consumption categories. If the Group fails to conduct
an in-depth analysis of changing consumer behavior in a timely manner
and keep track of the preferences of various customer groups in
different aspects such as product demands, usage scenarios and
product functionality, this may hold us back from satisfying customers’
needs with our products, and hence result in weak product
consumption, which would lead to the decrease in sales and market
share, eventually affecting the revenue of the Group.

Countermeasures:

(1) Seizing the changes in domestic consumption situations, and
vigorously accelerating the promotion of brand image:

The Chinese economy is going through the “post-epidemic era”
and will enter the “era after the epidemic” in the future. In the face
of the current changes in customers’ consumption patterns,
customers’ pursuit has shifted from “a price worth paying for
good value (PEfBLL)”, referring to products with good quality and
low price, to “a price worth paying for a hobby (E{&Lt)” and is
expected to returned to “a price worth paying for an emotional
need (MELE)” in the future. In view of the changing consumer
attitudes, the Group has altered the industry’s common “stacking”
approach to innovation. We have grasped demand by upgrading
core product and used high-frequency marketing methods to
create consumption hotspots and memory points, building new
scenarios with new products to discover new groups of customers
and develop new habits. Facing the challenges in the post-
epidemic era, the Group adhered to the product management
logic of “Bottom-Level Quality + Middle-Level Innovation + Top-
Level Ecology (KB mE+FEZRIF+IEE ERL)” to strictly
uphold the bottom line of product quality, construct a brand
development pyramid, and simultaneously pay attention to the
diverse demand of new generation of customers, represented by
the Generation Z, for quality, appearance, fun and health, etc.,
honing our brand tonality with rejuvenation, nutrition, and
health-nurturing as the three major elements in product designs
and upgrades.
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Conducting in-depth studies of consumer demand trends to
achieve precise layout of product structure:

The Group adopted a combination of internal and external
methods to conduct in-depth research and analyze customers’
information such as feedback, behavior and preferences. The
Group owns more than 6,000 distributors, 21 subsidiaries and 36
food and beverage production bases across the country. On the
one hand, the Group has strengthened its offline advantages of
zero contact with consumers, clearly understanding the
differences in consumer preferences between regions and
adjusting according to the tastes and preferences of regional
groups and customers’ consumption characteristics. In terms of
e-commerce channels, we utilized big data analysis tools to
construct user portraits of online consumers based on their likes
and preferences, with the purpose to develop targeted products
exclusively for e-commerce segment. On the other hand, the
Group cooperated with external industry research institutions or
third-party consulting companies to obtain customers’
information such as consumption habits and purchasing
motivations by means of various consumer research tests. To
better meet the consumers’ needs for younger, health-conscious
and wellness-oriented products, the Group innovated a fusion of
“flower + tea + herbal tea” flavor based on Hegizheng’s exclusive
patented technology of golden 2-hours “freshly brewed extraction
technology GRERZEEN)” and ingeniously designed the package
with fashionable Chinese style, launching a pure natural and
healthy herbal tea drink positioned as a “new style herbal tea
specially formulated for young generation (B EEE A 45 sBAYETIK
JRER)”. Doubendou organic pure soy milk, the first sugar-free high
protein drink under the brand, satisfied the health supplement
needs of various groups, such as individuals who limit their sugar
intake and fitness enthusiasts, with its minimal ingredients (water
and soybeans) .
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Macro-economic and Political Risk

Due to changes in the global pandemic situation and high volatility in
financial markets, the macroeconomic environment has intensified
uncertainties around consumption and investment. Economic changes
at local, domestic and global levels have affected consumer sentiment
and material prices. The Group faces uncertainties of the global
economic downturn, the slowdown in growth of consumption capacity
and the bottleneck period in the consumption upgrade of the PRC.
Failure to keep abreast of changes in external policies and regulations,
predict macroeconomic trends, keep up with industry standard
adjustments and changes in perception, and optimize and improve the
Group’s strategies and business layout in a timely manner may lead to
unreasonable decision making by the Group that impacts our key
business segments, such as product structure, quality and sales.

Countermeasures:

(1) Paying attention to policy and industry trends, enriching and
developing support resources:

In the current situation where the economy is still facing internal
and external challenges, the Group actively followed the policy
content of central and local governments related to the food
industry and relevant private and manufacturing enterprises
through public channels, and paid close attention to the newly
implemented policies and regulations related to the its main
business. Regarding the promulgation of new government laws
and regulations and industry-oriented adjustments or
modifications, the Group has timely and accurately improved the
Company’s systems and work processes to ensure compliance
with new regulations, policies and industry trends. In addition,
the Group and each subsidiary continuously sought and kept an
eye on local government funding or policy support projects in
various fields, including industrialization of agriculture and
e-commence. During the epidemic, the Group also received
support from the local government in various aspects including
labor coordination and tax contribution subsidies.
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Establishing a public crisis response mechanism and building
a public crisis security barrier:

To ensure the sustainability and business continuity of our
operation, the Group has improved its public crisis response
network from the “business disruption” and “public opinion
crisis” points of view in preparation for natural disasters, public
health incidents, social security incidents and other public
emergencies. The Group also focused on the coordination of
various departments and companies at all levels to respond to
unexpected challenges and has formed a systematic emergency
response force. On the production side, the Group has established
38 production bases in 21 provinces across the PRC through its
excellent deployment in factories and quality control system. The
decentralization of our factories allowed us to mitigate
centralized production risks while effectively integrate into the
regional economy to secure continuous supply and production
chain operation. In addition, the Group flexibly implemented
contingency plans for epidemics to ensure the health of
employees and production operation in case of resurgence or
aggravation of regional outbreaks.

Strengthening exchanges for collaborative development and
precise cooperation in the industry:

The Group actively engaged in industry networking events and
regularly organized experience sharing and exchange programs
with upstream and downstream enterprises in the food industry.
The Group has stepped up its effort in exploring and interacting
with benchmark enterprises, representative enterprises and
quality state-owned enterprises in the industry on aspects
including macroeconomic trends, frontier areas of the industry,
cross-discipline collaboration and optimization of raw material
cost control, continuously expanding the scope of cooperation to
further enrich the Group’s business acquisition channels or
broaden its ideas for competitiveness enhancement. Moreover,
by strengthening communication with downstream enterprises,
capturing market opportunities, leveraging our strengths while
improving our weakness, we join hands with our industry peers to
open up new markets in the new era and generation, with the aim
of increasing profits with concerted efforts.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
REVIEW OF 2022

The Internal Audit Division, in accordance with the annual audit plan approved
by the Audit Committee in 2022, carried out independent review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and major internal control,
covering financial control, operational control and compliance control. The
Internal Audit Division reported the audit results to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors, recommended rectification measures and exchanged
views with the management and took follow-up actions to ensure that the
management has put such rectification measures into practice.

The Audit Committee scrutinizes and approves the review results and
comments from the Internal Audit Division regarding the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and the risk management system on a regular
basis and reports major events to the Board of Directors.

As of December 31, 2022, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee have
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including adequacy of resources, employees’
qualification and experience, training programs and budgets of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Board of Directors is of the
view that there is no material deficiency in the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in terms of integrity, rationality and validity.
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ABOUT THE REPORT
Overview

The report is the seventh annual Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter referred to as “ESG”) Report issued by Dali Foods Group Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Dali” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries “We” or the “Group”) which is targeted at all stakeholders of the
Company and mainly discloses the Company’s management, practice and
performance on economy, environment, society and governance.

Reporting Period of the Report

The report covers the period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 (the
“reporting period”), with some information tracing back to earlier years.

Scope and Boundary of the Report

Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and data in the report
basically cover the Group’s headquarters and subsidiaries while certain
information on community is related to “Liangliang Education Trust
Association” of Huian County. The currency used in the report is RMB.

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” to Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Stock
Exchange”).

This report identifies and ranks important stakeholders and important ESG
issuers, determines the boundaries of the ESG report, collects relevant
materials and data, prepares the report based on the data, and reviews the
information in the report to determine the content of the report and ensure its
integrity, substance, authenticity and balance.
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Data Source and Reliability Assurance

The information and data disclosed in the report are from the statistics report
and official documents of the Company and have been reviewed by relevant
departments. The Company undertakes that there is no false record or
misleading statement in the report, and we shall be liable for the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness of the report.

Language and Form of the Report

This report is available in Chinese and English. The electronic version of the
report is available for reference. For more details about the background,
business development and sustainability vision of our Company, please refer
to the official website of Dali Food.

Report Preparation Process

This Report is prepared by working group, data collection, stakeholder
interview, framework determination, report preparation, report design, and
reviewed by departments and senior management.

Confirmation and Approval

As confirmed by the management, the report was approved by the board of
directors in March 2023.
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1. REINFORCING RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE 1.

The Group adheres to the corporate operating principles of compliant
governance and the core value of sustainable development, and builds
a solid foundation for achieving sustainability by establishing a sound
governance system and management structure, improving internal ESG
governance and strengthening business ethics.

1.1 ESG Governance

In order to achieve effective management of ESG-related works,
constantly improve our three-tier ESG governance structure and
practice sustainable development on all counts, we have established
a governance structure with the Board as the highest management,
the audit committee as the supervisory authority and the ESG
working group as the executive authority in strict compliance with
the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Listing Rules
of Stock Exchange and other relevant laws, regulations and
regulatory documents regarding corporate governance, in order to
promote the efficient and orderly implementation of ESG works with

a top-down approach.

The Board
=g

0Q0

N

Audit Committee

BEEAE

ESG Working Group
ESGI{E/)vl

MICRERE
REERTFERABENCEXEE R &
FOFEERNZOERES  BiBEE
REVAERRZREEANE  TERIMESC
AR RIEBFERERESN B
BERCEAREERITEREER -

1.1 ESGEA

AERBRESCHEBE TENERE
B BETEESC=EBAERRE B
TEEYFELERE  HMBEKER
(FREANRHRMBERBE) ~ PR
(MR ELEEABERAIERE
HRRRBEECHER > B THES
BAREBIEEE > BZEEgAE
B ESC TE/NEBBITHEDN
BEREE W EETERESHESGCT
TERN B MFE ©

The Board is responsible for assessing, defining and managing the risks associated with ESG
B85 BELEEESCRR

Ensuring that the Group has appropriate and effective ESG management and internal control
systems in place

BREERISBEENNESCEE R AIBEIERAS
Auditing ESG policies and reports
EMESCHERRIRE

Supervising the environmental, social and governance matters of the Group

EEAEERE  HERERBE

Making suggestions on the Group’s ESG strategy, and identifying major ESG risks and opportunities
BEASEESGER » UKEBIEXESCRB N HE

Approving and reviewing policies associated with ESG

HEE R ARTTESGHEBARIBER

Reviewing the Group’s annual ESG report, appropriately disclosing the ESG risks of the group,
measures taken and target progress, as well as suggesting the Board to approve the ESG report
FHAEENFEESCHRE  BEREAEEMELHNESCRE « S RN ERKERBZ
HERE  WEREEREBESCHRE

ESG Governance Structure

ESGAIREEIE
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Board’s Statement

As the highest responsible authority for Dali’s ESG-related matters,
the Board, who is in charge of supervising Dali’s ESG strategy, ESG
policies, ESG risks and the responsibility of reviewing relevant target
progress, fully recognizes the importance of ESG management to the
long-term stability of the Group’s operations. We always ensure
to incorporate ESG ideals into the Group’s policies under the
independent, efficient and professional ESG management of
our Board, and continue to explore new models of sustainable
development that integrates ESG with the Group’s business.

The audit committee, as the supervisory body of ESG related
matters, is responsible for identifying and assessing ESG-related
issues of Dali, and overseeing the Group’s ESG performance and
the effectiveness of its operating system. Based on the external
environment of the overall society and economy and its
development strategy, the Company holds ESG meetings on a
regular basis to review its ESG strategy, ESG policies, ESG risks,
target progress, and relevant ESG matters involved in the operation
of the Group, and evaluates the Company’s overall strategy,
business model and operating process with reference to the
progress of ESG-related works, in a bid to reframe and redefine the
primary focus in respect of ESG. A ESG working group, comprising
the department heads, has been established to formulate relevant
works based on the Group’s ESG strategy, ESG targets and
management approach, assist in formulating measures to prevent
and control ESG risks, and ensure the accurate implementation of
the Group’s daily ESG matters.

In 2022, Dali continued to practice sustainable development with
a greater emphasis on environmental issues. The Group carried
out various tasks in compliance with its ESG strategy during the
reporting period, and the ESG working group has made regular
report to the Board on major ESG-related issues, allowing the
Board to identify, with higher efficiency and accuracy, the risks
involved in our operation process, and hence carry out relevant
initiatives in a timely manner. In addition, the ESG working group
has reviewed, summarized and analyzed the progress to our ESG
environmental targets in 2022, which will serve as the foundation
of our subsequent works. Looking ahead, with the ESG philosophy
in mind, Dali will carry through its corporate responsibility and
commitment by stepping up its contribution and care for people,
environment and society.
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Communication with Stakeholders

Dali highly values the opinions and expectations of its stakeholders
to the Group. We have established convenient communication
channels to maintain active, mutual communication and
collaboration with our stakeholders, ensuring that their opinions
and suggestions will be responded to in a timely manner. As a
booster for the Group, such communication is able to continuously
propel our development and optimize our management, and
hence effectively promote the corporate’s sustainability.

During the reporting period, the major stakeholders who are closely
related to the Group that we identified including shareholders/
investors, government departments, suppliers, staff, community/
organizations/NGOs, medias, as well as customers. The following
table sets forth issues of concern from different groups of
stakeholders during the reporting period:

Groups of Communication channels/
stakeholders Issues of concern Feedback methods
Rezs A 4B 71 RN EESE BERE REARN

Shareholders/
Investors

BRRREE

Government
Departments

B RTERFT

Operation Results
Pandemic Response
Food Safety

Green Production
Climate Change Risks

EEE
i)
Bm&E
BBEE
RIzEERER

Food Safety

Green Production
Operation Compliance
BmEE

mEeLE

BREE

— General Meeting

— Investors Telephone Call

— Investors Conference

— Result Announcements Meeting
— Press Release/Announcement
— Online Reverse Roadshow

— Mail Communication
—KREXE

—KREEEH
—KREEREE
—EEEME

o L=V

— R RARE

—WHES

— On-site Research and Investigation
— Meeting

— BRAGEET

Y
— B
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Frequency/Number of times

SRR R

General Meeting is held once a year;
Investors Conference and Telephone
Conference are held irregularly

RERREEFET—R;
REEREGREEGNERRT

Irregular

T EHA
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Groups of Communication channels/
stakeholders Issues of concern Feedback methods Frequency/Number of times
s A LB R REREERE BaRE REHFR SA R
Suppliers Supply Chain Management — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Food Safety — Supplier Assessment Regular
g HIEEEIE — RIS EHR
Bm%ZE — HERE % TEHA
Employee’s Rights — Staff Interviews Irregular

Remuneration and Benefits — Internal Email/hotline
— Internal WeChat Public Account
— Employee Satisfaction Survey
— Employee Complaint QR Code

BT #n —BTE TEHR
#ENEF — WEBE T, EAR
— REMIE R
—BIREERE
— BITREF MRS
Community/ Green Production — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Organizations/ Food Safety — Meeting
[\ [clof
HEAL B4 Rk — G RA TEH
FERFTAHAR BmZE — g
Food Safety — Press Release/Announcement Irregular
Product Tracing — Interview
— Meeting
BmZE — Wt AE REH
Emig — &
— g%
Consumers Food Safety — Online Promotion and Release Irregular
Food Nutrition and Health ~ — Offline Promotion

— Contact Through Telephone/Email

— WeChat/Weibo

— Questionnaire

— Symposium
EmEe — iR LR REHA
BEmE B R — BN EEEE

— B/ BTN

— s /M

- ﬁ:ﬁ%

— BB
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Material Issues Analysis

In 2022, we have reviewed the issues related to ESG management
of the previous year, and adjusted our material ESG issues with
reference to the Group’s business development, industry policy
trends, media reports and ESG regulatory requirements. Further,
we have conducted an ESG-related questionnaire survey for our
stakeholders to obtain an accurate understanding on their
changing views and demands. By identifying and analysing the
major concerns of our stakeholders, we have developed a matrix
for material issue of the year.

BERMSZEEDN

B HMERLELL—FE
ESCEERRZEE e AFEEE
ERBRIEN - TEBESEE - 1558
RELURESCEEERE » HESGE
KEEBIET T o b4 » BRAEH
R AFRESCIERAREERAE » %
W T BRI ABVER B R KRB o 45
S ANREER > BAHR D
EHAEENEAEZEERE -

Identify Material Issues = X 1 % & & 5l

Collect and analyze information from media, conduct current industry benchmarking and other
measures, so as to identify the material issues that reflect the economic, environment and social
impact brought by the Group’s business, or that affect the stakeholders’ evaluations on and decision
made about the Group.

BBWELSITEEES  BITHRRMRESNX  BREAREREEEBELNSE - 48
REEFE Y ERE NG AEEFAIORRNER MRS -

Prioritize Material Issues E Kt B HEF

Conduct comprehensive and in-depth investigations on the identified material issues, so as to learn
the priority concerns of our stakeholders, and prioritize the material issues with reference to the
Group’s ESG development strategy and form a matrix for such issues.

SHHERBIHNEAEZERR2EMAANASES - UTHESABEEINERE  #5455E
ESGERER » EAMBEETHT - FAGEREIER -

Summary and Feedback #8458 [z £

Review the report to see if the identified material issues and relevant ESG matters have been
addressed to, and invite stakeholders to give their opinions and suggestions on the report.

CRHREARREHEEEEEHNEARERERESCHEEAR @ WHFEEERE AEHRE
ARRHERREEE -

Assessment Process of Material Issues

EAMEETLIBE

Dali attaches great importance to the identification and management
of ESG issues. We have, in accordance with HKEX’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide, updated and adjusted
the matrix for material issues in 2021 based on the materiality
assessment of various stakeholders on the company in the aspects
of operation, environment, society and employment, and have
conducted in-depth interviews and communication with a dozen
or so relevant departments of the Group, identifying a total of 11
most material, 6 moderately material and 3 less material issues. We
will actively carry out ESG-related practices and fully respond to the
expectations and concerns of stakeholders through the disclosure in
this report.
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LESS
MATERIAL

BESE

Integrity
EIAE]E 34

Water resources management

KERERE

Pollutant management
SR EIE
Carbon footprint

B R B

Packaging material management

MR EE

Response to climate change

FEHRIREME

Employee rights
BTis

Importance towards the Group HEBENEE M

Dali’s Materiality Matrix for ESG Issues in 2022

B _E - —fFESc EXMEEER

06006006000

List of Material Issues

BEXMSEERE
Employee remuneration and benefits @ Food nutrition and health
BT Hbl e BERERNMER
Employee development and training @ Intellectual property rights
BT #REEE EE
Employee care @ Product tracing
ST BB
Occupational health and safety @ Customer communication and service
EREEZS ERIBBERT
Supply chain management @ Customer privacy
e EIR EREEA
Product innovation @ Public welfare and charity
EmAIH NEBE
Food safety
BEmER
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1.2 Business Ethics

The Group is in strict compliance with the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Criminal Procedure Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Civil Code of the People’s Republic of
China, the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations applicable to the regions where it operates. A
system which is based on the Anti-fraud Management Rules has been
established and improved to reduce the risks of fraud and
commercial bribery.

We have established a permanent anti-fraud body and performed
integrity inspection work in the Group by following the processes of
prevention in advance, ongoing investigation and retrospective
handling, ensuring the healthy development of the Company. During
the reporting period, Dali did not have any corruption lawsuit cases
which have been concluded.
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System Guarantee

I EE fRPE

Integrity Inspection

RREE

Consciousness Raising

Bl

Strengthening controls: During the reporting period, we issued the Notice of Reiterating
Regulations Regarding Probity and Self-discipline. We emphasized that each
department and company of the Group should take full responsibility for maintaining
integrity and self-discipline among the team, and stamp out any form of corrupt
practices, such as attending banquets, accepting presents, taking bribes and asking for
benefits. We also strictly prohibited private banquets and misappropriation of
corporate resources for personal gain, while encouraged all employees to report any
irregularities that violates the regulation on integrity and discipline, in order to
constantly strengthen the development of a probity and self-discipline culture for the
Company

IEREE L HEHR > RMTEGINERRZBERENERN) > 18H
EEZEM  SAANEREEAZHERREEREEELE 118
MzERE) -« BREMHER « BIEFNBARADERZEIMF ~ XEFTE 8
THERBRZEEREMNRRRASTBIBER » TEINREXEREE
XA

Anti-corruption management of suppliers: We continuously strengthened anti-corruption
efforts among suppliers and distributors, explicitly stipulate in Suppliers’ Code of
Conduct, Regulations on Administration of Supplier Tendering and Notice of “10
Prohibitions” in relation to Strengthening Work Discipline for Marketing the prohibition of
any corruption

HEFREEERE  FENRERENCHESSFRHNREBEER
TECHEAE R 1T 2 T RN R AR E AR E )R N & i TIr4e =M+
HEE< ) BB PR E L ILE RS BHITA

Self inspection: Conduct self inspection activities in the headquarter of the Group
and all subsidiaries on a quarterly basis, strictly implement requirements of anti-
corruption

BEEEA  HEEEEA2EDFREISEECHHEBEBMUITE

BIEEERBERNENR

Regional spot check: The Group conducts regional spot check regularly in each
subsidiary and investigate corruption such as accepting gift money from clients
privately, holding private banquets and abusing power for personal gain through
company visits, staff questionnaire and peer appraisal

BEHE  EEFTEHHE D FREIETREMHE  BARBED

ETERHSLTEIARENNZEREE  WBER - UHEELS
EERR

Daily publicity: Always maintain general discipline requirements and put them
into practical work with consistent implementation and promotion of rules and
regulations

HEEE  AEENTERCERR BBREFEEH EFEEIIA
BI(Fh

Special training: Conduct anti-corruption training for directors and the senior
management

HEE R EFRSEETRERE

2022 Anti-Corruption Priorities
BRI ERAEBTIFERM
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To ensure an open, trustworthy and transparent business AIRERN - EREERNEER
environment, we are always open to internal and external scrutiny on B HRMEFZERAIMEAERS
the Group’s compliance and business ethics practices. We have also HEmEEEREETERNES
established diverse whistle-blowing channels for reporting WHIRE T LN BB EFEIREE -
corruption, well-developed whistle-blowing and investigation STEMNRRRATER > UREESEH
procedures and inspection procedures for corruption. We strive to, BEER > IREEEELEERT
comprehensively monitor the fraud risks in our business operations FAENEZRR > RHERRIEE
and hence prevent corruption effectively, through the establishment BRI BAEFERENA

of defense mechanism and optimization of control system.

Whistle-blowing Procedures

SREENRE
Feedback reception Verification and Investigation Award and Punishment
E R R EREE SRR
The Group has specially The report will be submitted If the report is verified,
assigned staff to manage to the Administrative and depending on the severity of the
the whistle-blowing Human Resource Department, violation, the Group may fine,
mailbox to ensure prompt who will verify it and fire orimpose other penalties on
response after receiving investigate the department the employee who violates the
any report. where the person being rules, while the whistle-blower
EELBE A\ STRRERHE reported is working at. will be awarded accordingly.
B EREIRREEER BRREEREETHRAS —EEFERENBE EEE
iSEAVE i3 B A $ 2R R A FRTEZBPTiE RIBRRISEREMLERE
TIZEEE T TSR BIRRE R D ERE
BT RIALER
In handling the leads, we make every effort to safeguard the ERRREIBRZT > RMIBEIRESR
whistle-blower and reported information, and strictly implement BARBREELZSE  BIEEERE
confidentiality measures to protect whistle-blowers from unfair it B RMARBRITAMZE
treatment and retaliation due to their reports. We are determined TRENFBNITERE - HNFS
to deal with any false accusations and leakage of whistle-blower BETANRERERARBRERT
identity in strict accordance with laws and regulations,thus 70 HPIBREOE R B AR RIE > 1)
effectively protecting the rights and interest of whistle-blowers. BRERBARER ©
1.3 Honorary Award 1.3 ERBHRIE
In 2022, Dali’s reputation for high quality products and services TECTF BESEENELNR
won us a number of industry awards and brand accolades, fully BOM » EFRERSTERIBN M
demonstrating the Group’s outstanding achievements in FRERE > TRERMT AEETEEER
corporate responsibility. Details of the awards are as follows: SHLEESB KR o BEFBUWT !
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No. Honorary Award Issuing Authority
Fsi B HESEE (i
1 2022 Top 50 Private Enterprises of the Manufacturing Industry in Fujian Fujian Province Federation of Industry and
Province (13th Place) Commerce
TR T FEREREEREDRFES058 (51311 EEETIHENKSS
2 2022 Top 100 Fujian Private Enterprises (22nd Place) Fujian Province Federation of Industry and
TR CHFEERERE 10058 (B 22110) Commerce
EEEIHERSE
3 2022 Top 100 Fujian Enterprises Quan Zhou Food Industry Association
TR T HEREE105E RINTHERRITERS
4 2022 Top 100 Fujian Manufacturing Enterprises Quan Zhou Food Industry Association
TR HFEERERE 10058 RINTERITERS
5 Annual Responsible Brand Award of the 11th China Charity Festival The 11th China Charity Festival
BT —ERAmEFEEEImES BT—EAmE
6 China’s Top 30 Innovative Products (Beverage) of the Year Jury composed of industry experts, intellectual
FREIER S EE BIFT 2 SR TOP30 experts and other parties
TEER - BEERSERNNTER
7 Ranked 33rd on the 2022 Hurun China Food Industry Top 100 List Hurun Research Institute
Qo2 tAETERBITETRIE) 53311 LR RE T
8 Ranked 338th among the 2022 China Top 500 Private Enterprises of the Published by All-China Federation of Industry and
Manufacturing Industry Commerce
2022 B SLIE 3 R B 1 3 500 52 5k 55 338 1L L T i
9 Superior Taste Award International Taste Institute (or iTi)
BIPRERAEE B PR LK SFEEF (International Taste Institute » f&
BT
10 2021 Special Prize in the Science and Technology Award of the China China National Food Industry Association

National Food Industry Association

PEERTEHENBRIME — T - —FHFKE

PEERTIERS

ENEREBBRAT | £ 2022 105



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS e NRERRS

106

E/0O

CRAFTING QUALITY PRODUCTS 2.

The Group always adheres to the principle of “Putting Quality and
Honesty First for A Satisfactory Customer Service” and carefully protects
our consumers with regard to food safety. We are market-oriented and
committed to R & D and innovation. We introduce world-class production
technology to promote product and process improvement. We are also
responsibility-oriented as we join hands with our supplier partners
to hold the line of defense for food quality and safety, and to build a
quality life for consumers.

2.1 Quality Assurance

The Group adheres to the philosophy of “creating quality with
heart” and attaches paramount importance to food safety. In
strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Regulations on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations, we integrate quality control into every work process.

Quality Management Mechanism

To efficiently guide the development of its food safety effort, the
Group has established different levels of food safety organizations,
namely, the Group Quality Department (Group level), the regional
quality managers (regional level), and the production deputy
factory managers (branch level). Through the collaborated
supervision of such organizations, we are able to maintain our
food quality with stable improvement. On this basis, during the
reporting period, we focused on the concept of “good quality
comes from craftsmanship, not test results”, and took “prevention
beforehand, improvement during the process, and review
afterwards to conclude” as the outline to gradually improve
quality and production management processes and systems,
and implement the “Seven Quality Management Items” to
comprehensively improve quality management.
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Process tracing

Process training

TEEI Quality defect
improvement

BREEH RERERE

On-site standard
35 45 35 &

Quality precaution
and control

HERE

Internal review
of process

TERE

Process training

T

Dali "Seven Quality Management Items"

7 TREEELAE

Grasp new equipment operation skills, new process requirements, new quality control awareness,
food safety precaution and control knowledge by continuously training and learning, to build a
solid foundation for technical operation.
WBIBERVIEIIMNEE » 2EFBIRBIRFREE TNITEER MR EEESH
B2 ENH > FETERIFER -

Quality defect improvement

m HiRfECRE

Use the principle of “PDCA”(“Plan-Do-Check-Action”)to promote quality improvement and rectify
quality issues.
3 'PDCAJ (TPlan-Do-Check-Action)) FRIBHE MBS T/E » Al FHSME ©

Quality precaution and control

HEMRE

The Group’s quality department regularly announces quality problem prevention and control
projects, and the branch companies conduct self-correction according to the projects to ensure
stable and controllable process quality.
%%ﬁgﬁiﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁﬁlggﬁﬁ
AERIT °

Internal review of process

TZRE

Check and prevent process quality deviations and defects, take measures to correct the standard
by a crossed coverage of Group-level supervision and regional branches regular internal reviews.
BREEERESEN KEDAREHAANEMBETRINES » FIET2HBHNTEE
M E TR > SREGEIEALRAREE o

Internal review of food safety

BEAE

Check and prevent food safety hazards in advance by a crossed coverage of Group-level

supervision and regional branches regular internal reviews.

%%%E@%E%ﬁ\k@ﬁlﬁ%%@%ﬁﬁ?Qﬁﬂgﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%’%mﬁ
o

On-site standard

BUSHRE

Implement 5S management on production sites; Set Group-level standards and organize
branches to implement 5S management as well as a reward and punishment evaluation
mechanism for a virtuous circle.

TERSEM-S B EEEEGERE - K&EBDREEESEE » BEETIEE
W > TER RIEBIR o

Process tracing

B2

Monitor abnormalities in production line and immediately rectify the abnormalities found in
product testing/review.
TERNHTGREARE Bl TEREREENE BN o

1

“55” refers to Seiri, Seiton, Seiso, Seiketsu and Shitsuke. 1 S5SE P Sk 1 BD ¥ 32 (Seiri) ~ ¥ 1B (Seiton) ~ B ®

(Seiso) ~ & & (Seiketsu) ~ 2 & (Shitsuke) » X & %5
THEZR] ©
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With a well-established quality control system and measures, our
quality control management has been highly acknowledged
by the industry. During the reporting period, one factory of the Group
obtained ISO 9001 Quality Management System certification, and 14
subsidiaries obtained HACCP, 1SO 22000 Food Safety Management
System, ISO 14001 Environment Management System certifications,

BETENESEERANEBE > &
MNEEEERITITENSER
Ao MEHARN > AEERBIRIK
BBISO0 I EEE IR ARG 42
BB K2 145 B /A B 1 18 HACCP ~ 1SO
20008 ZHZE2BEIEIEZ - 1SO 14001

in total. Detailed certifications are as follows:

Range of Coverage

BIFERIT

System Certifications

v'1SO 9001 Quality Management System
v 1S09001 EEEERR
v" HALAL Product Certification
v HALALBEE MmUY
Headquarters v CNAS Laboratory Accreditation Certification
4aag v CNASERERDAEELT
v Integrity Management System
v HEEEER
v Intellectual Property Management System
v NBEREERADEES
Headquarters and 7 subsidiaries in
Chengdu, Jinan, Hubei, Jilin, Guangdon
E an; Mua’a::shlaln’ Sl BRC Global Standards for Food-safety
. : v BRCEIXEMZEEIERZR
LBER R FLER T WL - 4K - BERAD - -
BERL7TXRBAR
v IS0 22000 Food Safety Management System
v 1S022000 EmEZ 2 EERR
Headquarters and all subsidiaries v" HACCP Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point System
BBRELHEAR v HACCPEE DT EARAIRITHIRAE &
v"1SO 14001 Environment Management System
v IS0 14001 IRIZ BIEEE &
Headquarters and 5 subsidiaries in Hubei,
Jinan, Shaanxi, Ma’anshan and Henan v Organic Product Certification
4B ReiAAdE « SEES ~ BREE « B v BHEMSSE
A s KBATR
Headquarters and all subsidiaries v Whole Grain Food Certification
AR 2 BRI A F] v REYE RN
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Quality Management Measures

The Group has established a “Chain-Style” Full Supervision Mechanism
according to product categories and local regulatory requirements.
The mechanism has a full coverage to ensure its effective operation,
including supplier screening and evaluation, verification of origin
inspection, inspection of raw and auxiliary materials, supervision of
production process, after-sale tracking service, and product recall. We
have set up a triple-level integrated quality control team, which
comprises the Group’s quality control department, the Company’s
quality control testing center and workshop quality control officers.
Currently, there are over 1,200 quality control personnel and technical
experts with relevant professional background and technical skills,
which ensure the full implementation of the Group’s quality
management mechanism, safe production, and product reliability and
traceability.

HFERE TG

Supplier evaluation

/ “ﬁﬁ”
PEEERR

“CHAIN-STYLE” FULL SUPERVISION SYSTEM

Dali “Chain-Style” Full Supervision Mechanism

7 regst) 2REERA

mEEEEE

FERZRBEMERN R EMEEER
BT e B E AR R A ST
[REMERERE « REAMRAERR
A EEBIERE - SEREHRRE
EmARy Ex) 2288558
o MRESEERBAEMRET &K
MRAEREEREE AT BERA
o B MEEE =R K
miEEE - BRI AFEMEEEEM
BT AERE R M E AR RKRIMER
E120085%  EERTAERES
EEER RELEEZEKRERA
FemliEH o
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Supplier Evaluation

In terms of materials procurement, the Group carries out a
systematic supply chain management leveraging on its digital
platform. We expand and optimize supply chain by evaluating
existing suppliers and introducing new suppliers; We maintain the
balance of our supply chain by a supplier elimination system.
Through procurement modes such as collective procurement and
tender, we avoid the supply risk caused by substantial fluctuations
in market prices, thus ensure the stable operation of production.

We have a well-established supplier management mechanism.
Besides of supplier’s production quality and price, we also give
priority to suppliers who perform well in environment qualifications,
food safety qualifications, integrity and labor rights protection,
and require Dali’s suppliers to sign the Supplier’s Code of
Conduct. In this way, we encourage suppliers to raise their
awareness on quality management and social responsibility
performance, so as to reduce potential risks in the supply chain.
As of December 31, 2022, the Group had 405 suppliers for our
centralized purchasing and their locations are as follows:

{HRER T

AEYEREIE  AEERITHTF
BETRMCNEEESIETF - &
BB HLEE A HER « RS HHRE
BEER > BRMELHERE ; @8
I E A FER ARG - AEsE (e L
BRI ; IBIBERR  BIESREEL
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%k%“%L&%ﬁ%ﬂ
b RIEELEERTET

FFIBIE T eENHER T EEH)
EiEEHE2ERKIREES « BI8K
AN BAEESRRBELD  BRE
2EHE - AERE S IERFRES
ERFRTOIHER o BFERER
EMAEm ST (I ERTAEN)
DU H#EEh I ERmIR A E 2 BRI
Rt EXRTES » BREHEEE
ARAB BEE_FS__£+_H
—+—H > KEEHFI05KEFK
BHER > HomBERIN TR

42

Northeast
China

ESylr

45

Northern
China

£l

20

Northwest
China

[iply

180

Eastern
China

=%

2

Overseas

=l

40

Central
China

| Southern
China

=
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Numbers of Suppliers by Region $#%th & 5 %5 B%Y {1 FE i 24 B

Supplier access 1 EF A

Adopt stricter entry standards for group suppliers and productive suppliers, bring food safety system
qualification and integrity standard, as well as labor rights protection into the standard;

HEE N HER RS EEHEERRINRARIEHNEARE BRAZEBAREEENMERE
& TR (R B RS A R AIREE Y

Carry out quality risk assessment of raw material quality, starting from, among others, supplier
assessment, technical specification of materials, raw materials testing and evaluation while giving key
attention to environmental protection issues during on-site audits, and requiring all raw material
manufacturers to obtain environment qualifications.

FRRANE SR TG MRS YRR S RS G SRS HR5E
1ZiB2 P EIRREREAS T ERRE XA N R ARSIRREMEEER;

Conducting target quality testing for heavy metals, microorganisms and other key food safety indicators,

and abnormalities are eliminating in a timely manner once found.

HEESE - MENSTRRLEE/MERETHHEEEWA —BRRRAEREFR

Perform on-site assessment to the suppliers on a yearly basis, covering the scope of supplier assessment

comprehensively to better maintain a good operation of the supply chain.

SEHHERRSETER 2HUBEHEHEZEE BirEEHRERTET

Provide solutions and technical support for any supplier found with problems during the on-site
review, and help introduce well-established quality and production management systems of their
corresponding industry.
HHIRSBEEXEIREEN R AERHRRS 2 RERNT 5 BB HER S ERTERS
TENESEERA TEEERAS

Supplier evaluation {1t FiE i 3% (%

Set up a supplier grading evaluation system, based on which we ensure that the well performing suppliers

stands out and those which are poorly run are disengaged. We give feedback to those found unqualified and
submit rectification materials to the testing center and reviews together with our procurement department,
quality department and technical department.

IR ERE S E REE TERETER S L HERAT RN MEEETENLE
> MRS EE DAL 18R RO B S PR B BD A E BB AT AR S 2R PTEITETE

Require suppliers to submit technical specification of raw materials regularly, and we will review the
relevant raw materials, ratios of additives and technical risk indicators provided in the specification.

SR EPRRZFEHLMTRE S MR E IR HEVER R R AR INAIEC EE ~ Bl B R E1R
EITEZe
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Supplier Management Procedures

Relying on a well-established supply chain management
mechanism, the Group empowers its supply chain in terms of
local supplier selection and technical exchanges, so as to
facilitate long-term cooperation with suppliers and to ensure a
healthy, positive and progressive supply chain development. We
have been maintaining an extensive multi-level and in-depth
communication with suppliers via emails, phone calls, WeChat
messaging, interviews, video conference and other tools, to timely
keep track of market information and relevant business
conditions of suppliers.

Local supplier
selection

<3 PE 3 A

Localized sourcing of key \
agricultural products and

packing materials such as

chook farming, flour
manufacturing and carton
manufacturing, to support local
enterprises

tRRE B RENMBEM KT

EEAEER - BB BIAD

X EMAEEDLE  HERED
\ EE IRFAHMEERR -

Raw Material Storage

Quality raw materials are the basis for quality products. The raw
materials procurement monitoring program is an important part
of the Company’s quality management system. We carry out pre-
storage inspection for each batch of incoming raw materials
strictly in accordance with acceptance standards of various raw
material. We collect and analyze the inspection status, and
evaluate them in the form of project point system.

We have established the “Quality Evaluation Criteria for Raw
Material Suppliers” to evaluate suppliers from four aspects: arrival
pass rate, acceptance project pass rate, supplier report compliance,
and supplier report provision completeness, and require suppliers
to rectify any problems. At present, our quality evaluation work
has covered all raw and auxiliary material suppliers.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

L&)

Technical exchanges
with suppliers

IR MR

R IR

KRN EE2NHEREIRERER > K&
Bt ERER « RMRER
ERSEHLFESE - (B R M IERB R
G > RIEMRE « T « HENHE
PR o WAYRATLM ~ BEE ~ I
BRI ARG HRERE > —HE
HEBRFZEREZ RANB
i REFRERMNEZETSESERE
R MERIEREERER

Achieving mutual benefit\
by exchanging relevant
equipment technology

with suppliers

BB R EREIR 5B BN
ERER B - EEER -

B A

BERNRRBEEERNER R
HEEBEIRFRAATEREE
BANEERD - RAREKESE
BRI BR RIS AR,
TABATER T RBRNIERET
WEERISH » REVER B HIER
EEATHME -

PRI T(RHEEREHEEES
RETERRE)  HHEBIESEER
BRUNEEAKRE - HEBRENS
M~ RS RE T EEESE
ETIHE » HEENREEREER
ETEN - BAT > RANESFET
FERBEFIANREEHERER o
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Production Process Supervision

Dali fully implements product inspection to ensure quality and
safety during production. Equipped with a professional inspection
team, we continuously introduce machine inspection equipment
such as automated chips packing machine, automated egg-yolk
pie packing machine, auto aligning machine, palletizing robot for
bottled-drinks packaging, PLC control panel and program for
equipment, and integrated central controllers of production
equipment, to strengthen the management of food safety and
test accuracy in production procedures.

Finished Product Inspection

We have set up testing centers in each of the factories under the
Group to efficiently complete all testing projects for food,
beverages and all raw and auxiliary materials and products by
equipping them with world-class top-notch monitoring and
testing equipment to ensure the quality of finished products. We
formulated internal Annual Food Safety Sampling Inspection Plan
and sampling inspection mechanism in accordance with Measures
for the Administration of Sampling Inspections of Food Safety (No.
11 Order of the State Administration for Market Regulation) and
GB/T 30642-2014 General Guidelines for Food Sampling
Inspection. By formulating internal sampling inspection and
external sample procurement, samples are uniformly assessed
and tested by the Group’s testing center, which is accredited by
CNAS (China National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment).

During the reporting period, a total of 1,645 sampling inspections
were conducted, covering almost all conventional food and
beverage products and new product projects, and the sampling
results all met the requirements of national standards.

L EBREEE
ENEEEEERWRATIIE  REE
REEERETNEERSE o FHE
ERKRER > BN AR
B BESIEEREETOH &R
TREBEE « BEEEHEE B e
SERE IR T ~ SR PLCEESI ER K
2 ~ EERBEER PSS
TE > aEEROENERZEN
BRI E R AR o

RR e R ARl

KRB EARERSE TRRE LA
i iR B BIFR BRI MK TR BE
HEE > SN Em B RTE
FEHEMNERNZHRAIER & &g
REEMMEE - BfIRE(EREZE
HERREESEITE) ERERERE
BEBHEESHE115E) (GB/T 30642-
4B mEEEEBEAERD)  FIE
THESB(FERRZ2HETE)
i i o BB BRI ELEE
1% Bamii— EE|£“<LCNAS(‘:F‘.A7F5Z
EIEIEE Té% AEBENE
B iR PR — ﬁﬂﬁ .ETE*D?‘EM
1) o

AN - REE SRR 1,645
R BEABEABRENRAN
FHEMMTERER » G RIR
BEIEBEER -
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Raw materials,
Finished Finished Production Inbound auxiliary

Finished product product ingredient inspection materialsand
products batch inspection records records packaging
tH FERE a number record EERH by S materials

Product Tracing and Recall

The Group has established product quality tracing mechanism
and built an efficient information tracing chain from procurement,
production, delivery to sales by digital management tools. Dali has
established the “Product Identification and Traceability Control
Procedures”, as well as a complete product batch tracing system
with separate code for each item, thus achieving effective product
information traceability. During the reporting period, we added a
laser spray code printing system to prevent bugsell, and tested its
impact to the shelf life and packaging of the products. With spray
printing QR code on the bottle, the company can scan the code to
prevent goods from bugsell, realize the positive tracing of
products, and quick check of product flow.

Dali Product Tracing Chain

& o iB

RESREEHSR I AR RERECE

A quick response mechanism has been established specifically for
quality issues. According to the Administrative Measures for Food
Recalls, we have established internal management policies such
as the Product Withdrawal Control Procedures and Non-Conforming
Product Control Procedures, which regulates the implementation of
Group’s product recall activity, the disposal of recalled products,
and corrective measures. During the reporting period, the Group

EmEfEgm
REBREL T EmBSBMEE - 4K
ST LEEFREBRETHERE &
B B EIHENSME BLBiE
18 o EEF AL T (E SR AT B W
MEFIIER) > WiEE— S &
17 RENEMTETENEIERS
BEREMEENEXEM -REH
A BPNGIN T B R ERVEE B R
@ WHERNWRERMSEZER
o BB ENEAE TR _E AN >
AEBIBR R U BRI RS
BIRERNIEREY  REEHESR
By o

RS
aRy

RPSHHEEEHRIL T IREREE
# 0 k(R mAREERE) HIE
T (EmEEESIEF) (T a8 R
EHIEF) FREEERR  HEA
SEERARES AOEMEE
A EFETEE TIFOVR/R - MEHEIA
FEBRELEEMERBOEMS -

did not have any product recall.

Dali Product Recall Procedure

EfERZERE

OETEUL G Recall Identlf' cation Separatlon Evaluatlon Dlsposal
products
FEEm
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Quality Training

To increase employees’ awareness on food safety, the Group
actively carries out training on professional knowledge and skills,
and endeavored to spread the quality and safety culture to all
employees, including production workers and managerial
personnel, thus creating a good atmosphere for maintaining food
safety. During the reporting period, we launched a three-tier
quality management training program based on the “Group-
Region-Branch” structure, and conducted monthly consolidation
and study on critical quality issues.

Meanwhile, the Company issued excellent quality improvement

cases and commended outstanding individuals. By holding special
quality meetings, we leveraged the leading role of exemplary
individual of excellent quality to promote the stable development
of the Group’s food quality.

Quality Training Venue

HE15IRS

BEE
ATEHRERSEINEMZEEH
AEBEBBHEE XA
il BANREEREXEEREE
BLEEAB - EEBABZETANEE
BT ZERFNRREZEAE - &
SHEN > BPHAETUTERE — &1
— DRFE HRRBNEEEEE
ANTrE > SRERBNEEMEET
HIRERSE o

EE > AR EMESEBRFHED
KEFEBAA  BRORFEEEES
& BIREEEFEEEARHER
BERA NBHEERREERTER
B
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2.2 Innovation and Development 2.2 BIFREAZE

Dali has always been committed to innovation-driven enterprise EEF AR NP LB Se 8 1 2 2
development, as we constantly innovate production technology. B BIEEERMEN HMELT
We have established a scientific R&D innovation system, which PEBpREEEIFEE R » LUERAERN
based our progress on product R&D and technological innovation. RITBIF A > 5IBITENERES
Leading the development of the industry, we gradually formed four | EPERT REREMERER s ZA
major product lines, including pastry and baked goods, potato HREFEER S B FHIEE R~ Br
chips, baked goods, and beverages. These achievements LZNAERRY > BT8R E T HEHE
represent the journey of Chinese enterprises from “Made in China” R TRERE Br THEAE)
to “Manufactured in China”. IR R ERAE ©

R&D Innovative System

it 5% RURRRE B

Product R&D Technological innovation

Bt Pl RIAR

1k

Establish and implement a complete
set of R&D processes involving
product planning, laboratory R&D,
trial production, R&D validation,

product evaluation, and product R&D

conclusion

BIUIHITIEMRE BREFE
Emaf RS EmmsT Em
WEEmEE 1 N—BERERIZ

1k

Actively carry out independent
innovation, introduce technology and
joint venture projects, increase
investment and increase patent
application and improve patent
management

TEIBFRE B R SIERMAMEE
RS ER - MARANEL TEEF
ERATIEE

Dali R&D Innovation Management System

EFI AN EERER
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R&D Management

R&D innovation is the most important driving force for the company’s
development. The Group has invested in the establishment of a high-
level product R&D center, and continuously optimized the R&D
innovation management system by establishing a strong R&D
team equipped with world-class R&D equipment. During the
reporting period, the Group’s investment in R&D and innovation
amounted to RMB75.25 million, representing an increase of 8.6%
compared to that of 2021.

R EE
MEAMR AR SRS —BE T -
FEBRERT T SKFERFES
Do iBIBAR SR ARV EEERX ~ BCfE
tH RICENRERE - FEECHE
BIFTEIEAE R o MEHIN » AEEM
B e R Hr R A EE R 75258 7T » HEER
RIZET—FIEBINT 8.6% °

R&D Project Management
e IEE EIE

Cultivating R&D Talents
e AAIEE

Protection of Hardware
Facilities

EHRERE

Proposals of Innovation
Encouragement

ERRIARR S

. During the reporting period, we launched the R&D project management system to standardize a

series of R&D processes such as project establishment, project implementation, project review,
project approval, project research and development, as well as project conclusion and
evaluation, effectively improving the efficiency of collaboration among various departments and
achieving orderly, efficient and accurate R&D processes.

BRESR - ZM LG THHEEERERS > KIEEYIE - HE SR - HESZ  HE#H
o IHBE  BEEERTMES —RIIMERIZARB - ARURSSZEFIHIERE
BERARF - B~ EEVESBIE -

R&D staff are the “engine” of the Company’s innovation. We continue to explore, develop, and
enhance their scientific research capabilities through scientific research project cooperation
and professional training. We have established an incentive mechanism for R&D personnel to
form a positive mechanism for R&D innovation and talent retention.

HEEASR QTR M) > RABERAEESFE FEEFINIEAFR >
ETIZIE ~ BREE « RFERIEE S o FRAIERILIFEE AN BRBIET] > FZp b3 RURRAI A A
REBHRMBIRMES o

Focusing on the research and development of new products that consumers love, we have built
a corresponding technology platform and continue to invest in the latest equipment. For
example, during the reporting period, we put into use an ultra-high pressure homogenizer
(1,200bar), which helped our preparation and process research of producing whole soy series
products and whole grain series products, and reducing energy consumption.
EINMEHEESENER  RMAEREREN TS » FEBRART IERE - 6
90 FRFIERSHRRAER T B2EERK (1,2000an) » AREZRIER « 2B FH
P Em > EREAERE S BETIRAIM/EM LEME -

Actively carry out equipment innovation and improvement projects, collect and promote
employees’ proposals for beverage and food equipment innovation. Encourage employees to
work together to promote stable product quality and production efficiency. In 2022, we had a total
of 1,574 cases of innovation and improvement proposals and 162 cases were implemented.
BIREERERMNSIEER » IWETHEES THINEN - BERRHAMER > &BET
FERE)  HRREERESREMEENERA - 2% » BMHWEIRAIFE
RZE 1,574 » HEEMEF 1621 ©

Dali R&D System Guarantee Measures

EFRERAREFR
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Innovation Achievements

The Group has been focusing on the research and development
of new products favored by consumers to meet the growing
diversified dietary needs of the market. During the reporting period,
we continued to expand our product lines and comprehensively
upgraded our service functions, quality, packaging, and culture to
provide consumers with rich food choices and experiences. During
the reporting period, we comprehensively modified classic
products such as Dou Ben Dou, He Qi Zheng, and Copico with
innovation, the result of which are as follows:

BIFTAR

FERE-HFEINMEEEEEEN
MEMR nEHHAmERNZT
ERRRTR - HEHRN > HIFHER
RERIFER  HE - E 8%
XAEEHZEETE2EAR > FTLUHE
EEENNREENER RSB
A RMESZAZ ~ FHIE ~ AltEse
FRAEMBEETEZEAN 0 Al
PRSRINT :

Dou Ben Dou: promoting organic culture and opening the doors of plant organic products for consumers

BAE  UARXIEEE A HEERAMEMERNEE

118

We launched a series of plant organic soy milk products with rarer nutrition, including organic whole soy milk, organic
pure soy milk, organic plain soy milk, organic black soy milk, etc., to meet the requirements of high-end families for plant

organic life.

HEEEDPERNEVERENRIER  BEAREI  BRASY - BRERKRE > BRESDHE M

ERnRENEMEREENER -
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Hegizheng: embracing the younger, better, healthier trend

MEIE : EREFE - EnHE - EREED

Hegizheng, as an innovator of herbal tea, connects young consumers and launches the Hegizheng herbal tea, a daily drink
suitable for “nourishing life”. It is an innovative product in that flowers and tea are added to classic herbal teas, changing
the perception of traditional Chinese herbal medicine in herbal teas. There are two flavors for this new product, namely
gardenia oolong tea and roselle black tea, which are specially made for young people. Herbal tea packaging is designed in
collaboration with well-known illustrators to achieve an upgrade from taste to texture, expanding the boundaries of the
herbal tea industry.

MEELURFRIFRHER » SFFEHEE > #H TAEH > B8E ) MAEEMZ > BIELHRREPMA
TIEMS > BT RAFRPEENDA > HHEFHRER « BECARMEO > REEARH - HFxEE
B R mEMEERst > BREORBERAR > HRETRFEXNER

Copico: Rejuvenation and quality upgrade

AILESRE @ FEEME « mBEEHR

We launched the Copico potato chips with a trendy and innovative design that improves the “appearance” of the chips
and matches the taste of the younger generation.

WL R/ NEMER - BIBFEFRRCOAIMRE » REEBR A TEFELEEE

. The packaging was upgraded for pure-cut potato chips and compound potato chips, and a new logo of “Mr. Potato” was
launched for Copico pure-cut potato chips.

HEMBERNESERET TREAR  HHAJERAYIBREMER T£EXE1F
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Daliyuan: meeting the demands of consumers

ENE  EHEERER

120

We launched a new Chayou tea beverage series, which enters the pure tea and fruit tea market with sugar-free and low

sugar products.

R UIUGRERI RS oK ~ EREERTAMZ - RETH

Producing products including but not limited to wholemeal rye bread, Tiramistu and Meibeichen ready-to-eat hamburger.

TEER2E/)EE  BRIUARIEERIAIREESER

FSTANT
B R

Industry Cooperation

By constantly enhancing cooperation and communication, the
Group accrues leading scientific research capabilities in the
industry and carries out all-round collaborations in various fields,
continuously providing consumers with high quality innovative
products and services. During the reporting period, Dali initiated
various collaborations with our industry partners and higher
education institutions.

< We participated in the establishment of national and
organizational standards, including National Food Safety
Standard: Standards for Use Food Nutrition Enhancement
Products (GB14880), Standards for Cakes and Bread Hygiene
(GB7099), etc.

< We joined the “National Soybean Intensive Processing
Industry Science and Technology Innovation Alliance”, of
which our employee Meng Haipeng was appointed as
director, which significantly improved the soybean industry
in terms of quality and efficiency.

< We jointly applied for the establishment of “National Food
Industry (Plant-based Milk) Technology Innovation Center”
with Academy of National Food and Strategic Reserves
Administration and China Agricultural University, to promote
the development of the plant-based industry and carry out
industry-university-research cooperation.
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Intellectual Property Protection

The Group strictly abides by the relevant intellectual property
protection laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law
of the People’s Republic of China, and the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China, striving to promote the awareness of
intellectual property rights protection among employees and
create a fair and transparent business environment while
protecting our intellectual property rights from infringement. In
2022, we achieved fruitful results in protecting intellectual
property rights, with a total of 346 applications for trademarks, 26
appearance patents, 12 inventions, and 131 copyright registrations.

We deepened our regular intellectual property management
work, continued to promote the trademark pre-screening, reserve
and maintenance mechanism, improved the patent early
intervention system, and optimized the copyright registration
protection mechanism. During the reporting period, we
comprehensively implemented the cooperation mechanism for
intellectual property rights protection. Based on the “Basic
Handbook for Rights Protection and Cooperation”, we mobilized
the sales team (discoverer), the person in charge of the production
company (person in charge), and the group’s legal affairs
(cooperator). Different types of cases were properly handled.

I EERE

AEBBREF(FEARENAEZ
FEN P EE A BB EZ R (2
AN RBHEMEZEERER) S5 # AR
EERARER > EREDSENME
ERZRIENER ISR AORREABT
AR ERRERN  TEQATY B
BARERIBIE « “T— — 44 » HME
BT EmMWAARERENSE > £REE
1234618 ~ EN1S SN EREF 2618 ~ 2587
1218 ~ iREEEC 13118 ©

RARECERMENNBEREET
B HBHERRTAD « IR iEE
Wl > STEEFRAN AKS 0 B1E
MRIEZ SCIRE S o IREHR > I
ST AN E ARG (RIS > L
(HEREERS 52 T-1) 248 - SR
EEXERAN)  LEERTDEEA
(BEA) ~ &BEH BIEA) =755
B HIAPHRENEGETZER
o

Fighting counterfeits and defending rights according to the law and maintain market order

RITIRAERE - MEETHIRTF

Based on the Basic Handbook for Rights Protection and Cooperation, our subsidiary in Chengdu timely cooperated with the
Xichang Public Security Economic Investigation team to investigate and deal with a counterfeit trademark case of “Hi-Tiger”,
involving 7,637 pieces of goods with a sales value of more than RMB330,000. Two suspects were arrested as a result. In addition,
through the introduction of a professional lawyer team in daily work, our “explicit visits” from our daily sales team to the market
and the “unannounced visits” from the lawyer team have helped us discover violations of the Group’s trademark, packaging,
trade name and other rights. We consolidated the evidence in the form of evidence preservation, prosecuted the relevant parties
involved in the case, claimed compensation, recalled infringing products, and changed the name of the infringing company,
forming a normalized anti-counterfeiting rights protection system.

MGHERIBIFE 5 ) A EH > EN e REERHARNRERREAHEARKEABRETE T —1BRE 4R 8RR JEE
B76371 > IHESEIBEHIT  MELRREREAMA c i FEBLIER@IBSI AFTEEZMER - LIHBHEEKES
iZHY TBA5A) MR EEMER (B85 - HIRELREEBR « 85 - FRFEMNNTS > UBBERENHREEHERS © L5718
PRI BREE  OWERER EEEEEELBAERMTR  WRERCITRERER -
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In addition, the Group attaches importance to the promotion of tEoh » REBEFEANHERRERH
intellectual property protection awareness and cultural promotion, WIRAEXEEE » T8 ~ NEHE
and conducts various forms of special training and promotion on TEASENRHERSERZIIFNE
intellectual property on a regular and irregular basis to stimulate o HEEAS T HNHERRENE
the enthusiasm of our employees to safeguard intellectual property x4 o FREHRA > S E AR E AN
rights. During the reporting period, comprehensive training was HERERERET T 2ENE
conducted on intellectual property laws and regulations for W [B & SIE T IS X CEBRE
e-commerce pages, and a guidance document E-Commerce Page BEFM) > BRRLVEEHEEE
Review Manual was produced simultaneously to effectively reduce 1740

illegal acts in e-commerce sales.

2.3 Nutrition and Health 23 EEHEE

Dali has always been committed to creating a better quality of life EN—ERINAHEEREETE
for consumers and continues to carry out research on nutrition EmE FERRSEREERH
and health, enabling more group of people to enjoy nutrition and x IBBRHEENEREERGES
health through our provision of quality health products. In 2022, ABETERHRER  ZS " "F>
we strengthened the development of nutrition and taste of our RPN EREBEMEKRS BRI
products, and continued to introduce innovative products with B FETHELENE S ERE BB
low sugar, low fat, low sodium and organic nutrients with great HHNEEREATER KT HES
health benefits to provide consumers with a wider variety of BLEMNEEEE ) mEHEERR
choices to meet their increasingly diverse needs. LIFEREK o

Focusing on Plant Nutrition

HHEmER

122

Dou Ben Dou organic pure soy milk: the product is made from organic raw materials, reducing the use of chemical
fertilizers; no added cane sugar, only organic soybeans and water are used as ingredients; 0 sodium soy milk production
technology is used. The product is designed with zero-sodium soy milk production technology and high protein formula
with 3.8g/100ml protein to meet nutritional needs.

SASERMTY  ERFAAKER ) AL TEENGER ; BANERE > KR REBRAZHNIK ; KBoMEME
ERAT - MAZANSEQRA KT > 25 3.8g/100mER 7 mEEERENK

Dou Ben Dou organic whole soy milk: innovative whole bean process, whole bean grinding, to stimulate the original
nutrients of soybeans. Each box contains triple native organic nutrition: the first native nutrition contains 2.6 grams of
native vegetable protein per 100 ml, providing daily protein nutrition; the second native nutrition contains 3g of dietary
fiber per box, which helps maintain normal intestinal function; the third native nutrition contains 3 mg of gamma-
aminobutyric acid per box, providing a high nutritional value option for high-end families.

SATAEKEEN AIMEETIE  ROE > HEASNREEE BRoA-EREAKER S ERLEES
SHEACA 2 RREEYER  RUSHAREREE  F_EREEEEETAgERAE  BErldErsn
ERERNBEYSE  F-EREEEE2SAIMgMBRaETE  henERENEHRERERE
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Low Sugar Beverage Recipe

EREHEAEEC

Hegizheng herbal tea: by adding flowers and tea to traditional herbal teas, the company has created two individual
products: gardenia oolong tea and roselle black tea, using a freshly brewed extraction process and a 40% sugar reduction
formula to provide a healthier beverage choice.
MEEHMZ | ARTEFRRFRAINTEES  FRLEFSRANSHIEAXMRER » FRRARENTE > &R
BHE40% BT - SR TE DR ER RV B B

. Chayou: using sugar-free formula and low sugar formula to reduce the amount of sugar used

U RA ONEEC S MEREEC S - BV IEERIER

Low Sugar and Low Fat Snacks

BEREEETR

Daliyuan wholemeal rye bread: made of wholemeal rye, there is less fat in this product, which increases the nutritional
value of the bread.
ENER2EEC  RARXENTIEETLE AV EREE  RAEEEEKT

. Haochidian soda cracker: with low sugar and high dietary fiber, it gives consumers the concept of low sugar dietary fiber
health.
FIZEEFITENE, | (BERRERAM A HBEETREEEEEEREESR

Reducing the Use of Artificial Coloring

ALOATIBRER

. Daliyuan egg yolk pies: to avoid the use of artificial coloring in our egg yolk pies, turmeric and annatto (natural food colors)
instead of tartrazine are used for the lemon flavor, and cochineal and annatto instead of carmine are used for the
strawberry flavor.

ENEERK  BRALBRER > SSERKHERSESARANZENRISEE - EErkh /RIS
I i e AT AR P A 1

Small Capacity and Packaging Product

NEE - DERER

. We pay attention to the health needs of consumers, and launch a variety of small-capacity, individually packaged
products, allowing consumers to reduce calorie intake while enjoying delicious food. For example, we provide a single box
of small packages of the new Landy Castle cookies with four different flavors to meet the diverse taste needs of young
people.

RPTDHBEENRRE R HHEZNEE BUEBEER  BHBEETEZZERNARMBE-RBERA < gl
BRATESEHTNRATFREBL -2k a4 - MEFEABSROKER

Examples of Nutritious and Healthy Products in 2022
e FERRREERATH

In addition, Dali actively implements the “healthy China strategy” and tEoh  ERIRBRE TR P B E
promotes the concept of living a nutritious and healthy life. By B HEEEBERBENEEES - &
launching nutrition and health science popularization activities, we BB EEERENEEE T
continue to improve public nutrition awareness and guide consumer e AREEEN S| EHEERE
groups to form a healthy lifestyle. FRBEENEFA
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In March 2022, the “China Soy milk Industry Summit” was hosted by the China National Food Industry
Association with the support of Dali, in which the nutrition initiative of “drinking two cups of milk — soy milk
and milk — a day” was proposed, and relevant leaders from the Institute of Nutrition and Health of the
Chinese Center for Disease Control and Prevention, academicians, nutrition associations and other
domestic experts jointly advocated drinking soy milk and milk together for a more balanced nutrition.

T oFZR ATERMIFHE N ENIEN [TEENHEXES] 817 24
[GRMINY) - SPHANFE] HERER  BFEPEREPOERREFEMBMAEY Rt
LERDEEENERERAAERINFNH—RE - 2'FHE -

During the two sessions (the National People’s Congress (NPC) and the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference), NPC deputies advocated for the inclusion of soy milk into the national
nutrition program, and Dali launched a nutrition campaign through Weibo and with nutritionists
to promote professional soy milk nutrition knowledge.

fEBMEHRE - ARRREATHAABREE S EFHAMERERMARE
PDEREFTRENERSE -

In May 2022, with the campaign of the “National Nutrition Week”, Dali, together with the Nutrition
Guidance Committee of China National Food Industry Association and 100 nutritionists,
advocated drinking two cups of soy milk per day, including soy milk and milk, for a more
balanced nutrition. At the same time, the 100 nutritionists held three online nutrition science
lectures on Douyin. As a result, the nutritional value of soy milk was fully recognized by the
nutritionist circle within China, and the educational campaign on the nutrition of soy milk was
also promoted by nutritionists.

STooFEA  EREY [RREER]  BATEASIEGEERREZAY
E100M & BANHFEEGRMMZY) - SRFE  €BFHE - BRALEE
B ERIERKAR TR E=SEBNESH  ELNERERANEBMBEERD 2
EERA - i T EBMU ST NEBNHEHETE -

In September 2022, Dali joined hands with the China Food Industry Association and the Institute of
Nutrition and Health of the Chinese Center for Disease Control and Prevention to launch China’s first
Consensus on Soy Milk Nutrition, Health and Consumption (2022 Edition) to promote the nutritional value
of soy milk with the combined contents of the publication among the public.

R CFNAR ENMATERATERE  PEAREREHIRO SRR - Hihd
BEM(ZHERRFEEBERLZ (2022fR) ) - BFAEMAT  ARFANEINNEREE -

Examples of Dali Nutrition Promotion Projects

EFEREEEATH
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2.4

Sincere Services

Dali has always made improving consumer satisfaction one of its
core work objectives. We strictly abide by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests and continue to improve our internal policies and
systems, such as the Customer Complaint Handling System, and
expand consumer communication channels and optimize our
customer service level.

We always proactively expand customer service channels, have
added customer service teams to connect with front-line
consumers, and gain a deeper understanding of customer
demands. During the reporting period, we established a
complaint channel on our WeChat official account based on
existing customer service communication channels. Consumers
can directly contact the Company’s customer service department
through our WeChat public account for complaints and feedback.

Telephone of the
Customer service
department of

400 Customer
Service Number

400FREE

each production base
BEEEMWEF
BR#ERFI B AE

Dali’s Main Customer Service Channels

EFEEFRRERE

Following the Customer Complaint Handling System, we maintain
a professional and patient attitude for customer services. We have
also established a complaint feedback mechanism from
complaint investigation, rectification and resolution to follow-up
and return visits, realizing a complete closed-loop service chain.
In the case of verified customer complaints, the regional manager
or after-sales service manager will follow up in person to relieve
customer’s negative feelings so as to enhance the trust of
customers in the Company.

Public Account

WEDRY

2.4 BOIRTE

EFRRBREHEEREEEAX
D TIERIEZ — o MBS BT
(PEARANMEHEE BT RE
) ERE RS (B RFERETIE
FIE) EREBRHIENER £ 15
BEIREEEEBERE BILEPR
KT o

RFIEBARE PR RE > BN
BB ENEFRER » BIRA
T RERHR  BRAEREE - ]
SR RPAEREFREEREN
B L AMEARETELRILT
RifiEE  HEETBBMERRN
EEMBABNEFRFEFT - BT
RifRERRE -

Offline Customer
Service Team

AT & IR A% X

RPBREEPRFEETIFGE)
REEE  MONFFRBEE 2
M THEREFRE  BOURAEI R D
TR BB 0 BIR T e BRIR
B PAIR - PR P RIFMIIRIE
o RS EERRBEERER
HERE - R RIEHE - A& R
HRABEEE -
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The Group actively listens to customers’ criticisms and opinions,
and continues to refine the level of customer service. Relying on
the big data information platform, Dali has established a
customer complaint model to accurately analyze customer needs
and match solutions. At the same time, we have turned passive
into active by carrying out customer satisfaction surveys. During
the reporting period, the overall customer satisfaction of the
Group was as high as 95%. A total of 12 complaints related to
products and services were received, all of which were handled in
a timely and effective manner.

Rectification

Ve and Solution
K The Customer Service Depart- B SR

ment conducts investigations

based on the content of ¢ The Customer Service Department

customer complaints communicates with customers

= ERESREESIEFANA regarding the reply and solutions
HRRS of the responsible departments
BEPRGHAEERFINEE
o Forcomplaints that are IR 5 R AR 8

substantiated, we fill out the

. P L]
customer complaint transmission If the customer accepts our

form and transmit it to the solution, the responsible

responsible department department will organize and
HRBERBENRS  ARE implement the plan.
FHRFEEE - MAEEFIE BEFEEIMRTRER - ARME
i ERPIAERE T 5

FEEBMBEREEFOHTEAER
SREBME R RTEKT o RIEARE
EERFTE BENRITERRFRE
B BEDERRR - TRERT
% o FF > ZFIEWBIAEE > FRE
ERRmEERE c REHAN » ~EH
BEERREESESY HEER
MRFERRRF L 12 > FAB R
19183 T REF AR

/° After implementing the plan, the

Complaint

Customer Service Department
will follow up and return visits
and complete the customer
satisfaction survey form.
HREMR - B REEET
FEF - YEREFWEER
X

The Customer Service Depart-
ment will return the customer
satisfaction survey to the
responsible department and
keep record of it
BEFREBHSEPMEERE
FIBEOEAERRPIALAFAE

Follow-up

S Investigation J

BREFAE

Complaint and Feedback Mechanism

25 = AR
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In line with the attitude of being responsible to consumers, the
Group strictly abides by laws and regulations such as the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and national
standards to protect consumers’ right to know and right to
choose. By setting up three lines of defense for compliance
marketing review, we ensure that marketing activities are legal

FEWHBEEAENRE  £EER
BET(hEARKEMNBESE)F
ERERREARRE  REHEEN
FIERABEERE - RMBBRESHR
SIFBEZENR > FREZEHEESG
EER > WIMBIRE B EHER]E o

and compliant, and the information transmitted externally is
accurate and credible.

Market Regulation and Filing
TEEENAER

o All related health foods have been

Compliance Department
Review

BRIMESE

e Compliance review on product

filed in the market in accordance

Internal Examination

REBEE

¢ Self-examination by the

with the law, and we have

conducted compliance publicity

design, packaging text, and consultation and learning under

packaging design department promotional materials

the guidance of the market

and external material production conducted by R&D Department,

supervision authorities

enterprises Quality Control Department, SRR QIR
FRBERETEFT - INERE1E Legal Department and others SRS ER - BTTISE

E"‘]%*’l’%'“’ﬁﬂé%i&??gﬁ Eﬂ%&?’ﬁ%ﬁ N Eﬁl%% N /ﬁ%%ﬁ% ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁf?éfﬁﬁ%%@%
IS HER R - BEXT P

EEMHETEETARES

Three lines of defense for compliance marketing review

AREHBEE=ZENHR

At the same time, we attach great importance to the protection of
customer privacy, abide by relevant laws and regulations such as
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests, and ensure that consumers have
the right to legal protection of personal information when
purchasing, using goods and receiving services. We strictly
regulate the company’s consumer privacy protection work through
designated department’s unified management of customer-related
information and arrangement of special personnel to file and
archive customer information. It is strictly required that any
employee should not, without application, consult, forward
screenshots, share and disclose information of customers and
consumers, thus building a professional consumer service team.

A > WABREZFREMGRE > BT
(PEANRHEHBEEERDIREE)
FHRMARERIENR  REEHBEEER
B - EAmaNERRER > =56
NEBRESEIRENEF o IR
BIRBABPHEE R FRELIF
HiEEMPIHE PEMERHE—ET
B URHEARTAEERE
718 EREMETREHFAEHE
EER - BEE%  ENRERF
FoHBENRL  EHITEF R
BEERBEK -
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PROMOTING GREEN PRODUCTION

Green and low-carbon has become a sustainable development issue
that is widely valued around the world. Dali is well aware of the
necessity of continuous environmental management, always
incorporates the green recycle concept into the whole manufacturing
process, actively responds to the risks and opportunities of climate
change, and puts energy saving and emission reduction into practice,
so as to reduce the negative impact on the environment and realize the
green transformation of the enterprise.

We strictly comply with environmental protection laws and regulations,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes. We also establish an
internal environmental management system, continuously improve the
construction of the environmental management system platform,
further consolidate internal environmental management, and actively
promote a green and low-carbon operating mode. During the reporting
period, all our plants have ISO 14001 Environmental Management
Systems Certification. In 2022, the Group invested RMB19.89 million in
environmental protection and did not have any environmental
violations during the reporting period.

The Group pays attention to the environmental impact of its production
operations and is committed to implementing targeted management
measures in four areas: emissions, energy use, waste and water use by
setting environmental targets. During the reporting period, we reviewed
and summarized the achievement of the above targets in order to
facilitate the Group’s green development.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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Emissions target Emission reduction measures

B ERR HHHTE

Step-by-step formation of carbon emissions management
system, striving for continuous reduction in carbon
emissions over years

BERIRNEERR BN BRNERTE
k:30e8

Energy consumption efficiency target

BERMEAR = B IR

Improving the carbon emission management system
and refining the carbon emission management of each
operation link

TERFNEERR » MR ESIRMOIRIMERER
Increasing the proportion of renewable energy

AP BAESERIGEE

Increase in energy efficiency

RERR R

Speeding up the development of energy consumption
management system, implementing meticulous
management in energy consumption, and gradually
raising the percentage of clean energy consumption
NIRAEEIERRER  HITHEICAEEE  BS
BARBZAERIGLE

Wastes reduction target

HEE AR

Adjusting the energy mix and expanding the proportion
of new energy sources such as photovoltaic
ARBERAEHE - AR FMAERIGLL

Eliminating high-energy-consuming equipment

TS HERERR

Energy-saving technology renovation

BIRERIMI NG

Wastes reduction measures

HEETE

Continued refining and strengthening the wastes
management system, raising the percentage in wastes
recycled

TETERERYEESE > IRSERY RIS

Water consumption efficiency target

Ak Bz

Improving material handling processes to enhance
waste recycling rates

DUEY R R IR T B UL SR YIB IR T =
Lightweight and recyclable green packaging principles
CE1{b ~ AERNZBEERE

Increase in water consumption efficiency

kiR

Progressive increase in water conservation and recycle
process and technology investment, further enhancing
efficiency on use of water
BIMAEKMAERBIRTERKMNEA » 126
Rk

Sustainable Development Green Targets

AFRERIRGRR

Expanding the proportion of water-saving equipment
and optimizing the water treatment process

EAREK B A L BB EKEIE T

Actively carrying out water conservation campaigns
ERREHKEE

Measures Taken

ERIETED

Dali’s Environmental Targets and Review

EFIRIERRRERE
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3.1
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Responding to Climate Change

Climate change is one of the greatest challenges facing all
mankind in the 21st century. With the increasing impact of
climate change nowadays, low-carbon operation is not only a
matter of the earth’s natural ecology, but also an important
manifestation of corporate social responsibility. The Group
understands the urgent need to achieve carbon neutrality. And
while we adhere to green and low-carbon development, we also
actively participate in actions to combat climate change.

The Group has established a comprehensive climate change
governance structure, with the Board as the highest level
leadership, the Audit Committee responsible for the overall
coordination of strategic matters related to climate change and
review of climate change risk matters, and the ESG Working Group
as the executive body responsible for the identification and
management of the Company’s climate change risks, so as to
actively promote the development and effective implementation
of the Group’s climate change risk management.

The Group has included responses to climate change into its
strategies. By taking reference of the recommendations from
TCFD (Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures), we
have adopted a prospective risk management approach in
response to the expectation in our long-term commitment to
environment protection.

3.1

FEH RIEE1E
RIFSER -+ ASEPTEER
MERAEZ — > ERESETED
@RS X » BEEETERF T
KERER  hEEERTHEER
MEZRER - AEBRMBRHPHM
BEBR > RAERFRBERRER
BRI > thEEH B AREEREEE
BITENES o

FEEDRITENRIEEDAIER
B EFEFEARSMRGEE > BE
ZZEG a5 REMRERRECAERM
MEREER ERAEETCRRSE
H > NERAVESC TR/ NMATERHITIE
1% BEHREREECRRETH
AMEE » LUGIRESERREEL
ERERE TIFRNRREAENCEE -

FEBERKESREECMAEEBNE
b= = > BB 28 TCFD (Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures > %,
{=ABRE RS P54 B8 TR/ NR) B9 =% >
DARTRE R B bR B IR R 2R OB IR IR
BEFENRARAE
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Type of risk
EEER

RS

Risk parameters

R

Risk description
R e i

Responding measures

FEH 245

Physical risks  Acute
EREE =

Chronic

=2k

Cyclones, floods,
droughts, extreme heat,
extreme cold and other
extreme weather events
BE KR
i =R R RE
EimimRREMN

Impact of changes in
temperatures and
rainfall level etc.
RURBEREEIE

=
3%

Frequent occurrence of extreme
weather events may cause
inconvenience to commuting of our
employees, disruption in
transportation of supply chain,
interruption to the operation of
production equipment, and
consequently may adversely affect
the continuity of our production
operation and our revenue may fall as
aresult.

ImiK R R B IAEFEHNETIES
ME ~ HERERZ BN L ERE
BRI > M BEEESER
5> R ©

Changes in temperatures and rainfall,
albeit gradual and moderate, may
lead to relocation of some of our
operation premises that may be
affected by such changes.
Consequently, our operating cost
could increase.
RUBKPEREMEIBE(CTIAEER
D2 EBETENESHIRE
BINEE A

Closely monitor weather forecast to
ensure production safety and
adequate preparation for such
occurrence;
ERFAIRRARUEREEZ S
B TR R 2

Formulate contingency plans to
address challenges to our production
posed by unforeseen weather events;
FIERSTRRNEHEERREN
HEENTE

Conduct prospective risks
identification and evaluation
procedures on chronic climate-
related risk(s).

HHS 1 U5 B BT A B R B
Bl Ko 5 o

ENEmEEARAR | £ 2022 131



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rigs B RERRS

Responding measures

FES R4

Type of risk Risk parameters Risk description

EEER 2% [ Bt

Transition risks Policy and law More stringent reporting ~ With the sophistication on and

B R b SR E#E  obligation and implementation of regulatory
compliance measures on carbon emissions and
requirements on carbon trading, the PRC has
emissions stipulated higher requirements in
ERISNEINERE emission disclosure to be made by
EFRRERENR business enterprises. The Group

would be subject to increasingly
stringent disclosure requirements in
relation to climate change
information.

BEBHW X5 S BRI
TEREN - PEHEERE
RETESHNER - AEERKEER
R AR RIEZEAERIE B RY

REEEK o
Technology Failed investment in The process of low-carbon
e low-carbon technology technological transformation may
R T B R involve further consideration on such

new energy projects like photovoltaic
system, which entails a certain level of
risk of investment failure
ERRAS M EIBIE S > DAEE
ABZUWNAREMEBREENS
B FHE—ENRBERBER -

Costs of transition to In the process of low-carbon
lower emissions technological transformation, we may
technology need to deal with issues like

(EBER fiT e Bl Bl A technological evolution, replacement
and reinstallation of lower-energy-
consumption equipment. Our outlay
cost may therefore increase.
TERB T B B2 > DISEEER
RAEFER BPRTE 2RAVEITIA A ~ B
M BZEEME BMRAR
Ao
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Closely follow State’s policy on
energy conservation and lower
emissions, staying abreast of and in
compliance with relevant regulatory
law and regulation;
YR E SR BN R PR » Ry
TSRS EEERIER

Continuously update and refine its
standards of products and raw
materials purchase;
FEEMTEEENERREN
[RAMEHRIBREE ;

Optimize our enterprise energy
management system, setting up a
highly effective unified system on
carbon emissions data for the
strengthening of data disclosure
quality.

TECEEREIERR > Bufi—
SRRV EIE R AT - MR EUE
HREEE -

Enhance the overall assessment
and forward-looking consideration
on lower-carbon technology (such
as green packaging technology and
energy saving technique) to take
into account costs of any
technological evolution;

AR A MR (B AR e ek
&AMy~ BiBE T E) AR S TG
AIEMEE S > BEMEAHAZ R
A

Consider working with new energy
suppliers in joint effort on lower-
carbon technology research,
development and identification,
aiming to lower our cost of
investment.
ZREMEEREER S AW
BEMRREBEMHE » (RERE
B o
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Type of risk
E PR

Risk parameters

EE2 8

Risk description
[ Pt

Responding measures

FES R4

Market
mi%

Consumers preference
to green and low-carbon
products
HEEHGOENE
YRR

Rising cost of purchase

BREBRA LR

With increasing universal exposure
and promotion for lower carbon
emissions, enterprises with lower-
carbon products in their pipeline will
be in stronger position during the
transformation towards lower carbon.
Any delay in implementation for such
transformation may result in loss in
market share and in profitability.

WEZ R ERE RN EENE
B BRHERFRERNEERSS
EEBEERREER MM &
N BRI A fEEbR ™5
1 BEANF B TR AY LR o

Climate change may have impact on
biodiversity, which may in turn
increase difficulty in acquiring of and
price surge in raw materials (such as
agricultural produce and water
resources) during the operation
process, thereby increasing the
operation cost.
RIREERISER BEY S - 1
M & B & A 12 R AT 3R B R A4
(REY ~ KER) FERFEEIE
MUK (EE Lk - BBUEE AR

"Ee

EMEREBEERAE | FIK 2022

Progressive promotion of green and
lower-carbon products (like plant-
based foods) in line with consumer
demand;

B EEEBNERE R (WEY
Eem IEHEERR;

Staying abreast of and taking part
in government’s green and lower-
carbon products supporting
initiatives;
FHERDTI I 2 MU HHR (R E
mARIFIEE ;

Conduct analyses on trend of raw
materials’ price movement, through
our exchange with suppliers and
consolidation of resources to
effectively manage the risk of
purchase cost inflation.
DIRMEHERECEBE > BiBH
HEBRXRRERES  BNEE
PREERL AN _EFRERE ©
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Type of risk
EEER

Risk parameters

R

Risk description
R e i

Responding measures

FEH 245

Reputation

Ba

Stakeholder concernin
negative information
MRS B amEH
BREE

Awhole range of stakeholders are
increasingly expecting the Group to
take more action for effective
management of and minimizing
carbon footprint of its products.
Falling short to such expectation
may put our reputation at risk
globally, affecting our reputation
andimage, and dragging down the
demand for our products and
services.
Hiatm A B AEERIE Z1HE
B R EIEM R B A bR B BRRY
HIZ RS - WIRAEER BT A
HERG A e S E RS IKSBE NS
2R RMEELATBEETR
EMELOEERBRETESRE
Ho
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Pay closer attention to relevant
disclosure requirements on
sustainable development and
climate change. In addition to
ensuring its compliance, optimize
the external communicating
channel on corporate social
responsibility;

NSRRI I &3 B S R E(EAE
R B ER > ERERSRIER
BEEELSSEHRIMEEERE ;

Staying abreast of and participate in
international and domestic
environmental protection initiatives
with high recognition or relevance to
shore up our brand image as a green
enterprise.
FEMIT2ETTEa BRI
SERAVBIRMBE R EIRRES 4T
G B g o
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3.2 Energy Management

The Group regards energy saving and consumption reduction as
an important way of green transformation in the production and
operation process. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
of the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other laws and regulations, and have established an internal
energy management policy to conduct regular analysis in terms
of both energy-saving technology transformation and energy mix
optimization, so as to develop the Group’s energy management
plan and effectively reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Technical Upgrade on Energy Conservation

Replacement of
equipment:

Process
Optimization:

Energy pipeline
Optimization:

Optimisation in
temperature
control:

Progressively optimize and replace high energy
consuming equipment by identifying higher
efficiency equipment

Gradually optimize existing production process and
promote innovation. Reduce use of disinfectant
through application of dry decontamination
technique, resulting in lower energy consumption

Continue to carry out steam pipeline optimization
work, and reduce steam transmission losses
through technical improvement of pipeline and
heat recovery technique

Use ice water supply to meet the process
requirements in summer; and use cooling
towers to absorb natural cold air to reduce the
system water temperature in winter by
switching valves, thus reducing the material
temperature to meet the process requirements

3.2

RETREIE

FEERHERERIFEEEZBEZ
PiaeEUNERRE - ZFIERE
STREAREMBESHIERE) F
ERER W NMEREER
2R IEENRE R REA AE R B B
W73 EAFETEREACDH - EmE
EEEREREESE > AYEEEE
REEHRL ©

BAER T ERiE

REBENK BH RIS
ERFE BIEIER
HBER

TE/1E: BHBIERARMNT
2 HITAIMNE
BBRAREREK
M > 0B OH B B
A PRIEAERE

FEREBELL: HERERSEEER

EIEE » BIBEER

BR ~ FRBE[R] R F BT

B EREIEIRRE
BRI ESEAMOKEEE
ATZEX; £F@
BYNARIPIF A S A
BIRWBRS ERE
BERGEAR  EMmbE
EMEREERTE
2K
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Optimisation of Energy Structure

All subsidiaries have adopted multilateral
market-based electricity transactions, and
pricing standard based on capacity-demand
size auditing, as well as promoted staggering
power consumption

Electricity Trading:

Centralising energy We would gradually substitute the existing

supply: model of direct steam supply with a
centralized steam supply system after an
industrial zone for such purpose can be
identified.

Use of New Energy  Diesel engine vehicles in our plants would

Vehicles: be gradually replaced by electric vehicles.

Promoting the Use  The proportion of clean energy consumption
of Cleaning

Energy:

would gradually increase through the

application of solar photovoltaic and energy
storage measures.

BB
BNRS

SErPHAE -

FERAAEIRE

Gas boiler flue gas waste heat reused to heat boiler feed
water, resulting in an increase of efficiency by

approximately 3-7%
MR HIEERFEB T AMARIESRK -
BERALIZ-T%
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BEFREEHMATE
HhZEmBERZH
REASRESER
1= HEEIERE

BYEUHRABEME
RIRN SRERE
PHERRETEN

R & % B B E
= giab S =)

AR ESHE
i B RABRRE
IRIGEE

Ma’anshan company installed 1.8MW of
new photovoltaic energy

EFIBEELATRE LS REAKREER
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During the reporting period, the Group’s energy consumption and

HREPN > AEERSERHFENRE

carbon emissions are as follows: RESHIUERAT ©
Energy consumption?
REIRIHFE?
Category Unit
bl Efl 2022
Direct energy consumption Tonnes of standard coal 98,363
ERAERE AR
Indirect energy consumption Tonnes of standard coal 97,189
M EREHE MEARJE
Comprehensive energy consumption Tonnes of standard coal 195,552
IRERERE DB AR AR
Comprehensive energy consumption per RMB10,000 of revenue  Tonnes of standard coal/RMB10,000 0.10
Bt S et MEIRIE, BT
Greenhouse gas emissions?
AERREHE?
Category Unit
- X 2022
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents 175,419
BEREHNE (8E—) WS EiRE S
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 24) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents 350,568
BERBHNE (R WS EE
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents 525,987
BERBHIRNEE (BB —REED) M SR E S
Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB10,000 revenue Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents/ 0.26

BriamaE RSN E

RMB10,000
M SEHEE BT

2 During the reporting period, the Group’s comprehensive energy consumption includes the 2
processing and production of food and beverage products; the calculation of the
comprehensive energy consumption was based on General Principles for the Calculation of

the Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB258-2020).

REHR > AEEGSEEETERNENEER
MITEE ; GEEEHEEFE2R(GEAEHE
1B81]) (GB258-2020) ©

BERR AEEHEERERBREERERE

3 During the reporting period, the Group’s GHG in Scope 1 came from direct energy 3

consumption (including natural gas, diesel and gas oil); GHG in Scope 2 came from indirect
energy consumption (including purchased electricity and purchased steam); GHG emissions
were calculated with reference to Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Food Industry (Trial) issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China.

During the reporting period, the electricity emission factor was calculated with reference to
the Notice on the key work related to the management of enterprise greenhouse gas
emission report for 2023-2025 issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China, in which the electricity grid emission factor was adjusted to
0.5703 tCO,/MWh.

E(BEXRAR - SOAMFH) ; BB T RERMER
BEEAEREE (BENBENHFNEER) ; BE
RSB E2RTEARAMEEIKERMN
ELREREMI(BRRITEEFEEREHNZES
EBIREIER (A7) °

REHR > BENHFRETFAE2RPEARENER

AR IR IR S0 2 A0 (R T R 20232025 FE R 2B =
RESHMGR S BIEERER TEREM) > HPESE
BERE F 8% 2 0.5703 tCO,/MWh ©
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3.3
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Resource Management

The Group attaches great importance to the efficiency of the use
of resources in the production and operation process. We strictly
comply with the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other relevant laws and regulations. We carry out water
conservation and recycling measures through rationalized and
standardized allocation of resources, and are committed to the
R&D and application of green packaging materials in order to fully
implement the concept of resource conservation and recycling
and to practice sustainable development.

Water Resources Management

The Group strives to improve its water resources management
system, strictly complying with applicable laws and regulations
and relevant requirements in each of its operating locations,
while regularly monitoring and managing water risks and
regulating the use of water resources. We actively implement
water conservation initiatives in all aspects of our production
operations and take comprehensive water conservation
measures to improve the recycling rate of water resources.
Currently, our production water sources vary by project location
and are mainly from the municipal network.

3.3

BEREE
FER+HEREEEEBETHNE
RERME > BREBT(PEARK
MEIHGE) FARRIERENR - BBE
RSECRBRE » HEKERES
MEBIRMBER > O GeaR
MEIRAENIER > URDEEER
EATBIRCRIES » BiTOREE
o

KERERE
FEERNINTEKEREERR
BISEESEESHREMBERIERE
MBARRAZEER - ERRER N EIE KA
o AHEKERER - HPIEEEE
ERIRMBIREEKE RS
SHMAREKTE > LUEEKERE
RAMAR - BaT > HAIMEERKK
RIERIBEEPREMBERBFITR > £
ERETEEM
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During the reporting period, our 2022 CDP Environmental
Disclosure Platform water questionnaire was rated as B grading,
reaching the management power tier, which fully demonstrates
the effectiveness of Dali’s water risk management and water
conservation efforts.

Water Risk For tap water, we invite local water companies
Assessment to regularly assess potential drinking water
risks and issue testing reports

For raw water, we invite professionally
qualified third-party institutions to issue raw
water risk test reports every year

For pure water, we test weekly for possible
microbiological risks

Water Resources Reuse of reclaimed water: Our production
SavingActions  plants have all installed steam condensed
water recycle systems with hot water tank
preheating, from which a 30% thermal

energy recycle rate may be realised

Wastewater recycling: Wastewater after
standard treatment will be put into such
reuse like watering plant, dust removal and
toilet water etc.

Concentrated water recycling: After researching
with manufacturers on concentrated water
recovery and reuse system, we improve water
treatment equipment and pipelines through
technologies, successfully using concentrated
water recovery and reuse, which can
produce more than 50% of qualified raw
water mixed and used again; As of now, the
system has been established and completed
in Chengdu and Fujian companies.

REHHR > AN - - _FCDPIR
BESRETFEKEEERSBTR
EXNEENER > ROTRETIENK
AR EENKERRETIERI R

KRR

KEREIWIER

ERRKAE > Fifi
BEEMBRKATE
EHHBERRAK
R RETTAHMEI A
AR S

FERAGE RS
FRFABEXEL
HE=HHBHAR
UNEL Y

FHkTE RFE
B P REF R E
YR BRIETTIRA

KRR REES
BRI R/ Bk [E]

WA o (LA BAOKEE

SEEURFIFR

BB ERIEER
B HY5 KET ZRA
B3 o WRTE ~ PREE
BEBEERKE

Bk ;BB
EXEAD-—YINEIEE=E]
B&4% > SokiRE
REREE > RINE
BRKEIW BT
A DU R 4 50% X
FEBRKEERE
xEM; BRIEE/R
#H BEABEILS
EjZo
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Packaging Material Management BEMRERE

The Group continues to explore green packaging. The packaging FEBFETHCBEEFTEETR
materials for our products are mainly cartons and slices. On the %= BN ERBEMR T 25458
basis of recyclability and reduction, we reduce the use of MR/ - AAEIR - BEEHER
packaging materials by continuously optimizing our packaging Lo BABETE B CERERE
design and promoting recyclable bags. Meanwhile, we actively Er] B B R LURD B MR
use sustainable and environmentally friendly raw materials, such F o BB > BAIER G A I FHENIR
as low-carbon and environmentally friendly packaging certified RER AT RIIREERRA
by the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) for our Doubendou series RIBBEMEEEZE | (FSO)RRAE
boxed products, effectively reducing resource waste at source. BIRREE > MREE ARV ER

RE o

Flexible packaging products
BRERER

Lightweight
EE®L

Design optimization

REHEIE

Equipment upgrade and product
innovation

REFR - EmEIH

Through technical upgrade, film has been thinned and adjusted from a thickness
of 30pm to 25um
BIBRAMTFHAR - I ZRIREEETT 7 FE > SEEHERE 30um FHE 2 25um

Regarding use of paper can labels, through technical upgrades, the 128g double
copper paper material previously used has been replaced by 105 g double copper
paper material

ERBERSECERAE > BARWHEK > FZ2AIERN 1287 LA E
LA 105 Se SRR AC A1

By optimizing the layout of some outer cartons and label design, we improve the
quality of product packaging and reduce the effect of ink
BANIHDIEEMEREERE > BRERHEE > ERRAEROEEE
PR E-LSEVES

We adopt solutions including reducing the height of three-piece cans and the
weight of PET bottle tops, and significantly decrease the use of tinplate and plastic
H=ERRENEREEETRE PETRORERESHE > KERESO
HANBHRBERE

Packaging material reduction initiatives

BRI 2
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During the reporting period, the Group’s consumption of water and WREAN > AERKERMEEM
packaging materials was as follows: B AERSEFESNT ¢

Resource Consumption

BiRHE

Category Unit

E2hill| Bl 2022

Water consumption tonnes 8,440,400

AkE it

Water consumption per RMB10,000 of revenue tonnes/RMB10,000 4.23

BroiimAKE M, &I

Total packaging material consumption tonnes 256,200

BEMELHERS it

Packaging material consumption per RMB10,000 of revenue tonnes/RMB10,000 0.13

Bl B EUEFE e, &I

3.4 Pollution Control 3.4 oy

The Group strictly complies with Environmental Protection Law of KREERBRIRBET(REARENRIR
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic BREEINFEARENBE AR 52
of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, BhyasEN(RzE A REFI R KT HBH 4
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s VR E AN RENEEREREY) 518
Republic of China, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China BREE) EARR AR AR > Bk
on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused EHERYIN B WA IE » NE =k
by Solid Wastes and other relevant laws and regulations. We K~ BERMEEYERREURERS
actively promote the effective management of emissions and HHER > MiE— T E AT NEE
continuously improve the management protocols of wastewater, R o

waste gas and waste to ensure compliance with emissions
regulations, thereby further strengthening the foundation of the
Company’s green transformation.

Waste Gas Control EBERERE
Gas recycle: Recycle combustion of VOCs (volatile REEEU VOCs (18 35 14 & 1#%
organic compounds) resulted to reuse of ) RASEIUIAIE
thermal energy for our plants, with any EXHSHESR
surplus steam thermal energy to be used in TRFA LHE
food production plants RASHEERM
5
Gas adsorption: some subsidiaries have completed activated RBEIRMT A N2 T
carbon adsorption-based regulated emissions LhELHEBVOCsH
for the small quantity of VOCs incurred in B BRFRAEER
preforming heating bottle-blowing process BUEMRIRMEmE
AR
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Wastewater Management
Technical adopting technical processes by sewage
standard: stations, such as collect/sprinkle + light
oxygen, sprinkle + activated carbon, sprinkle
+ bio substance to conduct regulated

exhaustion
Equipment Increase centralized collection bucket for
upgrade: sewage sludge, prevent secondary pollution

by automatic storage

Wastes Management

Regulated Setting up obvious signs to implement

management:  separate management and regulated
storage

Unified We set up a solid wastes disposal desk

standards: registration, which accurately records the

waste category, its quantity incurred,
destination, usage etc.

Compliance Working with qualified entity for such
in disposal: process in our solid wastes disposal and
recycle procedures

Minimisation Taking consideration of waste residuals
management: exhaustion in product design stage and
reducing consumption

BEkER
T 57 .

TR

BEEMER
BEFER:

M—A48

BHEE

WEEE

75 7K Uk R B W & 1B
WSS DE IR
MR BB+ EME
ETEETHBH
hd

55 52 2 10 46 o it g
S ABEEBILE

RS H

BB LR
FREEBNER
57

RETERYEE
Bk WERRE
EYWEER BEE
HE-E@- AR
%
HAEKERENE
UG1E HEREY
EITREMEL

FERREERI
nERBREBHN
HEER

Standardized management of hazardous waste warehouses

142
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HRERN > AEERSEIPRIER

During the reporting period, the Group’s pollutants emissions are

as follows: wr

Pollutant emissions
SEAIBER
Category Unit
Y| B (i 2022
Wastewater discharge tonnes 4,845,451
BE K E it
COD (chemical oxygen demand) emission tonnes 224
COD (EE2FBEE) HINE ir
Ammonia nitrogen emission tonnes 7.31
[AaHmE i
Nitrogen oxides emission tonnes 21
KRECYHRE iz
Recycled non-hazardous waste tonnes 44,895
AR EY R EEEY) i
Recycled non-hazardous waste per RMB10,000 of revenue tonnes/RMB10,000 0.02
BrlimbliimEEYE M, &I
Waste gas emission m?® 700,992,354
BRI E K

3.5 Green Office 3.5 4ZEIEA

The Group actively advocates the concept of green office, and has AEEBREELEOBNIES > §|E
formulated the Initiative on Energy Saving and Consumption AR AT EREREENEBEE) -
Reduction in the Office, continuing to promote paperless office. EEEELA A c RAERST
BIKAKAE SRS TEAEEE
BNHZITE  WITEAAHKZIEH
17 BHBEETHEBREEH
BITRemAn -

Our employees are required to conserve water and electricity,
encouraged to use web conferencing and shared printing and
recommended to use public transportation for travel, so as to
cultivate their awareness of low-carbon and environmental
protection and implement green office practices.

Posting of Signage
SRAGIR A

Paper-less Office

iR /N

Business and Working Travels
EAREED

Electrical Appliance Management
EREE

« Enhance employees’
environmental awareness
regarding water saving
with notices and water
conservation signals
BIBRG A S EIKIR
0 sC B TEAAKN
RIBEH

Encourage shared use of
computers, Advocate the
use of internet
conferencing and cloud
SEEEHE - BmEA
HLEEEMNER
Promote two-sided
printing

RIEEmEITH

Promote shared vehicles
on business and working
trips to reduce carbon
emission in commuting
IREHEHTT » [BREE
WBFE BB

Gradually replace
business vehicles with
new energy vehicles

75 R EIR o AT AR
RES

Green Office Actions

BEMARE

« Advocate to turn off the
lights when appropriate
and use less electricity
BEREFREE - BhNRE

«  Control temperature
setting of the air
conditioning in offices and
dormitories
HMANBREZAERER
FEETTIER]
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SUPPORTING STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Adhering to our “people-oriented” principle, Dali is always committed to
protection of the legitimate rights and interests of our employees. We
constantly strengthen our human resources structure and safeguard
system, consistently strives to expand diversified recruitment channels
as well as to create a healthy, safe and inclusive working environment.
By establishing a diversified development platform and multi-
disciplinary training schemes, we aim to achieve growth and a win-win
situation for both the corporation and employees.

4.1 TalentAttraction

The Group strictly adhere to the relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Employment Promotion Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Law on Protection of Minors
of the People’s Republic of China. We have a well-established
system for the recruitment, cultivation and promotion of talents.
We uphold an open, fair and just policy on recruitment, ensuring
lawful and fair process of recruitment and employment.
Moreover, we expressly forbid any form of discrimination in the
form of differentiated treatment against any employee based on
gender, age, race and religious beliefs etc. and are committed to
offer every staff member an equal and fair employment
opportunity.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

BHETER
EMFTUARTHES > BZIILR
BEET & ERD  TERIEANERBER
MHERE > FHEARZTNEERE
RNEERE 22 MEFNIIFRIE
BRZTERTARSHEEIER  UE
REEEBTHREH-R -

41 AFAIRKS|

FEEEKET(PEARINES
) (FEARKMNASSHEEE)
(PEAREMBEIBFERER) (PE
ARHEMBERMFAFREER) FER
R BUSTENAS BERIEEE
WEIE - R BF AR~ AT~ AL
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Compliant Employment

The Group respects human rights and labour rights. We enter into
labour contracts with all our regular staff members according to
the law to genuinely protect their legal rights and interests. The
Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour is strictly observed,
ensuring that there would be no forced labour and child labour
within our organisation. During the reporting period, no violations
on child labour- and forced labour-related laws and regulations
had been reported.

During the reporting period, our talent recruitment process
continued to evolve, with a vast array of recruiting events making
use of both offline and online channels. We have promulgated the
Circular on Internal Recruitment to encourage employees form all
levels to apply for new openings and current vacancies through
self-recommendation or colleagues’ referrals. In line with our
commitment to social responsibility, we have also provided
employment opportunities for people in impoverished regions to
contribute to economic development in such areas.

aRER
FEESEANERS T oD > WA
HFFEERETIHIFHAE > B
RIEETRIAG AT - RAIRKE
STCRECERETRE) - BRMAER
R EBBETINT S - REH
A REEEAEREHREZEINRER
SERRERERNENS o

WEHAN > RPEEEEAT RAT
B R LB TEE SR R
RZHRACRIIRESEE) - WFIBEM(A
BINEMAESIEA) > SEN R BB ARAY
BTEBEBRNEBNLI » BN
18 R ZEERREL o ESh > FAPTIAEIR AR
EHEEE BAAMERMEANR
HUERE > REEBHKCEER -

A group of residents from the impoverished Linxia area in Gansu province were recruited

by our poverty relief team to join our workforce

REMHIGHBRREMEERA S ARME L
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As of December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 39,518
employees. The charts below show the distribution of our
employees by various classifications:

Total number of employees
by gender (number of employees)

BUENBINETAH(A)

[ | [ |
Male Female
B 27

Total number of employees by
job level (number of empoyees)

RBEBINETAH(A)
790

| [ |
Senior Intermediate Frontline
management management employees
SR EERE R EIEE g
—#RET

146

HE_Z__F+_-_HA=+—H =&
EEHER2MET 39518 A » #&4E
BARIBERUN TR

Total number of employees
by age (number of employees)

BRERNPNETHE(A)

474

7,034

A

15,333 16,677
| O
30 and below 41-50
305U (&305%) 41-505%
| [ |
31-40 51 and above
31-405% 51k E (B515%)

Total number of employees by region
(number of employees)

BWER NS TAH(A)

3,280

7.232 11,500

4,42 ,
426 2,687

4,268 6,125

B EastChinaregion [ Northwest China region
ERME FRibthiE

[ SouthChinaregion [ Southwest China region
ERtE FRRtE

B CentralChinaregion [ll Northeast China region
Frhith[@ st

[l North Chinaregion
ESlnulE
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Remuneration and Benefits

Dali attaches great importance to the value of talents and strives
to establish and consistently refine our remuneration structure
and performance appraisal mechanism from the perspective of
employees’ interests. We offer employees with market-oriented
remuneration that reflects the value of their positions, thereby
strengthening our ability to attract external talents. We set out in
our Human Resources Management Rules the underlying
principle of ‘equal pay for equal work’, while combining work
performance and other factors in the employee performance
appraisals. Also, we would make timely adjustment to wages and
allowances of our employees base on indicators such as
professional skills, level of qualifications, and result of
performance appraisals, to encourage the pursuit of continued
education.

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging and contentment, in
addition to basic benefits, we also provide a wide range of fringe

#ENER

EMNBHEASEE BREEIMNE
WEELE  BRIFETSHHE
REIEME IS > HETIRMAESN
RIREUEENTHEHN > 2k
EINEEAT RG] > HFIECATE
REERE) RARERARE T RR
A WEEETRRFRERMES L
BER ARAEEEERETHN
BERGE  BEKT  BREZFIE
R E R T EEMR  URBET
BHE -

AIETE TR SRR - I
ARETRMHEERBNEER » 775

benefits to our staff.

Basic Benefits

BEiEET

Social insurances and the housing
provident fund

Ha—%

Statutory leave

V£ E B 2

Paid leave (annual leave, home
leave, marriage leave, maternity
leave etc.)

ETNME (R ~ TR ~ Bk~

ERE)

BTRHE T RASERNETER

Fringe Benefits

I EF

Free physical examination

R BRI

Transportation allowances, meal allowances, night shift allowances,
overtime allowances, etc.

@RS ~ WRIERL » IR  INPERLE

Providing welfare supermarket to meet the daily needs of staff
REEABT > MRETHEMER

Providing expatriates with assignment allowances and home leave
AINRA B IR MINIRAERL > BRI

Applying for working and living allowances for employees with
qualifications in degrees or above who come to work in Quanzhou

AR UL L2 FE AN S2REMN TIEREmEZ E /BN

Applying for high level talent status and allowances for people who meet
the requirement of the county and city

AREMEFRTERNAS BRSERAS KA

Providing allowances to staff who have obtained certifications in certain
professional skills, in accordance with relevant policy

AENEEREFEME THATHERINEREER
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4.2 Communication and Care

4.2

Dali values employees’ participation into the Group’s development
and provides multiple channels for internal communication with
employees, including face-to-face communication, WeChat groups,
questionnaires and telephone interviews, through which all our
staff are encouraged to exercise the owner-mindset and to give
suggestions and contribute ideas on the Group’s development. At
the same time, we listen carefully to their difficulties and
demands, and make response in a timely manner as well as
implement corresponding rectification to specific problems.

148

Face-to-face
communication:

Face to face
communications with
our employees

are held irregularly.

EHEZR : TEH
EETHREXER

Telephone interviews:
Resigned employees
are interviewed by
phone to ascertain
the reasons of their
resignation and any
issues in the Company
so as to improve and
innovate.

EEOG - EEETG
BBET  THREN
RERARFENH
e RESE 17 DA T

Questionnaire:
Questionnaires are

BIERIE
ENERETHNARNERNSHA
R #ETHESTENBERE
BEEHYEESR MEE BAEH
& BRERGELN  ZRERET
BHETASEH 0 BRENERY
B - R HAALREBETIHN
BE > HNEBTRENRBETRG
TR RI[OIFE - M0 E RS R
HEFEREED o

given to employees from

time to time, in which
employees may reflect
on the difficulties they
face at work so that
problems can be dealt
with.

BEZR : TEHR
BEIRNAEHS -
FEETHITEEE

PRV REE (T IR ER
45T i B RER

WeChat group: WeChat
groups are established,
so that problems raised
by our employees are
dealt with one by on

Main Communication Channels for our Employees

BIFERBBERE
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During the reporting period, based on feedback from our RERR > AMEBEEIERR > H#
employees, we optimised and upgraded our back office staff HREARREE  RIEEE ~ IR
canteen in terms of food quality, canteen hygiene and service BRE UERBREENSFEESST
attitude, as well as upgraded the hygiene and comfort level of our ETHEREBLE ) TEMEETRSR
dormitory. We also added certain workout facilities and car MBS EN > AETIRMESEFENT
parking spaces for our staff to use, providing them with a more FIRIG » FOMEREIEENTEE:
comfortable working environment and ensuring their sense of ENERR

happiness when working in Dali.

Upgrade on workout facility Renovation of staff shower facility

2 SR BT AERN

Integrated service counter at our staff service centre Renovation of staff canteen
BIRFBHhOESED BTREEHN

Staff Satisfaction Level Enhancement Measures

BIMBERASE
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Dali Foods Group Company Limited

Furthermore, Dali respects career preference of our employees.
We highly value the opportunities to communicate with departing
staff members. The procedures regarding the departure of
employee are in strict compliance with the law. We conducted
phone interviews with departing staff so that we could learn from
such experience and make up for any shortcomings in our work in
a timely manner. In order to reduce staff turnover, the Company
works with all its department heads to infuse a proper workplace
mindset to employees as well as to gather feedbacks on the
dynamics of employees’ concerns. During the reporting period,
our department heads paid regular visits to various workshop
locations to communicate with our staff. They had also taken
note of the dynamics of staff’s concerns during day-to-day
operation, trying to understand and analyse the real reasons of
their departure, so as to improve our staff care and retention
effort. In 2022, Dali recorded a staff turnover rate of 6.18%.
Turnover rate breakdowns by gender, age and region are as
follows:

Turnover rate by gender

BRENB N TREERR

6.78%
5.58% II
Male Female
B 274

Turnover rate by region

R 2 B R KRR

9.10% 8.55%

1

4.20% 4.61% 4.43%

IEoh » RS EE THBERE
EHBERE THRMER > TSR
A RARRIES TR E o 3
BB EREE T B ARRE
B REFREERIESEmNR
BB ATRVEIREKE A
BRI EERAMEFETRET
1~ BTRESHERETIF - 3REH
A EEPIEEEHREFERIRE
HBTRMAMER  TEHEIEF
ARBTREHE » TR OER
BTWEIEMERR > IRETHAE
MEBI(Ee —E-"F EFMET
TRRE£6.18% » HIRMER ~ FEEMN
HMENDEERWT !

Turnover rate by age

BRERBINRRERR

7.40%

0,
6.40% ¢ oo 53906

30 and 31-40 41-50 51and
below 31-405% 41-505% above

305k Kz 515K
T Dk
8.80%
3.25%

East South  Central ~ North  Northwest Southwest Northeast

China  China China China China
region  region  region  region  region
¥R ¥ By ESl [l
& & HiE & HiE

China China
region  region

7 LS
e HE
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We also recognise the importance of work-life balance for our
employees and have made available a range of leisure activities
for their enjoyment after work, thereby enhancing their sense of
belonging to the Company. During the reporting period, in strict
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, while
providing employees with corresponding welfare benefits, we
organised various cultural and sports activities based on the
needs of employees, such as outdoor team building activities,
sports competition, festive celebration events and staff birthday
parties, etc. We also launched charitable programs focusing on
care for the woman community and held events targeting staff
members in needs to alleviate their burden of living and vividly

demonstrating our emphasis of humanistic care.

Basketball competition

BIRSERES BIRLLE

Lantern riddles game

BiERES HEEMEST

Wide Variety of Staff Activities

SENETED

Support for staff in need

BMTFEEETHERTEZENT
o BFEIRBNERLEE 28
BB THEXENRER  BER -
WEHAN > RPIRRBRERERE
R ERETRMEERENFENR
B IERBEIER > BiBHARSE
XEED - MPINEREE - BER
B BELEH - BIEHEE > 1A
BRBRITERERERE  WKHY
RS THEREE  GEETEE
B> e RBEEHAXEIE -

Staff birthday party
BT4HE

Women’s Day event

1R BEEN
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In order to examine the effectiveness of various care measures,
during the reporting period, we conducted an employee
satisfaction survey focusing on multiple dimensions included
environment, interpersonal relationship, management,
promotion, remuneration, staff canteen, accommodations and more,
so as to understand our employees’ opinions in all aspects. The data
from the 2022 satisfaction survey are as follows:

77 Ep R IA 8 TRAIEIETER R
R BPIERSHNHHIRE - AR
BFEE B HFM - RE &
BEZESTEHFRBRTELREES
T 2AUTHRETILE - AEERT
T FEREEREHEENT

Comparison between employee satisfaction levels

in 2021 and 2022
TEC-SR-SE--EETIREEHL

0
46.94% 62%

33.33%

23.81%

Very satisfied ~ Relatively satisfied Average
SEEImE EEETRE —&
| |
2021 2022
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4.3 Staff Nurturing 43 BIIER

Nurturing of talent is key to our core competitiveness for long- AT IEERTERERRENZOLGFE
term corporate development. We are committed to identifying 77 BRFIERBETIREZRAL >
talents among our employees, continuously strengthen our talent B b AT IEEFERE R - TEBM
enhancement and development system, and clearly delineate a BEMBESHEE » BB TIRE
flexible career path for promotion, so as to propel rapid 2R SREREE - RMEAHRE
development of our employees and realise their full potential. We EIHFEIN - AEAPEBEEINIA K
provide personalised training content and modes for employees BN SEREREINIE R » AR
in different stages of career development through new employee BEREENE T EEME AR
training, in-house training for specific subjects, and training with BRER > ITEFEENETEE

external collaboration in order to build a professional workforce.

Training Category Training Content
1EENEER b= H [
v Induction training
New employee training v AR
R T v' One-on-one training with tutors

v BEEH—H—E
v Production safety training
v ZEREEE
v Food safety training
v BmZEEl
v Fire safety training

In-house training for specific subjects v OHBIREE

PR IRLE R v Transport safety training
v RiBREEl
v Integrity and anti-corruption training
v SERZRE
v’ Professional skills training
v BERAEE
v/ Middle and senior management skill enhancement
Training in collaboration with v hEEBERART
external parties _ _ -
MY YRR R v O?cuanona! quality training

v BEZREE
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Induction training for new staff

8T ARSI BRRREE

Food safety training

We encourage and support our employees to pursue self-
development and continued education, for this purpose, the
Circular on Matters Relating to Application for Qualification
Advancement by Company’s Staff Members has been issued. To
this end, the Group has formed partnership with several external
professional institutions to grant a one-off award of RMB3,000 to
employees who successfully complete full-time tertiary
education. In 2022, we set up another incentive program to
promote self-development to our staff, pursuant to which,
employees who successfully obtain certain professional skills
certificates will receive an education subsidy; and finance
department personnel who successfully obtained a financial
auditing certificate will receive a one-off award of RMB5,000 to
8,000.

During the reporting period, the Group’s total number of trained
employees reached 40,285, while the total number of training
hours reached 159,598 hours, with a training rate of 92.3%.

Employee training rate by rank

BIRAE 2RSS T RAMECH

44%

2%
25%
73%
| |
Senior Intermediate Frontline
management management employees
B EEE RIREIEE g
—#RET
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Occupational quality training

BEREEIN

EM—BEFRrZHFETERERENA
BHE  THGEINRADBIZER
FERZAERMEIEEA) > W BE
EmRRERASIFED > AEE2 A
EREFNE T —RM4F3,00070
BE e T T4 RfERETH
R RBEIEINEE 0 ADENEE
REERENETHTEE/mL > AE
BB BEERSENMBAE—
RIME4F 5,000 £ 8,000 TTHIELRED ©

REHAR REBEIIEARE
40,285 AR > #81E 3| B BRI 159,598 7\
B RNEBEERIE 3% °

Employee training rate by gender

R 2 509 8 T 528 LE

Female

fegkd
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Training hours per capita by rank Training hours per capita by gender
PR AR B 73 B9 A 3935 8 /) B B A BUE 72 69 A 3935 8N /) B B
11.13
4.37
3.61
396 387

Senior  Intermediate  Frontline Male Female

management andjunior  employees B kg
management
=R R £2iE

BEEE EIEE —#38T
In addition, we continue to broaden the scope of career SN > BMITSFE R E A EE S TH
development for our employees, proactively establish a career HERETE > BRAS THEEEE
development platform and provide “multi-path” career BFe ENEERESAIZE
advancement. In accordance with the promotion management B o HPIERB(AAEREERGIE)
mechanism under the Human Resources Management System, SHEERY > PRISEUNBEER
we have clearly outlined the job requirements and promotion SREBFHES » AHEASZEIE >
conditions for each position as well as the promotion assessment AETRMEBMNERAR > UILEE
system, giving our employees clear direction for their career HRETTFEAYE s tENRER
development, thereby propelling for greater commitment in REE~ NABAEREE ©

performance of their duties, consequently giving stronger
guarantee to our corporate efficiency and higher quality of our
workforce.
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4.4 Health and Safety

Dali adheres to the principle of “life matters most, and safety
comes first” and upholds the concept of safe development.
Devoted on strengthening red line awareness and bottom line
thinking, we always put life, safety and health of employees first.
We strictly comply with laws and regulations including Work
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Fire Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases and have formulated several internal regulations such
as Safety Emergency Response and Control Procedures and Work
Environment Control Program. We endeavour to establish a
comprehensive safety management system and occupational
health management mechanism, implement action plans to
safeguard safety and health, and are committed to providing
employees with a safer and more comfortable working
environment to ensure safety and stability in production and
operation.

We adhere to the production safety principle of “safety first,
prevention-oriented and comprehensive treatment” in managing
our daily production activities, so that accountability for quality
can be definitively and specifically traced back to individuals and
events. We are committed in establishing a safe production
environment and have adopted the “5S5” site management
approach to conduct risk checks on our production sites. We have
also set up “risk maps” to strategically eliminate any identified
safety hazards. During the reporting period, we actively took
various measures to safeguard the health and safety of our
employees so as to protect production and life safety in all
aspects and angles.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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Upgrade our staff protective equipment and production work environment to

effectively maintain staff safety in production

Production Safety HE TR  EETERBETAR BNEEET 4 ER2
HERD . Conduct comprehensive safety audit of our workplaces and install prominent

signs in hazardous areas

HITRGMETE2ENZE2HE > TeRBAMREERRH

Regularly publicize rules, regulations and operating procedures on occupational
disease protection on publicity boards in factory areas
THEEERTEREEEMBERIENRERE - RIERIE

Strive to enhance regulated and scientific management of employee occupational
health inspection and file organisation, and regularly spot-checked the status of

Occupational Health implementation by each of the subsidiaries
TR =i B TRERBREREZNNDG - HALEE  LEPRE
BETFRENEBER
. Provide health check-ups and seminars on health science to build a solid

foundation of occupational health knowledge

RHtEREREMANESNEEE  RERERENAER

Safety Management Initiatives

Z2EE{E

ATIRE T Z2MHENE > ER
BETEmue  RFABGERSE
Z2E s EEEE ) BREXER
HZ2TENRFEERRA - K@
BIERMEETIZ2HBEIIR
12 0 MEARM - ERERAARN = RIS

In order to strengthen the safety and precaution skills of our staff
and effectively safeguard their lives, we have actively organised
various safety training and promotional activities, adhering to the
principle of twin-top priorities of corporate development and safe
production. We have created a systematic employee safety
education and training process with a three-tier training system

covering factory, workshop and shift work, by such process
promotion and uniform understanding are implemented in all
dimensions. We make sure that new employees must be trained
and pass the examination before their deployment to their
positions. During the reporting period, all of the Group’s
subsidiaries organised various trainings event according to the
requirements of their respective training plans, with training
contents covering such topics as Safe Operation and Maintenance
of Special Equipment and Facilities, First Aid Training, Advanced
Occupational Skills Training, Pest Control and Management
Training, etc. The trainings covered all employees of the Group,
with an annual participation of 7,840 people.

g 2AMETEE  BEMEIKL
BN EHGEES ] L o SREH
A REES D FABREEIIE S
R BIBABARRELEE B
AR HE(SEREREZ DR
M)V (ERA AT IR AE
B (RBEHAEIEENN)E 23
BEHEALAEEREET » 2F2
BABEEAT840AR ©
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In addition, the Company carried out regular drills and exercises tE5h > AR BIEIRIEH A& 2 75 E R
in safeguarding fire safety, invited representatives from fire and BEBCEZRRIIF  TEHRBHE
traffic control departments to provide professional guidance and JHBA ~ REBFIRIGETEENIEE
propaganda on site from time to time, in order to comprehensively MEE > 2EEABITHAZREE
enhance staff’s fire safety skills and traffic safety awareness, to MR BLZ2EH > BREAETIEN
strengthen the overall sense of urgency and mission of the staff to KKPFBNEBRMESR B
prevent fire hazards, and to stay alert for safe production. THENEE o

Safe operation of

Fire safety training First aid training special equipment training
THBZ 25 SFENHIEN HERHRLIEEEN

Transport safety training Seminars on general health science
XBREEI i FR A R

Training and Promotional Activities on Safety Awareness

REERIENIRERES

As of December 31, 2022, the Group lost 7,001 workdays due to BHE_ T _F#+"HA=1+—H- &K
work-related injuries for the Year, and had no work-related EEAFERIGEAEIEHT00L
fatalities during the period from 2020 to 2022. Regarding the x> HIEIEFEE T FHRE
work-related injuries that have already occurred, we have RERATFETEH  #HHBELE
analysed the entire course of events in the injury cases and have NITEEN » RPIREFHEEFEE
immediately rectified the potential risk links to prevent similar IR R F BT R R R E T T AN
situations from happening again. B BRBAUNBERBRER
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5. CREATING HARMONY IN SOCIETY 5. HElfizgg

At Dali, we never forget our roots and therefore remain true to our BKER ) RS o fEARERZE 2
original aspirations. As an enterprise for the people, we bear our MERZRTEARSE  FEMAHAR
responsibility to attain corporate citizenship firmly in mind. Through WA A EE NN EHREDE > &
increasing our investment in public welfare undertakings, we promote HERARADELERR » AT o
traditional virtues of respecting the aged and cherishing the young as

well as sharing the benefits of our economic advancement with the

community, in an effort to build a harmonious society.

51 BEAN

5.1 Education as the Foundation of Development

Education is a primary task that is crucial for generations to come,
therefore high priority is given to educational development
among various sectors. Riding on the cooperation with local
governments to build schools, we have set up special education
funds, continuously invested in building the teaching staff team
and provided long-term bonuses to encourage outstanding
students, laying a solid foundation of education for students’
hard work, which has strongly promoted educational equality,

BEKR HERE , BEERE
BB - RMTEEMBUT S (FER
SROERE > HUFEHEES
TERAMERMESR > I REAE
HETFIRMHESERE > AEABLERN
SHHBITERBENHEER B/
MiEETHE LT RENERME
FEE o IESh > HAIERESHERAA

improved people’s livelihood and enhanced the social harmony. FEMBRE > UREBIIIREHRE
In addition, we have incorporated charitable donations into our ZESETREBCEE  FEEet
annual financial budget and set up an independent organization ERENTEEARE(E ~ BIELE
to scientifically manage the charitable funds, continuously B o

promoting the standardized and institutionalized development of

corporate charitable activities.
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12th Anniversary of the Establishment of “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian County

BERRERHREENI+=F

2022 marks the 12th anniversary of the establishment of “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian County. Over the past 12
years of devotion in education charities, we have awarded education scholarships amounting to more than RMB100 million in total,
benefiting over 26,000 students and teachers. Students from Huian who have been financed by our scholarships are in top-tier
schools and universities across the country.

"B CHER EEREREEES RUNET A - T ZHEHELAEEE > RUSRAFMBRHRSHNIZEB1ET B
Fefli4 26,000 AR HERERBENBNELERLEENE2E—NERK

At the new starting point of its 12th anniversary, “Liangliang Education Trust Association” continued to grant RMB10 million in 2022
for such educational purposes as awards for teachers, scholarships and grants-in-aid in Huian County, covering 2,795 beneficiaries
across high school, middle school, elementary school, vocational education, special education and other stages of education.
E+BAENHER L SRHARESE ST _FERETNL0008 T ARSRBEEH - 822 - BHBETIF » SEEMEE2795
AN BBEEHR R NS B BHEHEER -

‘gl.&aiwbuﬁi

The Scholarship Award Ceremony of “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian County in 2022

R _FERRERHRESRNRSS RGN
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5.2 Respecting the Aged and Cherishing the Young 52 HEELD

It has been a long-standing motto to “take care all elders and ZEEEZURAZE  HEHURA
every child as one’s own”. As an inheritor and advocate of 24 BEBZ o ERNEAAGRE
traditional Chinese culture, Dali proactively promotes positivity in BRIt WIREEHLSERERS > 4
our society with an emphasis on caring for elderly in need and FEREZEAMETRESTHHE - &
left-behind children. By joining hands with all walks of life, we MiEFHEER  ERASBBERE
send love and care to the disadvantaged groups, and devote our EBOHENE > AERESTE T
efforts to building a better society with shared progress where ERE  HEFENETTEER
solidarity, equality, and love prevail. B

Inheriting the Virtues of Respecting the Elderly
BEWE  FHEE

The Group’s old-age subsidy scheme entered its 13th year in 2022. Since 2010, the Group has granted old-age subsidy of over RMB100
million to more than 100,000 elderly beneficiaries in total. We are glad to see family members — fathers and sons, husbands and
wives, in-laws and sisters — joining hands with each other to receive the old-age subsidy in distribution venues at each community.
Many of the seniors have been receiving the subsidy for 13 consecutive years.

TECF REMEREOMESERNEBEEE  #2010FES  EENELHESEAERSEBBIET ) BRE
FRRBBIOBAR - AR EHEEOBESERIRS > HAEEIRXF ~ RE ~ BE ~ 85k HEHF > HAEAME > &
WZ2OHMES o NMOEFEAGZESE BFRIENNEOHES

In 2022, the Group continued to inject RMB10 million to the old-age subsidy scheme for senior citizens aged 60 or above, who is not
covered by pensions, in certain villages and towns in Huian County, carrying on our all-time commitment to uphold Chinese
traditional virtues. It is also our wish that more social organizations and individuals will join us in caring for the elderly, so that a deep-
rooted culture of filial piety and respect for the elderly can be established in the society.

TETTE AEEEBERA LB TEAZEOHES > EMGEZEONEORU LRAERKENEFRR > I6RBRH T
EXENERER - AR > WHATAEESNHE ST EREUREARARM—ERTEFARER > T8 LRRENZERIE
ZJE e

.

£

"': CEHRREEE+ZREORZE

Seniors receiving old-age subsidy in community center

EAEHEERBOMES
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Caring for Children and Nurturing Hope
HEBRE  IEBRE

The year 2022 marks the 20th anniversary of the founding of the Daliyuan brand, a great time for the Group to launch, together with
the China Youth Development Foundation, a charity campaign named “Care for Left-behind Children: Smiley Face for Hope (B2 &
STREX BB 14 E)”, aiming to raise the community’s awareness for left-behind children. During the campaign, we collected
photos of smiling faces from the public, and for every smiley photo collected, Daliyuan will donate RMB1 to Project Hope through the
China Youth Development Foundation, in a bid to send love and hope to the left-behind children. On top of that, we also donated
RMB500,000 to Project Hope for the construction of Hope Primary School to create a better educational environment for the left-
behind children. During the reporting period, Dali was awarded the 2022 Hope Partner certificate issued by China Youth Development
Foundation.

TECTH BEENEREA 0BT > EEEFTREVFREETTERL RMELRTREXBMNFRE) BEO0RAWED

ERRESHEENBETRENMOER  EBHE > WMAERARTEERRRR > BEE—RXRRR » EFEREATE
SLFERETERNREIRBEITE  AETFREXEENABRNBE o I MMAEAFEIIRBE 0BT ) AURE
NEMEE > ABTREBAGEEFNHEIRE - REPN > ENEEHFESVFERESRAN _S__FREBHRE

K

A=

BEiEB

DONATION CERTIFICATE

2022 Hope Partner Certificate
—ECEREBHRERE
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APPENDIXES

Appendix — The list of significant laws and regulations that
apply to the Group

Pt

I Mgk - ERANEEERREREE

No.

F%5%  Ssignificant laws and regulations that the Group should comply FEBFRERER

1 Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREARBEMB AT E)

2 Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies. (EMmRBIAIRER])

3 Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARHMBERAESHRTE)

4 Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (FPEANRHMBEBESE)

5 Bidding and Tendering Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REFBEBREARE)

6 Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARHEMEERZEE)

7 Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARENEEREEE)

8 Regulations on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEARENEBRZEEEHIEM)

9 Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (hrEE A RHFEZEFE)

10 Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMBE A

11 Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China (HREE N RHEFEEERE)

12 E-Commerce Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEE N RHEMBEEFEEE)

13 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests (hEARKMBEIEEERRFREL)

14 Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMES EED

15 Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (EE N REMESEHERENE)

16 Trade Union Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREARJMBITEE)

17 Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N RHEMEH ERERED

18 Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARBEMELZEEEE)

19 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases (hEE A REFBR R AE)

20 Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (FhEE A\ REMBLEBRED

21 Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (FrEE N RHEFMBIRIF (REE)

22 Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEE A\ REMBEIS B8 2518 %)

23 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (FhEE N REMBE KRS EREE)

24 Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (e A RHEMBEKTEMGE5)

25 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution — {FhEE A\ REFE B EEY)5 RIRIE[HAE)
Caused by Solid Wastes

26 Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China (P N REMBIEAYRETRE)
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RIgs 8K

Il.  Appendix — Indices for Content of ESG Reporting Guide by Il
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

ERmE

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

RIR - HEREFEEN—RIRERARERIER

Migk — FEMF(RIR - HEKRE
AHREESINRAERSI

Chapter
FRIEEE

Environmental
IRIR

Aspect Al
[BEAL

Emissions

HEm

General Disclosure

—RE

KPIALL
RASBAENGEIEALL
KPIAL2
RASBAEIEIEALL
KPIAL3
RASRAEIEIZALS
KPIAL4
RASRAEIEIZALA
KPIALS
RASRAEIEIZALS
KPIAL6
RASRENIEIEALG
164

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERKREREHN - MKRLHNEES « BERBEEEEMNEESHN

@ HE; R

(b) ETFHBETABEATENERMEERRGINER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data

HE TSR R AR R R B o

Greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BERBBAIINE UESE) &k WER) BE MUSESEN - BERMHE) o
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

FRELAEEEYRE CUESTE) Kk WER) BE MMUSESEE( - BEREHH) °
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

FRELEEEEYRE CUESTE) &k WER) BE MMUSEZE(] « BERMEHH) °
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HIRPRET L BN E B 1 R A E E 1S L B AZFTIRE R 57 o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HRERIBEERBEERYNG L RAMFTETILAVREE B AR & E DB L B RATEREY
BB o
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3. Promoting Green Production

R ERE

3.3 Energy Management

33EEREE
3.4 Pollution Control
34T ZRAEH|

3.3 Energy Management

33FEREE

3.4 Pollution Control
34T HRIEH|

3.4 Pollution Control
34T HRIEH|

3. Promoting Green Production

3R ERE

3. Promoting Green Production

3R ERE
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R B REAIRS

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs Chapter
IRIR « B REFIHRE—RINE R RRERIEE FRIEEEN
Aspect A2 Use of Resources

BEA2 HEiREA

General Disclosure

—ARIEE

KPIA2.1

RASRAEIEIZA2.1

KPIA2.2
RASRAEIEIZA2.2
KPIA2.3
RASRAEIEIZA23
KPIA2.4

RASRAENIEIRA24

KPIA2.5
RASRAATIEIZA25
Aspect A3

EmEA3

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERAER (BIEEIR « KREMBREME) AIBEE o

Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

BROANLEE -~ #7F B8 BF - BETRES -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RERRDNERR,SEREER(NE « fReUH) EEE UTETREE) REE M
NEEEEN - BIEREE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BIKEBREE IUEEEBA - BIEREHE) °

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HLFRE] 1Z BIRE IR B et B AR R A R B L BARPTERERAV S BY o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HEESREE AR L] BERRIRE » MURPRET LB AR B iR EE
A ER o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

SRR EEMENEE (UM E) & ER) BLEEBMGE -

The Environment and Natural Resources

RIERRARR

BLEERATR

3. Promoting Green Production

IMERERE

3.2 Energy Management
32BEREE

3.3 Resource Management
3ZEREE

3. Promoting Green Production
IMERERE

3. Promoting Green Production
3R ERE

3.3 Resource Management
3ZEREE

3.3 Resource Management

33EREE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPIA3.1
RASRAEIIEIZA3.L
Aspect A4

[EHE A4

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

BREITAHRBERRABRERERZEHBER

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them.

MR EHHRERRAERNEA ERERNERAMTE
Climate Change

FAREE

B91TE -

3.3 Resource Management

33EREHE

3.3 Resource Management

33EREE

General Disclosure

—ARINER

KPI A4.1
RRSRARRISIR AG.1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

WA EH BRI EEHETAELEXENERRIFEFEENBER

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

HEEERAISEEHETAELEZENEARGARSER - REHTH -

EfEmEERRAR

3.1 Responding to Climate Change
SIS RREE

3.1 Responding to Climate Change
JIEHRBEL
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Rigs B RERRS

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

RIR - HEREFEEN—RIRERARENIEE

Chapter
FRTEEEf

Social
e
Aspect B1
[EmEB1

Employment

{1

General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPIB1.1
RASRERIEIEBLL
KPIB1.2
RARAEMIEIRBL.2
Aspect B2

[EmEB2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
ARG R ARE ~ BEREF - TIERE - B - TEHE -« 2t RERUREMM
BB :

@ HE; R

b)  HETABEAXENHEEZERROINER o

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

R~ EIFERE - FEER RMEB DN ESBE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

RIER] ~ FEAER M ER DEERKLLE -

Health and Safety

Jiede Aok ey

4.1 Talent Attraction
41 AA RS

4.1 Talent Attraction
41 AT E5]

4.2 Communication and Care

428 BERIR

General Disclosure

—ARIER

KPIB2.1

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

ARMRMZE2TRERREESHRHELBEN

@ HE R

(b)  ETFHBETABERATENERMEERRGINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three years.

3.4 Health and Safety

J4fEERE

3.4 Health and Safety

RARENMIERB2LL  BE=ZFNRAILIERFEMIETHABRILE - J4REZE
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 3.4 Health and Safety
RAREMIEER2 EIGERATIEEE- 3AREZR
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are 3.4 Health and Safety
implemented and monitored.
RRENIEIRB23 RHFTERMMB R REEZ 2 UREMAITRER S - 3ARERE
Aspect B3 Development and Training
fEmB3 BRRE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
—RRIRE BRIRA REEIT TIFME A H R R AEAVEUER o H B IES) o
Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the 3.3 Staff Nurturing
employer.
BrtEREE > FTEEREINEBNAIMNERE - 338THEA
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior 3.3 Staff Nurturing
management, middle management).
RARENMIEIRB3.L  RUBIRESEN SREEE - PREEES) AONZIlRER DL o 338TIEE
KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category. 3.3 Staff Nurturing
RARENMIEIRR32  BUFIREESERNE D BRESTMZNAITIIRE 33BTEE
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R B REAIRS

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs Chapter
RIR - e RE IR A AR E R R R ENISE FRIEEEN
Aspect B4 Labour Standards

[EE B4 SR

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI B4.1
RASRAERIEIEBA.L
KPI B4.2
RARAEMIEIR B2
Aspect B5

JEEB5

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRABI LB T55HI T

@@ B R

(b)  ETFHBETABEATENERMEERRGINER

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.

H RSB IS 1B B A FE M LU e B8 T K5 HlIZ5 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

R B IRER BN HRE RIS 57 o

Supply Chain Management

s EE

4.1 Talent Attraction
41 AA RS

4.1 Talent Attraction
41 NA RS
4.1 Talent Attraction
41 AA RS

General Disclosure
— iR

KPIB5.1
RARAAMIEIRB5.1
KPI B5.2

RSRAERIE1R BS.2

KPIB5.3

BSRAERIIE1R B3
KPI B5.4

RASREIEIEB54
Aspect B6
[EMEB6

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

B ENIRIE RS RBBER o

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

& DRHERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

H AR AHERNES > MERNTARMIBOINMERHE - WRERMEENRITR
EEE Tk ©

Description of management used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B RH HERSERANRE R ERMNEE » LURBRHNITREERTE
Description of management used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HRTREHEEREFELARRERKRBNER » WRHEMAITRERSE
Product Responsibility

EREE

2.1 Quality Assurance
21 EE2RE
2.1 Quality Assurance
21 B 2RE
2.1 Quality Assurance

21 EERE
2.1 Quality Assurance

21 E8RE
2.1 Quality Assurance

21 B2RE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B6.1
BB AEMIEIEB6.1
KPI B6.2
RARAENIEIZB6.2
KPIB6.3
RARAEIEIEB6.3
KPI B6.4
BB AEMIEIE B6.4
KPIB6.5

RSB AEMIEIE B6.5

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling, privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁk(#éun*ﬂﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁﬁé@ﬁi#% B RE - MEEEURER AR

@  BE;

(b) i%?%ﬁéﬁ)\ﬁik%gE'J*EEEEE&%E@U & o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

BENBEXERBYTRALZ 2 AREEHMERKWNEDLE -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.

RN ERRRBHRFEE UREHE S E o

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.

ik AR R RIB R E A RV G

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

HhEEREBERERBIWER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented

and monitored.

FOH B B U RIS R FARREER

> DU ABRARAT R BEZE 5 7% ©

EfEmEERRAR

2.4 Sincere Service

2.4 BDRFE

2.1 Quality Assurance

21 B E1RE

2.1 Quality Assurance

21 EERE

2.2 Innovation and Development
2.2 AR

2.1 Quality Assurance

21 B E1RE

2.4 Sincere Service

2.4 AR
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Rigs B RERRS

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

RIR - HEREFEEN—RIRERARENIEE

Chapter
FRIZE

Aspect B7
[EHEB7

Anti-corruption

R&s

General Disclosure

—RE

KPIB7.1
RASRAEMIEIERT.L
KPIBT7.2
RASRAEMIEIERT.2
KPIB7.3
RASRAENIEIZRT 3
Aspect B8

[EmHE B8

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

ARALFRR ~ $13R ~ AEFREREN

@ HE; R

(b)  ETFHBETABEATENERMEERRGINER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

RERBAHBFITASEBER LN EBENESFARENEE RFFRER o

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

IR SR R RIET » URIBARAIT R B T3 0% ©

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HtmEEkE TRHENRESE -

Community Investment

HERE

1.2 Business Ethics

12PIETE

1.2 Business Ethics

12 EER
1.2 Business Ethics

12 EER
1.2 Business Ethics
129 2EIER

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B8.1
RASRAEEIZ BS.L
KPI B8.2

RSB AEMIEIZ RS2
168

Policies on engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BENZHERTREEMTIHEFTENRREER THEE BHEN miIBER
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

STEREE (HE CRIBEE - HTEHER #F Xt -Ba) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIHEFABAER NEHRARRE) o
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5. Creating Harmony in Society
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEENRS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EYzx

To the shareholders of Dali Foods Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dali Foods Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 175 to 278, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

RKEFTAISE A
HRBIRFREBEITN
Ribdh— 27

Tel E:%: +852 2846 9888
Fax {2E: +852 2868 4432
ey.com

RENRREBARATRR
(RFIS8 S M B9 EA R B IRAE)

BER

BEBEEZE IS EER BEMHENBERER
BRAR (MERE)) REMBAR (ME£H)) B
ARFBRE  ERN B2 "_F+"B=+—
BREHMBRRE BEZAILEFENSHHIE
mRKREMEEWmER EHEEEHR KRG H
REREX > UREHMBFREME (BEEX
GEEERME)

A

SER A aHYBRREBREBES BSOS
(TEBEEAE)) EHRNE B HRS %R
(TEBMBREED) AEMA TR S5
ER T+ A=t+—HBNaHMBERR
REBEZAILEFENGHMBRERGHES
ME - WEBREBADFREINKERTE XA
8o

ERHNER
EERBEBEHMRAGRMBNEBETER
(TEBBFER ) ETEZ - ESNARFET
NEREEFNRENZHETRFEZ S HIBR
RAFREHNEF—NE—S B - RES B
MAENEERFEE B FA (PR > &
LFUN BEEE - TOBRETRETHEMETR
Bif - EEME  ESMESNEZERERTE
REEMAESENERIBMHER
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VR ER S GIIE =]

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

FIRELEE

REBEESNEESE > BARELFESEEEL
RERENEHMBRETREENEFER - EF
EBZAHMBRERMIEERS R EEZS
FE MAGHZFEEBERER - ITXE
FEMES > ARESFEZREEILTFENRL
BEARIEEFER -

ESERTAREZMTEL S HIBHRER
FIENEF—HPTENET - BEEZFIEIRHE
MEE - FIt ' ESNBHEECESELDRE
EHRAHYBRTETEARKRE R ERTERY
RFHNERE - BZEF (BEAEETIEEM
ETHER) NERDSEETEWE HUHIRE
BRBEOSRREHTER -

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

R SR

Impairment of trade receivables

B S EWRIE R E

As at December 31, 2022, the balance of trade receivables was
RMB1,493,776,000, which accounted for approximately 7.4% of the
current assets of the Group.

RIE_Z_F+ZHA=+—H8 BEZERIEBEEGHAARIE
1,493,776,0007C » ff BEBERIREEEMNT7.4% ©

Under HKFRS 9, the impairment of trade receivables is based on expected
credit loss (“ECL”) approach. The measurement of the ECL requires
significant judgements and estimations on the key assumptions used in
the ECL models, such as the expected future cash flows and forward-
looking adjustments. Considered the significance of trade receivables
balance and significant estimations and judgements involved, we
identified the impairment of trade receivables as a key audit matter.
RBEEBUBREENE 9 > BRRERIBERETIZBMESRE
(TFEHAEEEIR)) FIETT - ST ERREER IR EHAREERERE
NERNETERRETERAE AL > GITEIRRIR S R KA
MR - EREEZRBUNRIEGERINER LU MBI E R[G5 K
Fih > B E S RERURR B SRR ELEE -

170

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EZETERFNAEIEMREIZEE

We obtained an understanding of management’s
credit management process on the trade receivables
and evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern the credit control, debt collection and
estimates of expected credit losses.
EETREEEHESRERENEEEERRY
Wb T2 REPEIEMRET ~ RITRIERNS > HE
EEEET - WEKTRIEERRME

We tested the ageing analysis prepared by
management.
EEAHEEE M RENIREE DT ©

We evaluated management’s judgements involved in
the determination of impairment of trade receivables,
including the historical experience and forward-
looking adjustments.
EETEEEENETE 2 RWRIRERER Y R
HEf > BIERTERRATHEIEEEE

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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VR ER S GIIE =]

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

FIRELEE ()

Key audit matters

Mg EZER

Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

&5 e IE R E (48

Details are set out in note 2.4, note 3 and note 19 to the financial

statements for related disclosures.

TERAIREE ST IR BN M B R R M5 2.4  PYEE3 RePEE 19 ©

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EEETERFNEIERREIZEIE

We tested the model parameters including the
underlying historical and external data used, examined
the actual losses recorded during the current financial
year and assessed whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances
and the computation.

EFAFHRE2 Y > QEFEERBERINIEE ;
ERNENMVHREERSNERGRKTEHES
BT EEERRBER AR ERAFTRE

We tested on a sampling basis on the cash receipts
from customers after the financial year end relating to
trade receivable balances as at December 31, 2022.
EERR_Z__F+_B=+—BNEZRHKEX
EEH > LS AEVBREERBREEANIER
EWREITRIE o

We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

EET AT B RENEDERNEE AR -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. We obtained Section Management Discussion and Analysis prior to
the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the rest Sections of
the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
on the other information obtained prior to the date of the auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

HAFROEMER
EAREFANHMERAREET - HthENe
EERNFRNAAER  TRESHEBRE
REZHOZUIRE - BERERYMRE A
MG ERE SRR ONED » BESTHERNE
PRI B EB R S RO AR o

EEHAHMBERRFUHNEREERERME
k> BES T EHHEMERNERETATNZLE

VN
i o

NESFEZAHVHREME » EFNEEHHE
BEMER > EMEBEMENE TR HIT
BERNEFEBZBETETHNERFEERS
5o WP HFEERRERL - HEEREEFR
FIZEEMER S B RS EMEN BETHNT
5 EER/ILFEMBERHFEBRRERLL -
EERBEEMEE gt - EFUEBREFR
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VR ER S GIIE =]

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EFEMSHMBRRAKIENTRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =]

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

HEENME L S H I BRRAREN
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =]

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is CHEUNG NG.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 29, 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
AHEEREMESNER

Year ended December 31,2022 &% — X~ —F+_H=+—HIFFE

2022 2021

—E-C £

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

s ARET AREFIT

REVENUE Wrzs 5(a) 19,957,199 22,294,000

Cost of sales THE A 6(a) (12,933,245) (14,138,394)

Gross profit EX 7,023,954 8,155,606

Other income and gains H AN B I 7 5(b) 1,451,152 1,428,745

Selling and distribution expenses PHE R A HH R (3,536,240) (3,884,073)

Administrative expenses THEY (747,751) (628,358)

Finance costs =17 7 (127,352) (86,241)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX PRAR BT 6 4,063,763 4,985,679

Income tax expense FriSBs 10 (1,073,675) (1,260,454)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREHN 2,990,088 3,725,225
Attributable to: UUTFALHEN:

Owners of the parent FATEE A 2,990,088 3,725,225
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 2,990,088 3,125,225
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitviz s
Exchange differences: ERERE

Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETD

foreign operations PERERE (83,871) 6,565
Net other comprehensive income that PR BRI AT REEHT

may be reclassified to profit or loss DEEEIBmMAVE A

in subsequent periods IREU R EE (83,871) 6,565
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHMES WS

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (PR#R5%E) (83,871) 6,565
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEREEREREE

FOR THE YEAR 2,906,217 3,731,790
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B iEGAEMGREWE R
Year ended December 31,2022 &% — X~ —F+_H=+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—E-C T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Py 5E ARETT ARETFIT
Total comprehensive income UTALEGES
attributable to: WS 482 .
Owners of the parent BATHEE A 2,906,217 3,731,790
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BATISERESREEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FELERE
THE PARENT 12
Basic =N
— For profit for the year — PR RMBO.22 RMB0.27
AE#o0227t  ARE0277T
Diluted i3
— For profit for the year — E PR RMBO.22 RMB0.27
AE®o0227t AR®0277T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BIHMBRER

December 31,2022 W _E__#F+_H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C =T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR%Fx AEETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEEHEE
Property, plant and equipment W R REE 13 5,573,032 5,309,988
Investment property BB 14 207,121 216,504
Right-of-use assets EREESE 15(a) 669,349 702,726
Intangible assets W EE 16 1,033 1,152
Prepayments BN 17 214,070 365,228
Deferred tax assets IEERIBE E 26 53,105 47 479
Total non-current assets ERENEELLE 6,717,710 6,643,077
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Inventories =8 18 1,062,910 1,194,257
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 19 1,493,776 1,371,487
Prepayments and other receivables Faf =R IE K E it E W IE 20 989,986 1,050,093
Financial assets at fair value through BN A ABmL
profit or loss TREE 21 - 500,000
Pledged deposits BERER 22 69,058 831
Cash and bank balances RE LIR1TER 22 16,669,944 16,645,709
Total current assets MENBEAEE 20,285,674 20,762,377
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEhaE
Trade payables B S EA A 23 974,624 1,028,354
Other payables and accruals HihENRIE R E S A 24 1,205,044 1,190,383
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRITEMR 25 5,457,823 5272,601
Lease liabilities HEaRE 15(b) 18,626 18,501
Tax payable fEIRIB 219,326 205,450
Total current liabilities VIEI)=RE=GEE 7,875,443 7,715,289
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 12,410,231 13,047,088
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEEHEERRSEE 19,127,941 19,690,165
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITEN 25 32,000 -
Lease liabilities HEaRE 15(b) 477 18,061
Deferred income IRIEU A 27 332,154 336,584
Deferred tax liabilities IEERIBE(E 26 69,302 99,496
Total non-current liabilities JERENE[E4E%E 433,933 454,141
Net assets BEEFHE 18,694,008 19,236,024
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BHFRRTR

December 31,2022 W _E_—fF+_H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARETT AREBTT
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B AF#EHE AE(LIER
Share capital R& 7 28 112,712 112,712
Reserves [EX 29 18,581,296 19,123,312
Total equity “EREER 18,694,088 19,236,024
Xu Shihui Zhuang Weiqgiang
FritiE PEIEL:
Director Director
0 0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
aiHEZEER

Year ended December 31,2022 &% — X~ —F+_H=+—HIFFE

Exchange
Share Merger Statutory fluctuation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ER
iz aftEE EE RE A RE A A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000
ARETFT ARETrT AREBTT AREBTT ARETT ARET:R
(note 28) (note 29) (note 29)
(FizE28) (FizE29) (MizE29)
At January 1,2021 R-2-—&—F-H 12,712 (23165 1784487 (162993 15754395 174465436
Profit for the year ERHEF - - - - 372525 3725225
Other comprehensive income  FREfMAZE I
forthe year:
Exchange differences related ~ BREIEINEFSHY
to foreign operations ERERE - - - 6,565 - 6,565
Total comprehensiveincome  EREEE 4858
forthe year - - - 6,565 3,125,225 3,731,790
Final 2020 dividend declared  BEER-_Z_TF
FHRE - - - - (968,704) (968,704)
Interim 2021 dividend TR —FhERE - - - - (992,498) (992,498)
Transfer from retained profits &4 B {7 & F - - 26,103 - (26,103) -
At December 31,2021 RZB-—-&
+=-B=+-H 112,712 (23,165) 1,810,590 (156,428) 17,492,315 19,236,024
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
St
Year ended December 31,2022 &% — X~ —F+_H=+—HIFFE

Equity-settled Exchange
Share Treasury Merger  share award Statutory  fluctuation Retained
capital shares reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
[ e ER
s Bk afifE  RORBRHRE ek KRB REEN &3t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000
MizE AEETR AEETR* ARETw* ARETR* ARETn* ARETn* ARETR* ARETR
(note 28) (note 29) (note 29) (note 30) (note 29)
(Fitzk28) Mz 29) (HzE29) (Fitz30) Iz 29)
At January 1,2022 W---%-B-H 12,712 - (23,165) - 1,810,590 (156,428) 17,492,315 19,236,024
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 2,990,088 2,990,088
Other comprehensive income EREfiRE K
forthe year:
Exchange differencesrelated ~ BREESNERA
toforeign operations ERER - - - - - (83,871) - (83,871)
Total comprehensive income  E Rk &I 4E%E
forthe year - - - - - (83,871) 2,090,088 2,906,217
Share repurchased for share 5t ig{7 52 Ehst 2183l
award scheme Wik 29 - (1,779,791) - - - - - (1,779,791)
Equity-settledshareaward IR ERIDMEEIB S
expense 30 - - - 60,397 - - - 60,397
Final 2021 dividend declared BER_ZF_—%&
FERE 1 - - - - - - (889,792) (889,792)
Interim 2022 dividend “ECEBRE 1 - - - - - - (839,047)  (839,047)
Transfer from retained profits B ERE R - - - - 24,915 - (24,915) -
At December 31,2022 RZEZZ
+-B=+-H 12,712 (1,779,79) (23,165) 60,397 1,835,505 (240,209) 18,728,649 18,694,008

RMB19,123,312,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB18,581,296,000 (2021:

- ZEREREOESHUBRIRANSHERA
R 118581296000 ( —Z B — —F: AR
19,123,312,00075) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AHRERER

Year ended December 31,2022 &% — X~ —F+_H=+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—E_C £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P EE ARET AREBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (& EENFRSIRSRE
Profit before tax PRI ATRT 4,063,763 4,985,679
Adjustments for: FEU TR IBEHAEE .
Interest income — bank deposits FBEWN — IRITIER (142,132) (28,805)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE. BEMREER
plant and equipment, net R E5 18 F 4R 6(c) 2,079 419
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)%. BENMEREITE 13 542,527 738,853
Depreciation of investment property BB EIRE 14 9,383 9,413
Depreciation of right-of-use assets HRREERTE 15(a) 33,665 33,149
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EE 16 550 790
Impairment loss on trade receivables B W ISR EEE 6(c) 3,591 4,351
Write-down of inventories MoREE 6(c) 1,350 1,780
Finance costs RAE A 7 127,352 86,241
Government grants recognised in T8 N FESB R BUN #84
profits or loss 27 (28,356) (75,545)
Equity-settled share award expense RIS BRI IR 30 60,397 -
4,674,169 5,756,325
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRSRITER 38 0) R (48,000) 100,000
Increase in trade receivables B 5 EEIEE N (125,880) (476,279)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and SENEREY A=l A&
other receivables B (i) 105,799 (427,803)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories ESERL (g 129,997 (121,433)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables B Z B FIBLEN 25
Geizl) /1ghn (53,730) 44,367
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals  EE(FIE KR EsTE A
a0, Geicb) 33,351 (337,549)
Cash generated from operations I RRISIRE 4,715,706 4,537,628
Interest paid BAHME (102,873) (53,288)
Tax paid BEIRIE (1,095,619) (1,278,687)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING SRR ARSI RERE
ACTIVITIES 3,517,214 3,205,653
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B IREMER

Year ended December 31,2022 B{ZE —&FE_— —F+ _H=+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—g-C BT —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR®ET ARBTTT
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES &5 ;ZEIFTEIRSRE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE - BMEKREER

equipment and investment property I e =LY (669,849) (1,277,066)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYIE - BEKEEER

plant and equipment HIFr 18RRI 1,650 4,068
Prepayments for right-of-use assets FEREEERNE - (61,224)
Additions to intangible assets B EERE (431) (771)
Receipt of government grants for property, IWEN % ~ R R E U

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets EFREE E BT /ERL 23,926 53,822
Interest received from bank deposits BIRITEUREF] S 64,978 13,442
Increase in pledged bank deposits BERIRTERIE M (20,227) (759)
Net (increase)/decrease in bank deposits SRITERR (2 hn) R B EE (2,909,454) 900,000
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN BREEHFARERERH

INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,509,407) (368,488)
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM RUEIEED (FRA) FA1S

FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERE
New bank loans IRITEMN 6,102,467 5,574,601
Repayment of bank loans ERIRITE™R (5,885,245) (2,219,681)
Dividends paid BIIRE (1,728,839) (1,961,202)
Principal portion of lease payments HENTWNAREE D (17,747) (16,865)
Repurchase of treasury shares BE[CIEF AP (1,779,791) -
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM mEES) (FRA),Fhfg

FINANCING ACTIVITIES REHEBEE (3,309,155) 1,376,853
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH B RBSZEY L)/

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1ENEEE (3,301,348) 4,214,018
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ E4#JIRERIBEEEY 16,595,709 12,375,147
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PER BN R EFRE (83,871) 6,544
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRSKRFASZLEY

AT END OF YEAR 13,210,490 16,595,709
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHETRER

Year ended December 31, 2022 BFE _—&FE_——

FrA=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-C 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P EE ARBT ARETFTT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERAESLBULER DI
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks and on hand RITREFRS 13,094,365 6,692,709
Bank deposits with original maturity of TERIEE DR =@ A
less than three months BIERITIERR 116,125 9,403,000
Bank deposits with original maturity of TEEIEAH BB =8 A
over three months HIR1ITEZN 3,459,454 550,000
Cash and bank balances as stated in the MR FRYIRE K
statement of financial position RITAEER 22 16,669,944 16,645,709
Add: Financial assets at fair value through R AFEESABEN
profit or loss ETMEE - 500,000
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity of B AR RIEE BB =EA
over three months HIRITTER (3,459,454) (550,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BemaxRMIERESE
the statement of cash flows INEEEY) 13,210,490 16,595,709
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Notes to the Financial Statements
A FEERRIMISE

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dali Foods Group Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted

company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability

under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The registered

address of the Company is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally

engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and beverage in Mainland

China.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), the holding

company of the Company is Divine Foods Limited (the “Parent”), a

company established in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The controlling

shareholders of the Company are Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms. Xu

Yangyang, Divine Foods Limited, Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine Foods-2

Limited, Divine Foods-3 Limited and Hi-Tiger Limited (together known

as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AFREEER
ENBRERBRAR (TRRF) RIEFH
SREREETHSEEEMMIAER
RERAF KRB K EMB E RS
Maples Corporate Services Limited » 3h it &
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands ©

ERBB—RREERAT - XA KRHE
MEBAR (s TAER) TE2ETEAN
WREFR MM EERIFE -

AREEE(TEER)) XA RABNER
/AB) % Divine Foods Limited (TEFAF] 1) » 2
—RERBHERBEE (RBEREED X
IHRTF o RRBINERIRE AT HIEL
E RERZ LT 5B B L L Divine
Foods Limited ~ Divine Foods-1 Limited ~
Divine Foods-2 Limited ~ Divine Foods-3
Limited Kz Hi-Tiger Limited (#: 78 2 I %2 B% B%
H]) e

BRIMBARNER
TRBEZMBABMFIBUT ¢

Nominal value Percentage
Place of incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration, type of legal ordinary/ attributable
entity, and date of Place of registered to the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation|/ registration operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
SRR EOiE HATE
EERRSER R BRTLE/ fema ot
ACET T AT Gl = ERME sMRAEE E# MiE TEXH
Dali Foods Holdings Limited The BVI Limited liability company BV USD100 100% - Investment holding
November 4, 2014
Dali Foods Holdings Limited HEERHEEERLAT HEHERES 1007 RETEE
—Z-mE+—AmA
Dali Foods Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong SAR. Limited Hong Kong HKD100 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited liability company
November 11,2014
EFERER (FR)BRAT  HERITHEERAT &% 100#87T REZER

~2-mE+—B+-8
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FATS R EE

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

AGE

Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd.
(ENEREEERAR) "

ENRRERARAR

Quanzhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(RMENERBRAF) "

FMNENERERAT

Hubei Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(HIENERBRAR) "

MIENERERAT

Jilin Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(EMENERBRAR)

EMENEREBRAT

Gansu Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(HEENERBRAR)

HREENRRERAT

Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(EEEFERERAR)

ERENRRERAR

Place of incorporation/
registration, type of legal
entity, and date of
incorporation|/ registration
MBI HiotRs -
EERASER R
eI Eie AR

The People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC”) Wholly-owned
foreign enterprise
February 10,1993

i \ RAE (M)
SEBELR
—WNW=EZR+H

The PRC Limited
liability company
January 12,1993
HEEREEAT
—h=8—A+ZH

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 16,2005
FEBREEAT
“ZRRERBTAA

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 17,2005
FEERETRT
—ZRRERBTLH

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 31,2005
FEBREERT
“ZEERENR=T—H

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 18,2005
FEERETRT
“ZRRERBTNR

Place of
operations

BRI

Mainland China

Ryt

Mainland China

eIt

Mainland China

Rl

Mainland China

el

Mainland China

FER

Mainland China

el

1. AFRKREEEH (@)

ERMBEARNER (48)

Nominal value Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
Direct Indirect
HATE
BRTLE/ fema ot
sMRAEE E# %

RMB1,450,000,000 - 100%

of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR 1,450,000,000 75

RMB90,939,305 - 100%

ARH90,939,305 75

RMB209,000,000 - 100%

AR 209,000,000 7T

RMB100,000,000 - 100%

AR 100,000,0007T

RMB209,000,000 - 100%

AR 209,000,000 7T

RMB190,000,000 - 100%

AR 190,000,0007T

Principal
activities

FTEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FATS R EE

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

AGE

Chengdu Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(REEFERBRAR)

HEEN RRERAR

Ma’anshan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(RBLENRRERAR) "

EREFNERERAT

Shanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(LFEEFBRBRAR) "

WAEENRRBRAS

Yunnan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(EmENERERAR)"

EmENERERAT

Xiamen Dali Commerce and
Trade Co., Ltd.

(EPIEFIBEERRAR) "
EPIENBEARAT

Henan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(IEENERERAR)

FEENERBRAT

Guangdong Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(FREFERBREAR) "

BRENRAARAT

Place of incorporation/
registration, type of legal
entity, and date of
incorporation|/ registration
MBI HiotRs -
EERASER R
eI Eie AR
The PRC Limited

liability company

June 28,2005
FEBREEAT

“EERFRAIT\R

The PRC Limited
liability company
October9, 2007
HEEREREAT
“22tFTANE

The PRC Limited
liability company
November 15, 2007
FEBREEAT
“22+F+—A+IA

The PRC Limited

liability company

March 25,2008
HEEREREAT

R N\F=AZ+HH

The PRC Limited
liability company
April2,2010
FEBREEAT
“Z-ZEMACH

The PRC Limited

liability company

July 21,2010
FEBRETRT
“Z-ZFtBT+—H

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 5,2010
FEBREEAT
“Z-2£)\ALA

Place of
operations

BRI

Mainland China

Ryt

Mainland China

FRElRt

Mainland China

Ryt

Mainland China

FRElRt

Mainland China

Ryt

Mainland China

FRElRt

Mainland China

eIyt

1. /‘-\\_.I&Elﬁﬂ (H‘E)

Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
ordinary/ attributable
registered to the Company Principal
share capital Direct Indirect activities
FATER
BRTLE/ bl
HEMRAEE Ei# Mg FEEH
RMB105,000,000 - 100% |
ARH 105,000,000 7T
RMB160,000,000 - 100% |
ARH160,000,0007T
RMB105,000,000 - 100% |
AERH105,000,0007T
RMB110,000,000 - 100% |
ARH110,000,0007T
RMB330,000,000 - 100% Investment
property
AR 330,000,000 7 REME
RMB150,000,000 - 100% |
A RH150,000,0007T
RMB200,000,000 - 100% |
AEH200,000,0007T

186 Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements
P e N

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. KEIREBRSEE (8)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ERMBEARNER (48)

Nominal value Percentage
Place of incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration, type of legal ordinary/ attributable
entity, and date of Place of registered to the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation|/ registration operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
MBI HiotRs - HATE
EEBRRENR BRTLE/ bl
AT eI Eie AR EE HEMRAEE Ei# Mg FEEH
Nanchang Dali Foods Co,, Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100% I
(BEEMERBRAR) liability company
August 2, 2010
BEEFERERAT FEBREEAT FERH AR 140,000,000 7
—3-3£)\A2A
Jiangsu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB250,000,000 - 100% |
(IsENERBRAR) " liability company
August 23,2010
LEENBREBRAT FEBREEAT FEIR AR 250,000,000 7
“Z-ZF\BZ+=H
Hebei Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100% |
(ribEN B RBRAR) liability company
April 22,2011
ALEFERERAT FEBREEAT FERH AR 100,000,000 7
—Z—HMmBZ+ZH
Shaanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100% |
(AEENERBRAR) " liability company
June 28,2011
RFEEN B RERAT FEBRETRT FEIR 80,000,000 7
“Z—FRBZ+N\RH
Shenyang Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100% |
(EBENERBRAR) liability company
May 21,2012
BHENRRERAT FEBREEAT FERH AR 200,000,000 7
“Z—-FRB-+-H
Fujian Dali Development Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100% Trading
(BRENZBBRAR) liability company
August 26, 2016
BRENZERBRAT FEBRETRT FEIR AEH50,000,00075 8%
“Z-RENBIHRH
Fujian Dali Foods The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100% Research and
Technology Co., Ltd. liability company development
(BREFEMBKRABRAE) " Juneld, 2017
BRENERBEARAR FEBREFRF FEIPgt ARH50,000,0007 i

“2—t&"A+NAE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

AGE

Guangxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(RREFERBRAR) "

b

BRENRRARAS

el

Guizhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(BMENERBRAR) "

BMNEFNERERAR
Ma’anshan Dali Development Co.,
Ltd.

(BELENERERAR)
BRILENZERERAT

Happy Sky Ventures Co., Ltd.
(BEXERERRAE)

SRERBRAT

Notes:

Place of incorporation/
registration, type of legal
entity, and date of
incorporation|/ registration
SEMARIL B aEithEs -
EERASER R
sEMARIL B2 A

The PRC Limited
liability company
April 15,2018
FEBREEAT
“Z-\EMA+IH

The PRC Limited
liability company
March 6,2018
HEEREREAT
2 \f=A"H

The PRC Limited
liability company
January 18,2021

HEAREELT
A

The BVI Limited
liability company
November 8, 2021
HRERESERAT
2 —%+—A/\H

Manufacture and sale of food and beverage

II: Manufacture and sale of food, beverage and related packaging

Il Manufacture and sale of beverage

English translations of names for identification purpose only

Place of
operations

SRR

Mainland China

Ryt

Mainland China

FRElRt

Mainland China

Ryt

BvI

EEHERES

1. AFRKREEEH (@)

ERMBEARNER (48)

Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
ordinary/ attributable
registered to the Company
share capital Direct Indirect

FATER
BRTLE/ bl
HEMRAEE Ei# %
RMB250,000,000 - 100%
ARH250,000,000 7T
RMB200,000,000 - 100%
AERH 200,000,000 75
RMB50,000,000 - 100%
ARH50,000,0007
- - 100%

BT
LERIBE B MR

Principal
activities

FTEEH

Trading

Investment holding

REER

I FEREERR R RABEE

IIE FERIEEERR
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including;

a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

c)  theGroup’svoting rights and potential voting rights.

1 REE

ZEVMBRRCREBEEBGHMLAT (EH
BEEIAE)) AAMNEBYBREE
I (TEBMBREER > SEMEEBM
BREER - EBGHER ((HBGHE
) k52 R8) ~ B ARG HRIREER
BMFBIMMERERE - ZFWHBERERTD
REEERABRERR A TES
AB@mHEMEELAFETERI © Ix
FEMRAESI » ZFPHFRERUARE (A
R 27 FREBEHYEREERER
T

BHEE
BHUBRREEBELI LA RENBEAR (4
BIAER)BE_T_—_F+"_A=+—
AIEFENTBEREK WBAREALRT
HHEERNEREGRNER (215518
MER) - EAEEEEAHSEEENE
EREHRAEEIHRIERSERN > TAE
MEKRENREREENTEZZOR (B
RERN I EAEEENERFREREY
KHEREE) > BIRRAERREEREY
RAVIEHHE o

—REREEFBIRERTNIEGE - 2
AR ERIEEER VNRENRBF
HRERIIRLUEN G » REBPFFEE
ELHKRENRERE IR EEEAMR
BEERIER > 8 :

a) HEZREHRHMKRBEREANG
HZHE S

b) HMEXNLHEEREN; &

o FEENREEREBETREE -

ENEmEBEABRAR | £ 2022 189
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same

re

porting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

of

such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are

at

tributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-

controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,

in

m

come, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
embers of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

th

ree elements of control described above. A change in the ownership

interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment

re

tained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The

Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had

di

190

rectly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below:

(@)  Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June
2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after January 1, 2022. As there
were no business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

B EREHRINE

FAEBOCHAFEMHRRE TFA T
RESTE B BRSEZEL -

BRUMBREER HSERZEL
EEE 4 )
ERAGHE] WE - BERRE  FH
F 16572 MER] EMERIRIFT iR E
EBGER FREH — BITEA989
FITHZIER]T N
EEMEREEL EBUBREENF 1R
ZE-\FE ERMBREERD
ZECEFY Fo5  BAUBRS

FEAE A% 16550 2 259
PR BIR B G R
ENE =2

BRNAEBRNEETEBMBRSER
2B R BT S

(a) BEBYBREEREIN/ETUZE
—N\FERB BRI BRESHSER
Z Rt (TELSHEZR)) BRI SR
KIRMR R ZIIERZ IR - MBEAK
BENERE - 2EEITFHEEM
BREENEINEAFERZEMS
ERNETEEEN BB MR D
RRUIIA—IBBISMETR © ZBITMETR
ME > BRNBEBESTENFEI7HR
HEE BEMBEREREEES) —
REFZAFEEANEERIARE
BmE  WRSaREEBELMIF
REBOHPESL > MRBEBYH
BREENEIFNEREDFZEE
Bt E T RHEE (BEPRMH
RERBEES) —RBH2RMI
BESHELR o IESh > ZFETBBTA
BENWHE BB aRERRM - &
EEERAN T _F—A—H%
ZREENEBEHERZES - @
PRERMEEFEH - WEFEITL
ENRERNUH R RRIRENE
IR E o
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below (continued):

192

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after January 1, 2021. Since there was no
sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment
being available for use, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for which
it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at January 1, 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

22 B

stEURE B R 128 (48)

BRNAEENGE] EBMBREE
ZMERFER TR () -

(b)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below: (continued)

(d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are applicable
to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from January 1,
2022. As there was no modification or exchange of the
Group’s financial liabilities during the year, the amendment
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

2.2 SFHBEREERIKE ()

BERNAERNEETEBMBRSER
ZWERFEN T X - ()

d) BBUBRSEN_Z-N\EFEZE
TEREZEENEHNEBYBRS
HERF1IH BBV HBREESE
% BRMBRESERE 16T
ZHRAUTE REBGSHERF 41
SEEST - BARAEEZZFETF
BT

BEMBRESERF KSR
TR BAERNTh—IEmN
SlEE BT EMABRZIFRE
AEHLTEARREREEZ
EREFstAZER - 25 &
AESEERABRERAZB
ENREWRZER > HPaE
ERARERARES —HX
R ZER - AEEEE
“ET"F—-RB—HEWNER
ZEE] c ARNAEENEA
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2.3

194

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*®

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current
(the “2020 Amendments”)>*

Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction*

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020

2.3 EFEHERHKRERNEBMEBR

=l
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4
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Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024.
In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4

was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before January 1, 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification
overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16 (i.e., January 1, 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

2.3 EEHERHKRERNEEBMEBR
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below (continued).

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity has

a
th

right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after
e reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the

likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the

liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered

a

settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022

Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability

ar

ising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must

comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of that

liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments

re

quire additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities

arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to
defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on

or after January 1, 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier

application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and

Vi

ce versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the

amendments and whether existing loan agreements may require

re

vision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not

expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than

th
m
in
in

st

eir significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
aterial if, when considered together with other information included
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
fluence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
atements make on the basis of those financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and earlier application is

permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS

Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4

198

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
foridentical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment property and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

200

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

() hascontrol orjoint control over the Group;

(i) hassignificant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) theentity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) oneentityis an associate orjoint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentityis a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group

or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as
held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
19.00%-23.75%

6.33%-9.50%
9.50%-31.67%

Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
Other equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

202

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such property is
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group chooses the cost model to measure all of
its investment property.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of investment properties to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Investment property 2.00%-4.75%
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Pipeline rights

Purchased pipeline rights represent the payments made for the use
right of natural gas and water pipelines, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of five years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

204

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Plant and property

50 years
3years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.
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(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to

each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental

in

come is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms

and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to

th
te
re

e carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
rm on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
cognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

In
Fi
m
in

itial recognition and measurement

nancial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
easured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
come, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on

the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the

Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade

re

ceivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for

which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting

th
m

e effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
easures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial

asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade

re

ceivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for

which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at

th
th

206

e transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
e policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4

208

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

2.4
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 EXTHBEEE (48)

(continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

210

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stagel - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

2.4
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average method and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on receipt
of the goods.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with rights of
return and volume rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration.

(i Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the expected value method is
used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more
than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven
by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are
subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed asincurred.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

2.4 EXGETEEEE (48)

Wz ST (48)

Hithig A

MR AR BENERNE L BB
AR TR TRERAFRANEENRE (1
#EA) B R RIRE WK E AL IR E S/
BEERMFEMNLLERT LRSS -

BNEE
BHEEDRSBNEDT P EENERE
IRFMUERAERI A - HAEENE
SANERARE IR SR RSB EE
FER > RIFLM AR REAERESD
BNEE -  GMBEERETRENG > 5F
BHNEMEEMENESTEER -

BNERE

=07
BNERENELREEEBREE R RE
Al > 1E Mm% P YERR IR N 2 B ERR IR (L
REERE) FHERD - oHNBEBTEAEERRE
1754 (BIRAERA & mE AR TS U IE R RS
EEP) BRESSaUE o

BRI

BREXREEEE % s BERREUR
BICBEENRSI > BERTHERHNGH
MBBRBIRAERT S TR R EAR(CF
BE !

(a) FARIMRAEERFIARARNSHN
TREA S B ERERF o

b FARAMETERBEERANETT S
B1T) HRBOEEMERSUEE
SAFIEN °

(c) EREpATERRIUE] -

ERECENOMATURERE RFHMIE
mREMEE W E RPN > SR
TERUEZEEREMNEMIRBE - -
Hth S XA EER = -



Notes to the Financial Statements

2]

FHER AR EE

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of
the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
for any revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional
decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

Arefund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of equity-settled share award, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
March 29, 2022 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. Further details of the fair value are given in note
30 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in share award
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately

vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date

fa

ir value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an

associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense

is
th
m

recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
e transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the
arket or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

W

here the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum

an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is

re

cognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the

share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

m

W

easured at the date of modification.

here an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had

vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised

fo

rthe award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where

non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the

employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date

th

atitis granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they

were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share

di

220

lution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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(continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change at fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHHEREE (8)

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

to the Financial Statements
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er31,2022 —E_—F+_H=+—H

ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In

the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management

has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

re

w

cognised in the financial statements:

ithholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue withholding taxes
arising from the distributions of dividends by certain subsidiaries
according to the relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is subject

to

judgement on the plan of the distribution of dividends.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade

re

ceivables. The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings of

various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical

credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if

fo

recast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are

expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default

ra

tes, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and

fo

recast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss

experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be

re
in

presentative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
formation about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is

disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group’s inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The Group write-down its inventories based on the estimated
realisable value with reference to the analysis of inventory ageing
together with the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The assessment of the estimated net realisable value requires
management’s estimates and judgement. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories and the write-
down/reversal of write-down of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and has four reportable operating segments as
follows:

(a)  Manufacture and sale of household consumption;

(b)  Manufacture and sale of snack food;

()  Manufacture and sale of ready-to-drink beverage; and

(d)  Others

The “Others” segment comprises the sale of packing materials in
relation to the production of food and beverage, and rental income
from the investment property’s prime office space.

Management monitors the gross profit of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis of the

Group’s assets and liabilities by operating segment is disclosed as it is
not regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker for review.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. EHBEH (F)

Ready-
Year ended 5 Household to-drink
December 31, 2022 +=—B=+—HLFE consumption Snackfood beverage Others Total
REHE FHER ENEREREL Hith it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥Tr AE¥®Tn AER¥ETR AERETR ARETR
Segment revenue (note 5) A EBURES (Mt s)
Sales to external customers HEFINGRE 3,704,740 9,029,759 5,123,163 2,080,781 19,938,443
Other revenue Hitl - - - 18,756 18,756
19,957,199
Segment gross profit S 1,511,641 3,104,098 2,368,997 39,218 7,023,954
Reconciliation: /3
Other income and gains HMUWA R W 1,451,152
Selling and distribution expenses  $4 % KA $4BI (3,536,240)
Administrative expenses THEZ (747,751)
Finance costs BN (127,352)
Profit before tax FRAR TR 4,063,763
Other segment information  Hfth3EpEH
Depreciation and amortisation 788 K54 124,571 167,922 178,617 9,382 480,492
Capital expenditure* EARE%
Allocated E2HE 114,562 242,670 285,820 - 643,052
Unallocated KOE 27,228
Total capital expenditure EVNERE LT 670,280
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. EENEEH ()

Ready-
Year ended HE_ZT”—F Household to-drink
December 31,2021 +ZB=+—HLEE consumption Snack food beverage Others Total
REHE HREE R G Hith #est
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFRT
Segment revenue (note 5) A EBURES (Mt s)
Sales to external customers HEFINPER 3,635,158 9,942,565 6,595,874 2,100,802 22,274,399
Other revenue Hitl s - - - 19,601 19,601
22,294,000
Segment gross profit SEBEF 1,563,263 3,398,934 3,150,399 43,010 8,155,606
Reconciliation: /3
Other income and gains E AU A Btz 1,428,745
Selling and distribution expenses  $4% B 4 45RI 2 (3,884,073)
Administrative expenses THEZ (628,358)
Finance costs EI=§%iN (86,241)
Profit before tax EEINE 4,985,679
Other segment information  Hfth3EpEH
Depreciation and amortisation & R84 137,781 189,437 312,510 9,414 649,142
Capital expenditure* EARE%
Allocated Bk 559,659 379,118 307,224 253 1,246,254
Unallocated KNOE 92,807
Total capital expenditure BAMZEE 1,339,061
Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, right-of- EREZEEREYE  BERRE - £A
use assets, investment property and intangible assets. BEE REMEURBTEEE -
Geographical information HIRE R

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue and operating profit were
generated from the sale of goods in Mainland China and over 90% of the
Group’s non-current assets were located in Mainland China, no
geographical information is presented in accordance with HKFRS 8

Operating Segments.

Information about a major customer

Since no revenue from sales to a single customer of the Group
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue, no major
customer information is presented in accordance with HKFRS 8

Operating Segments.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -~ Ht A Bz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA :
(a) Revenue: (a) WA :
2022 2021
—E-C T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARET T
Revenue from contracts with customers FEHELSHBIW 19,938,443 22,274,399
Revenue from other sources K EBMAIRIN 2
Gross rental income from investment KREYELSHENHEES
property operating leases ON 18,756 19,601
19,957,199 22,294,000
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFR SR
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i) BEKEEF
For the year ended December 31, 2022 BE-_E-_—_S+-BA=1+-—
HILFE
Ready-
Household to-drink
Segments S consumption  Snack food beverage Others Total
REHE MR EDEERE Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR AEBTR AERBTR ARETRT ARETR
Type of goods or services S REESE
Sale of goods HEEY 3,704,740 9,029,759 5,123,163 2,080,781 19,938,443
Timing of revenue recognition Uz FER RS
Goodstransferred atapointintime R E—BFEStEE:E5Y) 3,704,740 9,029,759 5,123,163 2,080,781 19,938,443
For the year ended December 31, 2021 BHEZ_—F+°"HA=+—
HIEFE
Ready-
Household to-drink
Segments NE consumption  Snack food beverage Others Total
XEHE  fHEm  HEER Hth Bst
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Type of goods or services B iRFEEE
Sale of goods HEEY 3,635,158 9,942,565 6,595,374 2100802 22,274399
Timing of revenue recognition  UyZFED SRS
Goods transferred ata pointintime ~ PE—BE2HEZEEY) 3,635,158 9,942,565 6,595,874 200802 22,214399
ENEmEEABRAR | £ 2022 229
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

5.

WA ~ Efthil A B Uzt (48)

Revenue: (continued) (a) WA : (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REER MG (B)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) SEYEER (E)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TERYIE R AR SRR AR
recognised in the current reporting period that were w0 RESBENREHY
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the FFAEHNEE LEBFEHN
reporting period and recognised from performance BTN RIS
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2022 2021
ke T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTT ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included  RIREHRVIEt A G EE
in contract liabilities at the beginning  AYEHESBU A ¢
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEEY 300,941 510,855
(ii)  Performance obligations (i) BHEME
Information about the Group’s performance obligation is BT EERBOTENERE]
summarised below: MmN
Sale of goods HEEBY
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the BHABENRRNE @RS E
food and beverage and payment is generally due within 30 B (IR — RSB 30 E 90
to 90 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers TR - B ENATFIE
with a right of return and volume rebates which give rise to HESHKREERT > 518
variable consideration subject to constraint. PRI TR BT B o
Other income and gains (b) EMUA KU
2022 2021
—g-C TET—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREBTIT
Bank interest income, net RITHR SR A PR 829,386 676,505
Government grants* B AL 546,572 672,319
Income from sales of scrap, net HE B AR A SRR 72,647 75,819
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEKREER
plant and equipment B S 2 255 863
Foreign exchange differences, net PE R EREFZE 1,142 2,961
Others Hith 1,150 278
1,451,152 1,428,745

Government grants include various subsidies received by the Company’s
subsidiaries from relevant government bodies in connection with enterprise
expansion and efficiency enhancement. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies related to these grants.

BT BEAATNNE AT EM
A ST 1 A LY B ) B (D 3R AR SR R S R
REAMNSERM ZETFHMILE
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived after

6. FRIRATEF

AEREFF

BB EBHRIR AN T &N

charging/(crediting): bR (Bt ) U FEIBRIER
2022 2021
=== =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#Tx ARETIT
(a) Cost of sales: SHEM :
Cost of inventories sold FEIHEMA 11,106,145 12,061,018
(b) Employee benefit expenses (including EERIHXZ (BIEEERES
directors’ and chief executive’s TEA S (MizEs)) -
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries TEKHFE 2,135,659 2,219,730
Equity-settled share award expense RS A4E BRI SRR 60,397 -
Pension scheme contributions, social BIRE T EMER - HEEF
welfare and other welfare pra=Kluk =yl 360,464 318,409
2,556,520 2,538,139
(c) Other items: Htigg :
Depreciation of property, plant and M~ BB R EiITEs

equipment (note 13) (FffzE 13) 542,527 738,853
Depreciation of investment property WEMZEITE (MisE14)

(note 14) 9,383 9,413
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EAEEENTE (KI5t 15()

(note 15(a)) 33,665 33,149
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16) m S EE (Y5 16) 550 790
Promotion and advertising expenses HERESES 1,813,733 2,116,738
Research and development costs IEE R AR 75,251 69,292
Foreign exchange differences, net EREREFEE (1,142) (2,961)
Bank interest income, net (note 5(b)) IRITFI S U ABEE (MisE5(b)) (829,386) (676,505)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEKRZREER

plant and equipment RIES1BF 4R 2,079 419
Government grants (note 5(b)) B RG (FsE5(b) (546,572) (672,319)
Impairment of trade receivables (note 19) B SR IERE (M5 19) 3,591 4,351
Write-down of inventories WoREE 1,350 1,780

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and right-of-use assets, and amortisation of intangible assets
are included in “administrative expenses”, “selling and distribution
expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Research and development costs are included in “administrative
expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Hth

ME - BERRE REMEREHESR
EFEURETLEERNF AGHERK
W dpy MTERESZ) ~ THERS
SR e TR ) o

MEm At AGHEBERREMERER@EER
B9 TTERES ) K TEHEE R o
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. FMERT
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows: HEKESEENRERARDTIIEDT
2022 2021
—=E-C =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETTT
Interest on bank loans WITERFE 125,990 84,129
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFE 1,362 2,112
127,352 86,241

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 8. EERESITHASIM

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BiE TR FBASEEI383(1)(a)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the b~ O FRNERAT BBEEEFEER)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies RBIE 2B B EE e T A B MU
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as T
follows:
2022 2021
-z —E—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSBTT AREETIT
Fees e 584 572
Other emoluments: Hihils -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fa. RN EYET 9,202 9,451
Pension scheme contributions and BrREsEER AT BB
social welfare 35 33
9,237 9,484
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 8.

(continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

ESRERTHASHM (&

(a)

BIJEMITES

FAEBNBIFATEFNESN

year were as follows: T
2022 2021
k- Jefnd BT —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBFT AREETFTT
Mr. Cheng Hanchuan (resigned as an Gl il (o —
independent non-executive directors =B+ N\HE&E
on March 28,2022) BIFPITES) 36 143
Mr. Liu Xiaobin EANv S 143 143
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEERL 286 286
Mr. Ng Kong Hing (appointed as an SEmEYSE (NS —F
independent non-executive directors —BZ+N\HEZEA
on March 28, 2022) BIUIFRTES) 119 -
584 572

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

ENEREEARAT | £k 2022
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 8. EEREE{THASHM (8)

(continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEEFRIEHITES
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances Equity-settled contributions
and benefits  share award and social
Fees in kind expense welfare Total
Bk
s ER RiEEE SR
i REWEN ROZEEEZ RUSEHN i H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERETR AR®Tr AR%®TR ARETR ARETE®
2022 —E-C
Executive directors: HETES .
Mr. Xu Shihui St B A e
(Chief executive) (RETHAE) - 2,053 - - 2,053
Ms. Xu Yangyang By - 2,342 - 10 2,352
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang st - 3,846 - 10 3,856
Ms. Huang Jiaying =EELT - 961 - 15 976

- 9,202 - 35 9,237

Non-executive directors:  JEHITES ©

Ms. Xu Biying FEELT - - - - -
Ms. Hu Xiaoling [l 3cx g - - - - -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 8. EERBESITEABIM (48)
(continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERIEBITES (B)
(continued)

Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances  Equity-settled  contributions

and benefits share award and social
Fees in kind expense welfare Total
BIRE
S e tEss SRR
e REYEN BROKEBEZ  RHAEET AR5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETR ARETRT ARBTR ARETR

2021 —2-F
Executive directors: HETES .
Mr. Xu Shihui FiERE

(Chief executive) (BETHAS) - 1,991 - - 1,991
Ms. Xu Yangyang B s e - 2,286 - 9 2,295
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang iRk sE - 3,847 - 9 3,856
Ms. Huang Jiaying BEEZT - 1,327 - 15 1342

- 9,451 - 33 9,484

Non-executive directors:  JEHITESE !
Ms. Xu Biying FEEZ L - - - - -
Ms. Hu Xiaoling HER Tt - - - - -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FATEESRIERESRRERET
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. fIEr a2z Bk o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors
(2021: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2021: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

ABEEHMES
FERAAREHHRECEMSES (CF
——F ZREE)  WENHRBERR
ExXMfaEs e HEF= 8 (CB=—% 1 W)
BEHHERLIFAAREFARBTH
AB > HEPHBEDNT

2022 2021

= T %

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e~ SRR R BYET 6,302 3,906

Equity-settled share award expense RERELE E RN BB 1,771 -
Pension scheme contributions and BrEsEER R g R

social welfare 29 18

8,102 3,924

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HAE T EERNNFEERIFRSITH
AENREHMESHABUMT

Number of employees

ESAE
2022 2021
—E2_— T
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000 B 7T - 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 77T ZE 2,500,000 77T - -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 /A7 E 3,000,000 77T 2 1
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7T E 3,500,000 /& 7T - -
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 7B 7T Z 4,000,000 /& 7T 1 -
3 2

During the year, share award was granted to two non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their services to the
Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in note 30
to the financial statements. The fair value of such award, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HKD2,000,000 (2021: HKD2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

Under the Income Tax Law of the PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries that
are established in the PRC are subject to income tax at a base rate of
25%, except for some subsidiaries which are subject to income tax at a
preferential rate of 15% in different periods between January 1, 2014
and December 31, 2030.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from January 1, 2008 and applies to earnings after December
31, 2007. In addition, under the arrangement between Mainland China
and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of
Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to
Taxes on Income and its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend
income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the
“beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the
PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for based on
the expected dividends to be distributed from these subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future in respect of the profits generated since January 1,
2008.

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

10.

FRiSH
AEBANAEEREARERERLE
WEAREEENRE RS A ARENH
MR ERE 7 TAARFT ISR o

REREREREBMHEREEIERIKRR
Bl xEEBEHNEARSEEREE
MEREEPISH o

EENBREMERTEBEENGHE
R ENIZ165% (T2 Z—F 1 16.5%) B
MEMEHEE > HREBEMNERMARS > 4
EE—EHBARABEREBERI o Z
Bt B A B B 2,000,000/ T (ZE - —£F:
2,000,000 7 7T) F& R 8% i F B9 FR 2 2 8.25%
ZE T 1825%) 0 B MEERIAF A
$216.5% (ZZ——4 1 16.5%) 5 °

RBEPEFERZE > EREMIINAAT
Bt 88 A B) 7B 4% 250 BITR R BN FR 1SR - 1
BoWBABRN R _F—NF—F—
AE"Z=F+_"_A=+—BNFHEHR
42 15% BV B BIR R BUAPR 1SR ©

RB(PREEPSINE) > SRS ERE
KEEBIRRBNPRBEKERLZINE R
ERR B 10%TENR - BRAREEB -
TEENEFE-B-AEEXN > WEARCE
TtE+RB=1+—HBFRELZEF -
ESh - Rt N E B HITHERIN S
FriSEt e S ERMMB L MR ZHE) &
HERER  H—RoEREBNBER
ATREATN MEmiEA A TREH25%
LU ERE AZRERRGERETEA
BRI B U ZBHE 5% I SR EAn TAIAR ©

ENF-B—BUBEERNENRARE
R IR TEHARR S 5HR B o

PRSI EEMEMEDWT !

2022 2021
—g-_ =B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%STT ARET T
Current income tax BPEAPRIZ 1,109,495 1,213,885
Deferred income tax (note 26) IEIEFTSS (B 26) (35,820) 46,569
Total tax charge for the year FRRIESL H48ZE 1,073,675 1,260,454
ENEmEEABRAR | £ 2022 237
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority

10.

FRiSTR (4)
BARBREKS BB A TS L
g} SRS T bl

of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rateis as follows:

R BRIRRNIRNIRMSOHERIDT ¢

2022 2021
k- e TECT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFTT
Profit before tax FRFR AT F 4,063,763 4,985,679
Tax at the statutory tax rate (25%) R TEMEGMBIFRIE (25%) 1,015,941 1,246,420
Effect of tax relief enjoyed by certain subsidiaries &TFMB AT ZHEHEHRIBHNTE (38,051) (69,004)
Tax incentive in relation to deduction of A TSI A RN FEEEE
certain expense (7,515) (7,308)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BB EEEMIRIEES 18 (468) (2,073)
Income not subject to tax* BIEMNTRE B (9,514) (12,730)
Expenses not deductible for tax AeINR RS 1,826 1,706
Unrecognised tax losses RIER RIS 4,463 3,212
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the AEBFEMEA B 9K
distributable profits of the Group’s FTERY 500 FEFNIR AV B2 22
PRC subsidiaries 106,993 100,231
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAREREEREZHHRNRIES H 1,073,675 1,260,454

Income not subject to tax mainly includes the profit from the primary agricultural
product processing, which is exempted from income tax in accordance with the PRC
tax law.

BEMBHBATESFEREPERERE
FR1SIRBVZR B AR = E R I TROEF) ©

11. DIVIDENDS 11. g2
2022 2021
—_=_— BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARHEETIT
Interim — HKDO0.071 (2021 interim: HKD0.087)  HRHE — G iEAZ 0.071 87T
per ordinary share (ZZEZ—4RH :0.08787T) 839,047 992,498
Proposed final and special — HKDO0.106 BEARIAKRER —
(2021 final: HKD0.076) per ordinary share FREEIEN0.106 87T
(ZEZ—F5H 1 0.07687T) 1,284,465 889,792
2,123,512 1,848,696

The proposed final dividend and special dividend for the year are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 13,370,854,630
(2021: 13,694,117,500) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the period,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

12,

BRATEBERESIFEARLE
pEZEF
EREABANESELRES A ZERE
HREAELERENRERE T
13,370,854,630 ( — & — — £
13,694,117,5008%) S @ARBI NI LIBGTE ©

EREEEMNTANDENSRE EiERE
TR A ABGERGHNE o WA EF
BEERmeE st EskREAR
METAENSMAEETEEBREIE - DIAR
RGFEHPTEREREIZENSER
A EERMEEZE TS BRINE T -

BREAKRBEERNNAEDEN TR

2022 2021
k- e BT —fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFR  ARETFT
Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders  B}A B i@ A AEL ST
of the parent 2,990,088 3,725,225
Number of shares
bt 4=
2022 2021
—E-C BT —fF
Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ BT ESRERBFNER
inissue during the year used in the BEITEBRNINETI9EH
basic earnings per share calculation 13,370,854,630 13,694,117,500
Effect of dilution — weighted average number #5882 — ZEGINREFI9EL ©
of ordinary shares:
Equity-settled share award M A A BN 52D 14,637,752 -
13,385,492,382  13,694,117,500
EFEREEBRAR | F£3k 2022 239
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

240

13. 1% - BER

441

Motor Plant and Other Construction
Buildings vehicles  machinery  equipment inprogress Total
tERfE
£ HE R  Hitefs ERIE - H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR ABBTR ARBTR AEBETR AEBTR ARETR
December 31,2022 KZZ==
+ZBA=+-H
At January 1,2022: RZE__#-F—-H:
Cost W 1,997,247 138,893 7,693,921 988,533 608,809 11,427,403
Accumulated depreciation and S MERRE
impairment (784,006) (106,538)  (4,618,330) (608,541) - (6,117,415)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,213,241 32,355 3,075,591 379,992 608,809 5,309,988
At January 1, 2022, net of i — ey Sl S
accumulated depreciation NBRERFHTERAE
and impairment 1,213,241 32,355 3,075,591 379,992 608,809 5,309,988
Additions RE 8,569 5,972 203,197 78,785 512,777 809,300
Depreciation provided FREHENITE
during the year (100,501) (14560)  (316,213)  (111,253) - (542,527)
Transfers 2 34,143 - 189,774 34,480 (258,397) -
Disposals HE (1,126) (27) (2,370) (206) - (3,729)
At December 31,2022, net of RIE-ZF
accumulated depreciation +ZA=+-H>
and impairment MBREHTERAE 1,154,326 23,740 3,149,979 381,798 863,189 5,573,032
At December 31,2022: RIE-ZZF
+ZBA=1+-H:
Cost [ 2,038,833 144,838 8,084,522 1,101,592 863,189 12,232,974
Accumulated depreciation and REHTERRE
impairment (884,507)  (121,098)  (4,934,543)  (719,794) - (6,659,942)
Net carrying amount FEEE 1,154,326 23,740 3,149,979 381,798 863,189 5,573,032
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT(continued)

13. 15 ~ B Rz if (48)

Motor Plant and Other  Construction
Buildings vehicles  machinery  equipment in progress Total
SERE
BT HE K%t Hiftfs  TRIRE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT AREFTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETRT
December 31,2021 RZET—
+ZRA=1-H
At January 1,2021: RZZ2Z—-F—F—H:
Cost R 1,949,398 129,147 1,231,227 895,177 218,623 10,489,572
Accumulated depreciationand  BHFERAEE
impairment (677,641) (92013)  (4,110257)  (498,651) - (5378,562)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,271,757 37,134 3,126,970 396,526 278,623 5,111,010
At January 1,2021, net of RZB-_—F—H—H>
accumulated depreciation HBEHTERRE
andimpairment 1,271,757 37,134 3,126,970 396,526 278,623 5,111,010
Additions NE 17,443 9,070 263,880 80,429 571,496 942318
Depreciation provided FREHRMINE
during the year (106,365) (14,525) (508,073) (109,890) - (738,853)
Transfers R 30,406 2,207 195,754 12,943 (241,310) -
Disposals HE - (1,531) (2,940) (16) - (4,487)
At December 31,2021, net of NZEZ—
accumulated depreciation +ZB=+-H>
and impairment MR EHTERRE 1,213241 32,355 3,075,591 379,992 608,809 5,309,988
At December 31, 2021: PRZET—
+ZA=1+-H:
Cost AR 1,997,247 138,893 7,693,921 988,533 608,809 11,427,403
Accumulated depreciationand  RetFTERAIE
impairment (784,006) (106,538)  (4,618,330) (608,541) - (6,117,415)
Net carrying amount RERE 1,213,241 32,355 3,075,591 379,992 608,809 5,309,988

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had yet to obtain property
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net book
value of RMB55,862,000 (2021: RMB61,270,000). Notwithstanding this,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial
titles to these buildings at the end of the reporting period. As at
December 31, 2022, no property, plant and equipment of the Group’s

was pledged (2021: Nil).

AT THF+ZRA=1+—H > AEEH
FELEREFE S HE A R55862,0007T (=
T —4F . ANR¥61,270,0007T) AE T2
FRERERAERES - REWIL » EER
AREBPRREHPEREEZSIEFTFNER
¥R - RIZITFF+HA=+—H > &
SEEWEERYE BEKREE (T2 —
FIE) o
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14.

242

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. BEYME
2022 2021
—E- =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx ARETIT
At January 1 w—A—H
Cost [D#N 270,882 270,629
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REHTEREE (54,378) (44,965)
Net carrying amount EREFE 216,504 225,664
At January 1, net of accumulated R—B—H > k&
depreciation and impairment WEKHE 216,504 225,664
Addition nNE - 253
Depreciation provided during the year FRFHERITE (9,383) (9,413)
At December 31, net of accumulated B+ZA=+—0H > NK%Est
depreciation and impairment TERBIE 207,121 216,504
At December 31 HW+_B=+—H
Cost [N 270,882 270,882
Accumulated depreciation and impairment EIFEREE (63,761) (54,378)
Net carrying amount BEEEE 207,121 216,504

The Group’s investment property consists of one investment property in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment property consists of a class of asset, which is
commercial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the
property. The Company applies the cost model. As at December 31,
2022, the fair value of the investment property was approximately
RMB275 million which was estimated based on the income approach
model and within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The investment property is leased to third parties under operating

leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant, property and
land used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years,
and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and property generally have lease terms of 3
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing

15. B
REBEAEREA

FAEBMAEBMANZSERE  MER
ITHIREBFABRESN - AEEROES
AURBETRRS0 ERAE LM FRN —FiB N
o BIRBZE L HABNIRR > B
B TTIE » BB R EBAON—RIAR
A3F - AERBEAENERINGERD

the leased assets outside the Group. FAEEEE -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) fEREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the KREBNRFEANEHEEEETRER
movements during the year are as follows: SEWT -
Prepaid
land lease Plant and
payments property Total
FE{TLith
i A= AREN RERNE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  AREFT  ARETFT
As at January 1,2021 W2 _—F—HF—H 641,231 50,194 691,425
Additions RE 41,224 3,869 45,093
Depreciation charge TERY (15,475) (17,674) (33,149)
Revision of a lease term arising KR &R r] sHiH AR 254
from a change in the non- B E B M FEER
cancellable period of a lease - (650) (650)
Exchange adjustment PE R A - 7 7
As at December 31,2021 and RWE_——%F
January 1,2022 +ZB=+—HK&
—E-__#—A—H 666,980 35,746 702,726
Depreciation charge reERY (15,878) (17,787) (33,665)
Exchange adjustment E AR - 288 288
As at December 31, 2022 MRZEZZF
+=-H=+—H 651,102 18,247 669,349

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments
represents the carrying amount of land use rights in Mainland
China. The Group has obtained all the land certificates as at
December 31, 2022 (the Group was in process of applying for the
land certificates with a carrying amount of RMB41,131,100 as at
December 31,2021).

AEEMTEN LIRS FEREEE
PR PO 3t = S PR AR BRI ME o TR
T E+HA=+—H &AEEE
BEME T HEBE (R 2 —

+ZB=+—H  AEBEERFEEE
B4 A R#41,131,10070HI 1-3158R) o
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15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

244

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

15. A8 (&)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

FEBEREABEA ()

(b)

HERE

FREESERAERESHUT

2022 2021
k- Jefnd =BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTT ARETTT
Carrying amount at January 1 RN—EB—HBEEE 36,562 50,222
New leases WHEE - 3,869
Accretion of interest recognised FRBEEIRFE
during the year 1,362 2,112
Payments IR (19,109) (18,977)
Revision of a lease term arising from a RE SRl iR 3 £ R
change in the non-cancellable EEmmIEsTH A
period of a lease - (650)
Exchange adjustment FER A 288 (14)
Carrying amount at December 31 R+ZA=+—BNKEE 19,103 36,562
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENE D 18,626 18,501
Non-current portion IEREIL D 417 18,061
19,103 36,562

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to

the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

as follows:

(c)

HESERNEHE DT RERM R

FKMIFE38 ©

PIBEN BTN T ¢

2022 2021

—E-C =T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSTFr ARETFIT

Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFE 1,362 2,112
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets & EITERRX 33,665 33,149
Total amount recognised in profitorloss — RiBmFEERAVAEERE 35,027 35,261
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15.

LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) consisting of one
commercial property in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB18,756,000 (2021:
RMB19,601,000) (note 5).

At December 31, 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

15. A8 (&)

FEBESEAA

NEBAEELEYE (fF14) » BFLK
EREZH TPEANMN —IBREYE -
MAEKFEEEREL ITRFRERIR
BHEIRTHHSR R ERE RS AE
B e AEEREARIHNESIABA
R#1875600 T (Z B - —F: AR
19,601,0007T) (F5ES) ©

RZE__F#+_A=+—H8 > KE£ER
RAHARIARE L H A P 5T B9 A] B A
ERERERNKRITRASEMZRUT

2022 2021

ot e BT —fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBT T

Within one year —FR 11,704 13,109
After one year but within two years —FBBMER 4,094 6,862
After two years but within three years MEBE=FAN 2,882 4,013
After three years but within four years —FBENFER 3,026 2,882
After four years but within five years WEBEREN - 3,026
21,706 29,892
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16.

246

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Pipeline
Software rights Total
B EiEER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREBTTT ARETTT
December 31,2022 —E&#+-H=+—-H
Cost at January 1, 2022, net of N_E-__F—A—HrmE
accumulated amortisation R R #H 846 306 1,152
Additions during the year FERRE 431 - 431
Amortisation provided during FERHEREY (fiEe)
the year (note 6) (274) (276) (550)
At December 31,2022 W E__F+_A=+—H 1,003 30 1,033
At December 31,2022 W2 "F+"B=+—H:
Cost iz 6,123 4,670 10,793
Accumulated amortisation Rty (5,120) (4,640) (9,760)
Net carrying amount IRENFE 1,003 30 1,033
December 31,2021 B —F+-"A=1+—H
Cost at January 1, 2021, net of RZE-_—F—A—HmE
accumulated amortisation R E st 442 729 1,171
Additions during the year FRRE 771 - 771
Amortisation provided during FEREHRMEH (sEe)
the year (note 6) (367) (423) (790)
At December 31,2021 W_E_—F+_A=+—H 846 306 1,152
At December 31, 2021: RZZ_—F+-RA=+—8:
Cost RS 5,693 4,670 10,363
Accumulated amortisation Rty (4,847) (4,364) (9,211)
Net carrying amount IREFHE 846 306 1,152
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17. PREPAYMENTS

17. FA{IFRIA

2022 2021
—s-= s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARET T
Prepayments for the purchase of property, REYE BMEKEEN
plant and equipment SEINETOE] 214,070 365,228
Prepayments are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. None of the FAMRIERBIKAR AR o LB EN
above assets is either past due or impaired. JEBHASURIE ©
18. INVENTORIES 18. 78
2022 2021
—¥-_ —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Raw materials and packaging materials B R B AR 828,039 884,900
Finished goods DA 234,871 309,357
1,062,910 1,194,257
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19.

248

TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. BREWEIE
2022 2021
—g-- =&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx AEETIT
Trade receivables BaEWIE 1,509,609 1,383,729
Impairment BE (15,833) (12,242)
1,493,776 1,371,487

The credit periods range from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

ERENF0ENRK o« REIREIAKR > 3%
EOHRINRERREERIELNE S ER

FIRRRREC DTN

2022 2021
- T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AEEBTT
Within 90 days 90K A 1,386,819 1,198,171
91to 180 days 91 & 180Kk 74,173 163,122
181 to 365 days 181 F 365Kk 32,784 10,194
1,493,776 1,371,487

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade BB W IEEEEREEIIT ¢

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-C -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETIT
At beginning of year FH) 12,242 7,891
Impairment losses (note 6(c)) THEETE (Mi5E6(c) 3,591 4,351
At end of year FR 15,833 12,242
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BZREWRIE (&)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a PRI B R AR EREETRE DT
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates LUstETEHEERE - BEXLENRAR
are based on ageing for groupings of various customer segments with FUBEEEANNZERE 98485 1RSSR
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighed BTE Z tERMEARNELER « G
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable REANRSHEBAIENERIBEEIE
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, SRR T R R R AT (R TE R S & D]
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. FER o
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TRIXBEBHER > I AEEEZER
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: RIBFAASHNEEREGER
As at December 31, 2022 WIE--fF+-"H=+—H

Within 91 to 181 to

90 days 180 days 365 days Total

90KA 91F 180K 181F 365K “ast
Expected credit loss rate JEEA = EEiEX 0.34% 0.50% 24.54% 1.05%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BRE4E(E (N RHET 7o) 1,391,618 74,543 43,448 1,509,609
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHAE EEHE (ARKETT) 4,799 370 10,664 15,833
As at December 31,2021 A TE T —F+"HA=+—H

Within 91to 181 to

90 days 80 days 365 days Total

90KA 91FE180K 181F 365K MRSt
Expected credit loss rate FEEAE EEEX 0.44% 1.43% 31.24% 0.88%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BRE4E(E (N RHET 7o) 1,203,418 165,486 14,825 1,383,729
Expected credit losses (RMB’'000) FEHA(S EE518 (A RIEFT) 5,247 2,364 4,631 12,242

EFEREEBRAR | F£3k 2022 249



Notes to the Financial Statements

2]

FHER AR EE

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

20.

21.

250

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FA{IERIAR H{thFEWRIA
2022 2021
k- S BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Interest receivables FEYF B 531,177 295,684
Prepayments BEINEE] 411,473 680,515
VAT recoverable (i) FHFIRIEER () 26,759 19,276
Other receivables HihrE = IE 19,767 41,068
Deposits R 810 13,550
989,986 1,050,093
0] The Group’s sales of goods are subject to value added tax (“VAT”) in Mainland China. 0] AEENEREEABMNTPEIRER (EE
Input VAT on purchases can be deducted from output VAT payable. The VAT 1) o IREBAVETRILER T B (I IRIZE
recoverable is the net difference when the deductible input VAT is greater than the R HE o BRI NEEIBER KR IHIE
output VAT. The applicable tax rate for domestic sales of the Group was 13% in 2022 IREMREF > PJWEIEERAFERE - A&
(2021: 13%). BERHENBRARENR S 2F513% (=
T —4F 1 13%) °
Prepayments and other receivables are unsecured and non-interest- T8 7R I8 e EL A FE R I8 19 2 BIR 1R R
bearing. The financial assets included in the above balances relate to 52 o St A LU AEERAV S R E A BT A
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past BB REARIENEBGRIERR - =
due amounts. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance T TERCEC—F+"FB=+—H"
was assessed to be minimal. BB B BT E AR
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT  21. ¥EAFEABEHENERMEE
ORLOSS
2022 2021
- T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESABRNEREE

profit or loss

- 500,000

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss above were
wealth management products with original maturity of less than one
month issued by commercial banks. They were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest and they were held for
trading.
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22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

22. RERRITEFRIREFR

2022 2021
—g-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx ARETIT
Cash at banks and on hand RITREFRE 13,094,365 6,692,709
Bank deposits BITIFERR 3,644,637 9,953,831
16,739,002 16,646,540
Less: Pledged short-term deposits W EIREEATE R (69,058) (831)
Cash and bank balances RE K IR1T4EER 16,669,944 16,645,709
The Group’s cash and bank balances at December 31, 2022 and 2021 KEER S __FN_ZF"_—F+-H

were denominated in the following currencies:

=T —HMNRERRTEHFUTINEE

&
2022 2021
-z —E—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
RMB ARHE 16,262,021 16,194,178
HKD T 383,943 427,305
UsD e 23,980 24,226
16,669,944 16,645,709

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Bank deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and twelve months depending on the cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

Pledged deposits represent the amounts pledged to issue letters of
credit earn interest at interest rates stipulated by the respective financial
institutions.

ARBISEARBAEMER - 24T
HRIE R A3 B9 (NEEIRIRG) K (A5 EE
EERNEEERE)  FEBREEBEE
REGENEEBNRTHARER RS
Hth&s¥ -

RITIRESRBEABRTERNRIZTEER
KEMAR - RITERBH—BE+ZE
ATRE > REAEEMNRTHEMEL X
BRIRIT A RGBS - IRITHERRK
BRERERNEE RF BEERERR
TEACERBIERTT ©

BRERESRAEGEREMERNEER
BEZREBREFRRNAE
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23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. BSEMHHRIE
2022 2021
k- S BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREETTT
Trade payables B o EA IR 974,624 1,028,354
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RIREHAR > R ZBHANEZEMNRIE
period, based on the transaction date, is as follows: RERES DATAOT -
2022 2021
—8-- =BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
Within 90 days 90K 950,907 1,018,249
91 to 365 days 91 FE 365K 22,629 7,871
1to2years 1E 28 869 873
Over 2 years 2EL E 219 1,361
974,624 1,028,354
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled BZRAFIBRE - —MRI30RAEE ©

within 30 days.

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HthFE(ITRIARET &

2022 2021

—Eg-C B —fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT AREETIT

Contract liabilities HHEE 488,478 300,941

Payroll and welfare payables fE TE& K@ F 178,268 304,623
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE  BEKREN

plant and equipment FEFTRRIE 137,824 149,531

Other tax payable HMENRIE 115,595 153,636

Other payables HAthpEI T8 170,562 130,212
Payables for purchase of prepaid land BEEEM T A ENARN

lease payments FEATRRIE 67,150 67,150

Accruals fEstE 417,167 84,290

1,205,044 1,190,383
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24,

25.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

24. HAFEIRIERMESTE A (

-

)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BHaEEB0T
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2022 2021 2021
—E-C BT BT
+=-A=+—H +t=-—B=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx ARETTT ARETF T
Short-term advances received B EF iR
from customers
Sale of goods SHEES 488,478 300,941 510,855

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

HMEARIBEAERR - Tt B RARE

R -

25. RRITEE

2022 2021
—E-C “ET—&
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BIEFIE (%) A ARBTR BEME®) HEE  ARETR
Current ENER
Bankloans —unsecured  $R17E R — EIEH 1-5 2023 5,457,823 1-3 2022 5,272,601
—ZZ= S
Non-current JERNHA
Bankloans —unsecured  {R{TEX — EILAE 2-3 2025 32,000 - - -

—ECRE
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26. {EIEMIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are FRNIRIERIEEBELEENESHTT !
as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAR(E
2022
Withholding
taxes
FEn#
RMB’000
AR®BTT
At January 1,2022 R_ZE-_—F#—H—H (99,496)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FERINFEBRRNIELERIE (IsE10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 30,194
Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2022 A B F+"B=+—HK
EIERIEE [R40EE 69,302
Deferred tax assets IRERIEE E
2022
Losses
available
Unrealised  for offsetting Equity-settled
internalsales  against future share award
profit  taxable profits Accruals expense Others Total
A
FERAR  RRERR eikeEs
HEEN  OENNSHE EHER  RIMEERS Hftt it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥TR AE¥Tm AE®tn AEBTm AEBTr  AEETR
At January 1, 2022 RZB-—#-F-A 11,008 2,371 18,797 - 15,303 47,479
Deferred tax (charged)/credited 7 (MIBRE) /3t A
tothe statementof profitor 1B RMELRIE
loss during the year (note 10~ (Hitz¥ 10) (1,040) 394 (9,078) 15,099 251 5,626
Grossdeferred tax assetsat ~ RZEZZ
December 31,2022 +ZA=1+—-BH
BLREEELE 9,968 2,765 9,719 15,099 15,554 53,105
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

26.

BIEFRTE (48)
BEIRBE G

2021
T
Withholding
taxes
TEHNAR
RMB’000
ARBFT
At January 1,2021 R_E-_—F—HF—H (68,000)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FR BB RINRIVIELRIE (M 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) (31,496)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 R_E_—F+"F=+—HHN
FIETRIA & [EAR %R (99,496)
Deferred tax assets IRIEIRIBE E
2021
B —F
Losses
available
Unrealised for offsetting
internal sales against future
profit  taxable profits Accruals Others Total
RS
FRERAE RRERMR
HE A i TIEE B Hith 85t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARMTE ARMTT  AREFT  ARETR
At January 1,2021 W_&2-_—F—F—H 11,132 4,120 33,250 14,050 62,552
Deferred tax (charged)/credited Ry (B0RRE) /FtA
tothestatement of profitor ~ BERAIEILRIE
loss during the year (note 10)  (PffzE 10) (124) (1,749) (14,453) 1,253 (15,073)
Gross deferred tax assets at i
December 31,2021 +ZA=+—HNK
ERREEERE 11,008 2371 18,797 15303 47479
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of RZE-__F+"B=+—H" > HEXHMA

RMB91,273,000 as at December 31, 2022 (2021: RMB71,289,000), as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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27. DEFERRED INCOME 27. IRIEUWA
2022 2021
k- S BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREETTT
At beginning of year F4) 336,584 358,307
Additions during the year FRRE 23,926 53,822
Released to profit or loss BEBn (28,356) (75,545)
At end of year TR 332,154 336,584
Deferred income is derived from government grants for capital IRIEUR A PR B B S % ~ BUE SR B P
expenditure incurred for property, plant and equipment and prepaid EENBEARLTHRAATHEATWTEN
land lease payments of the Company’s subsidiaries. The amounts are T SR AL o 2 F RIERIE L I
deferred and amortised over the estimated useful lives of the respective EAERAE ER LT E A FEHA DY o i
assets. There are no unfulfilled conditions and contingencies relating to Bl A E MR ERNEHRIARE
these grants. o
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. Bg#A
Shares {7
2022 2021
—ECHF £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBFT ARETT

Authorised: ETE
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50,000,000,000 J& &% 0.01 87T
HKDO0.01 each B A 409,085 409,085
Issued and fully paid: BETRME
13,694,117,500 ordinary shares of 13,694,117,500 B &A% 0.01 87T
HKDO0.01 each SRR 112,712 112,712
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as
follows:

28. g7 (48)

Refn (48)
UTAFATBETRABHNHE

Number of Equivalent
issued and nominal
fully paid value of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares Total
BETR
BEZ(IH EHmE
LBk g e Lidhe et
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETRE
AtJanuary 1,2021 W& —F—HF—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 112,712
At December 31,2021 and N ZE—F+"A=1+—H
January 1,2022 RIZE--“F—H—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 112,712
At December 31, 2022 MZEZZF+ZB=+—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 112,712
RESERVES 29. #E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 179 to 180 of the financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the amount paid by
shareholders for capital injection in excess of its nominal value. Details
of the movements in the share premium are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Treasury shares

On December 2, 2021, the board of directors of the Company approved
the adoption of Share Award Scheme (“the Scheme”) and the share
purchase pursuant to the Scheme. CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited, or
other trustee corporation(s) (“the Trustee”) are appointed by the
Company for the administration of the Scheme from time to time. As of
December 31, 2022, an aggregate of 506,388,500 ordinary shares were
repurchased at a total consideration of approximately
HKD2,113,980,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,779,791,000) for
the purpose of the Scheme.

REFEERBEFE > ~EENMHEDE
REBEH 2N BREFINVEES
180 BB I m BN K o

B inia(E
AEENRMDDEEENRREEEMS
NHEZEBHEEERNE D - RO GER
BERrEHR A REEER -

EERRS

A ZE—FF+ZHEIH ARBEEE
HEERA D 2B 5T 8 (Tat&81)) U IR
SEETHRMEE - BAaXkBELER
REREMZIEARE ((ZEAL) EEA
BABEAEMARZE - WIZ2F
+ZBE=+—8B’ R ULRKED
2,113,980,0007 7t ( B E N A A R &
1,779,791,000 7t ) % [0] & $£ 506,388,500 & &

iEhg o
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29.

258

RESERVES (continued)
Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents capital contributions from
the equity holders of the Company. The additions in prior years
represent the injections of additional paid-in capital by the equity
holders of the subsidiaries to the respective companies. The deductions
in prior years represent the acquisitions of paid-in capital of the
subsidiaries by the Group from the Controlling Shareholders which are
accounted for as distributions to the Controlling Shareholders.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly-
foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the Group are required
to allocate a certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined by their
boards of directors, of their profit after tax in accordance with the PRC
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the statutory reserve fund
(the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF, which is non-distributable except in the event of liquidation
and, subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised
asissued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles of association,
a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a domestic company is required to
appropriate 10% of its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) to the SRF. After the balance of such reserve reaches
50% of the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The SRF can be utilised to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. However, the balance of the SRF must be maintained
ata minimum of 25% of the capital after such usages.

29.
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30.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the executives and other employees of the Group. The Trustee
(Note 29) shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares
held by it as nominee or under the Trust (if any). The Scheme became
effective on December 2, 2021 (the “Effective Date”) and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
the Effective Date.

Pursuant to the rules of the Scheme, 49,906,700 restricted share units
(the “RSUs”) were approved by the Board of the Company and then
granted on March 29, 2022 (the “Grant Date”) with no exercise price
required, which represented approximately 0.36% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at December 31, 2022. The fair value of the
awarded RSUs was calculated based on the market price of the
Company’s shares at the Grant date. The RSUs granted would vest in
one schedule from the service commencement date over two years on
condition that employees remain in service and certain non-market
performance criteria is met. The performance goals are determined by
the Board of Directors. Evaluations are made as of each reporting period
to assess the likelihood of performance criteria being met. Share award
expenses are then adjusted to reflect the revision of original estimates.
The total share award expenses recognised for the year ended
December 31, 2022 was RMB60,397,000 (for the year ended December
31,2021 Nil).

The maximum number of shares issuable under share awards to each
eligible participant in the Scheme is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share awards in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share awards do not confer rights on the holders to vote at
shareholders” meetings.

30.
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B=+—H L EERBHRMDIEER 48
A ANEE60,397000T (E_Z - —4
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30.

31.

260

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 30.

The following share awards were outstanding under the Scheme during
the year:

R (n 3ERh =Y (48)
Py > IR B RITEZ RGBT :

2022 - ——
Weighted
average Grant
Number of Date fair value
shares Per RSU
SEZ R RG
E (IS
RIPEE BHEBABATE
HKD
Bg BT

Outstanding as of January 1, 2022 RZIZ2EZZH—HF—H

CESHN-H - -
Granted during the year FRFF 49,906,700 3.97
Forfeited during the year FRRI - -
Exercised during the year FRITHE - -
Expired during the year FANEH - -
At 31 December W+—_HB=+—H 49,906,700 3.97

The weighted-average remaining contract life for outstanding RSUs
granted under the Scheme was 1.25 years as of December 31, 2022
(2021: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group did not have significant contingent
liabilities (December 31, 2021: Nil).
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 32, &8 RERERMEE
FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEIIEHRERS
During the year, the Group had no non-cash additions to right-of- FR AEETEREAREEEREE
use assets and lease liabilities (2021: RMB3,869,000 and BENIEResRE(CE_—F . 59
RMB3,869,000, respectively). Bl A A R 53,869,000t & A R
3,869,000 7T) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) FMEFEBELNEEES
2022 k- Jofen -2
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
R ERITIERR HEaf’
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBFT AR®SFT
At January 1, 2022 = —— ey = R = | 5,272,601 36,562
Changes from financing cash flows RIERS RS 217,222 (17,747)
Interest expense FEBEE - 1,362
Interest paid classified as operating DIEAKSHESRENBEHHE
cash flows - (1,362)
Exchange adjustment FEREE - 288
At December 31, 2022 A—m——E+—FA=+—H 5,489,823 19,103
2021 I
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
s EIRITER HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT ARETFTT
At January 1,2021 A TET—F—H—H 1,917,681 50,222
Changes from financing cash flows RERSREEE 3,354,920 (16,865)
New leases e - 3,869
Interest expense FERZ - 2,112
Interest paid classified as operating PREARERERENENFE
cash flows - (2,112)
Revision of a lease term arising from a EEEAR AR
change in the non-cancellable EEMEsTIER
period of a lease - (650)
Exchange adjustment ERAE - (14)
At December 31,2021 A B —F+_-_B=+—H 5,272,601 36,562

EMEREBEERAE | FIK 2022

261



Notes to the Financial Statements

FATS R EE

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

32.

33.

34.

35.

262

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

32. REWETRERMNE (B)

(c) THERERHELE

STARSRERMNEERE RN MRER

cash flows is as follows: [
2022 2021
£ BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTIT
Within operating activities KEREFN 1,362 2,112
Within financing activities BB EEIAN 17,747 16,865
19,109 18,977
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. HEHHR
Pledged deposits (Note 22) represent the amounts pledged to issue HiEER (5E22) 542 HE AR mIgE

letters of credit earn interest at interest rates stipulated by the
respective financial institutions.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

ZRIE  MARTRIBREZFIEE o

34, 7KiE

RIREHR > AEBPERFENT :

2022 2021
—E-C B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARETIT
Contracted, but not provided for: BEETAVBE R
Property, plant and equipment Y. BENE 412,975 450,383
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. REAE RS
(a) Transactions with related parties: (a) BARABAHIRS :
(i)  Sales of products (i) HEES
2022 2021
g =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREBTT
Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. BLREFNMAOBEBRAR 123 226

The sales to Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd., which is a
company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders, were
made according to the published prices and conditions
offered to the major customers of the Group.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

BEEREN R EEERA
B (BERBEEHINAF) (F
H K B T IR IR 4 T A S
TBREHESREE R
AT o



Notes to the Financial Statements
P e N

December31,2022 —_&E__#+_H=4+—H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of vehicles

Shanghai Century Chenze Industrial
Co., Ltd.

35. BANKS RS (48)
(a) HARAEAFIIRS @ (B)

(i)

LBtHEREEEXARAT

HESRE
2022 2021
—E_— B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREEFIT
- 971

Shanghai Century Chenze Industrial Co., Ltd., was
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders. The vehicles
were sold at the price mutually agreed after taking into
account the prevailing market price.

Rental expenses

Rental expenses represent expenses from leases of
properties and prepaid land lease payments which are
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements
made between the Group and Fujian Dali Foods Group Co.,
Ltd., which is a company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders.

The operating leases have been recognised as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities in the financial statements, upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases effective from January 1,
2020. The rental expense payment for the year ended
December 31, 2022 was RMB19,178,000 (for the year ended
December 31,2021: RMB19,178,000).

(i)

EMEREBEERAE | FIK 2022

LBt REEXARATMR
ERRERER - £EBIRITH
BERZESHERENERD
ERRAE -

HEFX

HERIEHEMENRS R
AN THBEENR > BAEH
HERENRRERARAT
(—ERERRRERINAR)
FRTE AR UL E o

BT F—F—HiLHRmM
EEUBHREEDNT 65HE
B KERERTERKRESD
AERREEREESE &
EE_"F+"HA=+—H
IFFENHESRIMRABAR
119,178,000 T (BAE — & — —
F+IBE=1+—HIEFE: A
FRi% 19,178,000 7T) ©
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

35. BANKS RS (48)

Transactions with related parties: (continued) (a) ERAEAMIZZE : (8)
(iv) Services purchased (ivy BHBERE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%STT AREBETIT
Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. BLREFNADBIEBRAT 2,091 1,781
Hubei Sky Island Lake IR ERE RSB R AF
Eco&Culture-Tourism Co., Ltd. 57 1,163
2,148 2,944

The purchases from Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. and
Hubei Sky Island Lake Eco&Culture-Tourism Co., Ltd., which
are companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders,

were made according to the published prices and
conditions offered by the associates to their major

MERZRENHLEERRA
B K2 A 30 R U A RE SR B R
AF) (RERRREFRNAR)
TEHBRBRIBEE AMER
REERBRETFEEERR

customers. BOMREFIETT ©
Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) TEBEFEEIEASHN :
Group:
2022 2021
—E-C 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr AREFTT
Salaries i 19,265 17,440
Pension scheme contributions and RS EHERRLEET
social welfare 91 84
Equity-settle share award expense g G B BRIz 2,361 -
21,717 17,524

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(iii) above
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. REEA RS (18)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: (c) HRAEARNREELER
(i)  Trade receivables (i) EBEZE\IE

2022 2021
£ BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%STT ARETIT
Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. BLBRENMLEERRAT 33 29

(ii) Other payables and accruals (i) EMECSHRERESER
2022 2021
-z T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%STT ARETIT
Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. BEEEf| 4B EREAT 193 158

(iii) Prepayments and other receivables (i) FEMRIEREMERRIE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTTT
Shanghai Century Chenze Industrial Rt EREEXERAT

Co., Ltd. 1,097 1,097
(iv) Lease liabilities (ivy fAE&E
2022 2021
—E-C =B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT AREBETIT
Fujian Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd. EEREMNEREREREALT 19,103 36,562
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

36. FHERBTHERTIA
RB SRS ESHTANERENT :

2022 —_=E__
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
YIRS PR AN 5 AR
HERaR
RMB’000
ARETr
Trade receivables B 5 E WIS 1,493,776
Financial assets included in prepayments sEAFEIRRIE R E AU IE
and other receivables NEMEE 551,754
Pledged deposits BRER 69,058
Cash and bank balances RS RIRTTHERR 16,669,944
18,784,532
Financial liabilities ERaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FeiEh s P A5 AR
HERaR
RMB’000
AER%Tr
Trade payables B 5 TIE 974,624
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIBITEER 5,489,823
Lease liabilities HEar’ 19,103
Financial liabilities included in other payables SFAEMENTRIERESE A
and accruals HEREE 422,703
6,874,253
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 36.

2021

Financial assets

pENESNERTA (8)

B
SHEE

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit
or loss
BAFESTA
BT EE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated amortised
as such cost Total
FHH AT AR
EE-Galll i liw e HNEmMEE wast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERETFT ARHEETIT ARETFIT
Trade receivables Y e - 1,371,487 1,371,487
Financial assets included in sHATET IR IE K E LR
prepayments and other HIENSREE
receivables - 350,302 350,302
Financial assets at fair value BAF AT ABTH
through profit or loss TREE 500,000 - 500,000
Pledged deposits HiRES - 831 831
Cash and bank balances BPE R IB1T4ER - 16,645,709 16,645,709
500,000 18,368,329 18,868,329
Financial liabilities ERAaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TR IH AL AT BR
HNEfa B
RMB’000
ARETIT
Trade payables B ERIE 1,028,354
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HREIRTTEE 5,272,601
Lease liabilities HEaE 36,562
Financial liabilities included in other payables SFAEMETRIB R ESE A
and accruals WEmasE 431,183
6,768,700
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37.

268

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

37. EMITANATERATFERR

AEETHMTAKRAERATE (HERE
BERAFESEREERINOT

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE KXFE
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ T 22— BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr AR®Tr AREFR AREBTET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fairvalue @A {EsT ABE
through profit or loss NEMEE - 500,000 - 500,000

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at
December 31, 2022 were assessed to be insignificant.
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. EMTANAFERAFERESR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) ()
Fair value hierarchy NTEELR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TERRPAEFEETHRTIANATEFERE
the Group’s financial instruments: 4o
Assets measured at fair value: BATEAENEE -
At December 31,2021 N _E_—F+_-B=+—H

Fair value measurement using

BRATIEENATESE

Quoted

prices Significant Significant
In active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

ERTIHN  EANHR EXTIEER
wE AR AR

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B5—4R) (B=4R) (B=4R) #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARETRT ARBTRT AREBTT

Financial assets at fairvalue — 3ZAT(EE ABH
through profit or loss MERMEE - 500,000 - 500,000
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38.

270

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, cash
and bank balances and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and nearly all
transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries of the
Company in Mainland China were not subject to significant foreign
currency risk. As at December 31, 2022, the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in HKD were mainly held by the Company and certain
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China which had currencies
other than RMB as their functional currencies. The Company and those
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China also held bank
balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign currency exposures
arise.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

38. ERAEMREEBRRECK (§)

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) ShiEs R (48)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRITPIREHF > AEBESBRADEF
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HKD exchange RAEENEZH B TEXRSIEDEESH)
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before S RE FrE EthESRIFIETE) °
tax and the Group’s equity.
(Decrease)/
Increase/ increase (Decrease)/
(decrease) in profit increase
in HKD rate before tax in equity*
BITEE PR ATEF R
EAR(FE)  GEA) Em GRl),/dgmn*
% RMB’000 RMB’000

A4St AR®BTr AR®BTT

2022 —E-C
If RMB weakens against HKD HARKEHBTEE 5 (100) (89,635)
If RMB strengthens against HKD A REHBTHE (5) 100 89,635
Excluding retained profits REIEREEREF
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in HKD rate before tax in equity*
BITER PRIG A A e
FRHCFED) 18/ CRi) 38 CRi)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ERalee AREETIT ARETIT
2021 —EBC—F
If RMB weakens against HKD A RIS ETIE 5 (30,195) (16,255)
If RMB strengthens against HKD M A RIS ETHE (5) 30,195 16,255
FRERBHF

Excluding retained profits
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38.

272

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38.

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at December
31.

The accounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

EREREEBEREER (8)

(B
FAEEERERTAEELHERENE=
HETRS - FEBNBRBFAAERRE
BEHETEENS R > IRKBEERSE
2R o IEHh > A0 B 5 BE TR AR UGRRIE R
B

B = B RR B 45 B 4R A
TRETNRTZA=+—HREAEEE
ERRNEEERRARNRSEERR
HEZRBEPER CRIFRBRRINIA
HASEEREMER) - DUk FE BRG]
48 e

2IEEHEHEENRIMBEE -

As at December 31, 2022 WZE-=Zf+=-H=+—H
12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
+Z{ERFE 2 HATAH
HAfEE k518 =8k
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
E—R i) (797 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET AR%T7T
Trade receivables B 5 EW R IE - 1,493,776 1,493,776
Financial assets included in stATERIE R EHAM
prepayments and other FEWFRIEN £ R E E
receivables
— Normal —1EE 551,754 - 551,754
Pledged deposits BIRED
— Not yet past due — AR EHR 69,058 - 69,058
Cash and bank balances IR M iR1T AR
— Not yet past due — M RJEHA 16,669,944 - 16,669,944
17,290,756 1,493,776 18,784,532
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

38. ERAEMREEBRRECK (§)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at December 31,2021

&= BB RESB R ()
RZET-F+ZA=1+—H

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
+—EB7E 2 HATEHR
HEERE EE/1E
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
FE—R 5% A8t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT  ARMFT  ARSTR
Trade receivables B S EEIE - 1,371,487 1,371,487
Financial assets included in stATBR IE R Eih
prepayments and other EWERIB S RE E
receivables
— Normal —1Fs 350,302 - 350,302
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEF ABmN
through profit or loss EREE 500,000 - 500,000
Pledged deposits Egiibca
— Not yet past due — B AEHA 831 - 831
Cash and bank balances IRE R IRITHAER
— Not yet past due — A I HR 16,645,709 - 16,645,709
17,496,842 1,371,487 18,868,329

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

WA ERERBEEGHERMENE 7 &
WA S » BREFERENEHIRTE
$RRMIEE 1949 EE o

EMAERREE S ERIFIENEERRE
BE L 2B BREMEE 19IKE -
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38.

274

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its

financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:

38. ERAEMREEBRRECK (§)

HENE & E
FEBACRERADESH AT AEEH
BESERAR  WTAEEHSMTAR
SRMEE (NE 3 ERIE) OEIRA XA
FHCENRESRE o

R|BERR  AEESHEEREGORM
RTRBEIEERIOT

2022 - ——
On Less than 3to 1to
demand 3months 12 months 5 years Total
BEXR Li3fER 3E128R 1E55 &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥Tr AR%®TrR AR®TR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR
Trade payables B o ENTIE - 974,624 - - 974,624
Lease liabilities HESR - 4,718 14,332 505 19,615
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRITED - 668,928 4,836,749 32,493 5,538,170
Financial liabilities included in sTAEMERTIER
other payables and accruals ExERANESREE 217,729 204,974 - - 422,703
217,729 1,853,304 4,851,081 32,998 6,955,112
2021 —EC
Less than 3to 1to
On demand 3months 12 months 5years Total
BEk AOR3ER 33EREAR 1E55 #REt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMFT AREFT ARBTE ARBTR
Trade payables B oA - 1,028,354 - - 1,028,354
Lease liabilities HEaE - 4,746 14,236 19,443 38,425
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s ERITER - - 5,345,860 - 5,345,860
Financial liabilities included in sTAE MBS TIER
other payables and accruals ErERNESRHa s 214,502 216,681 - - 431,183
214502 1,249,781 5,360,096 19,443 6,343,822
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. &FRIEMGEIEBEIEREE (8)

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total liabilities
divided by capital plus total liabilities. Capital represents equity
attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end
of each reporting periods were as follows:

BAEE
FEREAEENTEZEARERFEAER
FEREEE R RENEREER » UX
FEBIUERRREENRAE -

FAEREEREAEBLRBCER L
HRARMEENRREHBEEFLRAE -
ERFUBRBERGHE > 2EEHAR[E
HERNREXN nRRFEEARNE
1THIRAD o A& [E I = E B (E ) S0 8B i N
BEARER -

FEBUBEESRLERERELR  HH R
BEBUERN LEERETE - Bxis
FREERE ABGRED - REREMRN
BEESBLERNT

2022 2021

—5_—_— BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTTT

Total liabilities EfE45E 8,309,376 8,169,430

Equity attributable to owners of the parent BATHE AELELR 18,694,008 19,236,024

Capital and total liabilities BARKNEEEEE 27,003,384 27,405,454

Gearing ratio BESMBLX 30.8% 29.8%
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. ZABMHBIKRR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company UTRARRSHARBRASNATSFHR TR
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: mER
2022 2021
ot et £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBFT ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERBEE

Investment in a subsidiary R B AR E 66,370 1
Total non-current assets EREEELEE 66,370 1
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE

Cash and bank balances B RIRITERR 380,942 605,055
Due from subsidiaries W B ATRIE 1,924,166 -
Other receivables HihpEas 41,657 41
Total current assets BB ELEE 2,346,765 605,096
CURRENT LIABILITIES meEngafE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings HEIRITEE 2,217,823 324,601
Due to subsidiaries BB ARRIE - 218,375
Other payables and accruals HAhERIE R EST & B 19,490 17,131
Total current liabilities VIE) =R GEE 2,237,313 560,107
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 109,452 44,989
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BELAERTE&E 175,822 44,990
Net assets BESFE 175,822 44,990
EQUITY K

Share capital [N 112,712 112,712
Reserves B4 63,110 (67,722)
Total equity KA 175,822 44,990
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. TATIMBEIKRE (B)
COMPANY (continued)
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABHHEEBREZDT -
Exchange
fluctuation Share award Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
EREEMHE ROZERE REiaF imst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETR  ABETRE  ARETR
At January 1,2021 PZE-—F—HF—H (24,803) - 134,721 109,924
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE R4 & NG 1EEE (48,400) - 1,831,956 1,783,556
Final 2020 dividend declared BER-E-ZERBRE - - (968,704) (968,704)
Interim 2021 dividend TET—FhEBEEE - - (992,498) (992,498)
At December 31,2021 and W &2-_—F+_F=1+—H
January 1,2022 R-E-_&5—F—H (73,203) - 5481 (67,722)
Total comprehensive income for the year  ERLRE N IEZE 66,078 - 1,733,196 1,799,274
Final 2021 dividend declared CER_S_—EXRPRE - - (889,792) (889,792)
Interim 2022 dividend TR CERSRE - - (839,047) (839,047)
Equity-settled share award expense MEGEERNEERY - 60,397 - 60,397
At December 31, 2022 R-E--#+-B=+—-H (7,125) 60,397 9,838 63,110
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. IREHABREIR

On January 16, 2023, the Company resolved to grant a total of AZEZ=F—B+RH > AABBERIE
224,330,000 awarded shares to 274 employees and senior management ERMEREOAREE 214 2 BERS R
of the Group (the “Grantee”) pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. The BIEAE (TETE A BHE 224,330,000
224,330,000 awarded shares granted to the Grantees represent REEZENAR 17 o 2 F A& A 89224,330,000 i
approximately 1.638% of the issued share capital of the Company as at REROEERABNR _E_=F—B+/<
January 16, 2023. HBE 1T A4 1.638% ©

The awarded shares granted shall vest in accordance with the relevant B2 HI RIS B RIS HRE B B R (B
vesting conditions (including fulfillment of relevant performance targets ERAABRERANEBESBZE) 5
of the Company and the Grantees). Subject to fulfilment of the vesting B o HRBISEERE  ABATETY
conditions, the Grantees may purchase the awarded shares with a price HERR 2SRRI AR (D350 Bt 2 BIKE
of HKD3.50 per awarded share from the following dates: ERERG

Maximum percentage
of awarded shares

Vesting arrangement Vesting date to vest

1457 B RV AZ R AR {7
Rk FEEH EXBALE
First tranche vesting April 1,2024 50%

of the total number of
awarded shares granted
on January 16,2023

B—HEFEB “Z2CMEMA—H N _E_=F—F+/"H
X H RN AR5 4B EXBY 50%
Second tranche vesting April 1,2025 50%

of the total number of

awarded shares granted

on January 16,2023

FHEEE “ZTRFMNA—H ATEZ=F—HF+/xH
R HBRENRR 5 4R BRI 50%

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no significant event which FRARBEFMBEEN BE_Z2 -
has occurred to the Group after the year ended December 31, 2022. +ZA=+—BIEFER > AEEWmEE
EREFEAREIE
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. ZEMBRER
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the MHERRITRAESEN 2 _=F=A4
board of directors on March 29, 2023. T+ N BRERIERETE o
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Definition

BE

“AGM”
MRRBFENEG ]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

M4BA) 3¢ TE24R

“Audit Committee”
IEZEE8g)

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

EEE

“BVI”
MEBIERE R

“China” or “PRC”

MR

“Company”

/Nl

“Corporate Governance Code”
or “CG Code”
B 3=p=iSlN

“Director(s)”

&%)

“ESG
MESG

» o« » o«

“Group”, “our Group”,

MAREE ] 5 MMy

“H Ksu Or_ uH KDU
= o

“Hong Kong”
r&E)

“Listing Date”

= HER

“Listing Rules”
FErARA

we” or “us”

the annual general meeting of the Company

TRBRRBFRE

the second amended and restated articles of association of the Company which
became effective on May 18, 2022 and as amended from time to time

A B ZFRAR TN\ BEMKERFRHETHNAAB B ZRIEST RETIH
E24AA

the audit committee of the Board
ExgEREEYE

the board of directors of the Company
KABEERE

the British Virgin Islands
REBHERES

the People’s Republic of China excluding for the purpose of this annual report,
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
FEARREME > MAFRMS » FEEEE RPIBHTHEREE

Dali Foods Group Company Limited (2 F| & & £ B A& BR A 5]), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 4, 2014
ENEmERARAE  — KRR _Z—NF+—ANRBTRESEMMIIAY
EHRR AT

Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ERBM iR IOPRE X E S TR

the director(s) of the Company
KABEE

Environmental, Social and Governance

RIE - HEKRER

collectively, the Company and its subsidiaries
AT R EM B A SRS

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BBEEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEEBRITHER

November 20, 2015, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange

“EF-AF+—RAIT+H  ROKBZPA LHEIE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

B3z PRsE 5 L HARA
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Definition

“Memorandum and Articles of Association”

MBI KA R AR

“Model Code”

MRAESTR

“Nomination Committee”
NEREET)

“Prospectus”
HER=E)

“Remuneration Committee”
M EEg)

“RMB”
AR

“Securities Dealing Code”
Ecesa= Sl

“SEQ?
MEs KA EFG])

“Share(s)”
TR&15 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
MgeR )

“Share Award Scheme”

N N

“Share Option Scheme”

MRSt 2

“Stock Exchange”
TB§h 2P )

“0p”

%,

the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company which became effective on May 18, 2022 and as amended from time
to time

A ZE I ZFR BT N\ HEMRERNFETNAABE ZREFT R ESIRAES
AR AR R 4BA

the model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LERAIMN AP LR ET AEBETRSFR S NVIRETR

the nomination committee of the Board

EFXgRVEEE

the prospectus of the Company dated November 10, 2015
rABHA _E—HF+—A+BENBERERE

the remuneration committee of the Board

EXgFMEEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE > hEDEEER

the standard code for directors’ securities dealing adopted by the Company
AT ESETE S ZNRETH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDIE 15 (GEHRIERE)

share(s) in the capital of our Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each

AT RATEREE0.01B7THIKRD

holder(s) of the Shares
EAUEST=DN

the share award scheme adopted by our Company, details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated December 2, 2021
KRBT AD RS HFBRN AR ERAZE - —F1+Z
AZHNASE

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on August 25, 2015 for the
benefit of its employees, Directors, customers and suppliers of our Group,
business or joint venture partners and certain advisors of our Group and their
respective employees, a summary of the principal terms of which is set forth in
“Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information — D. Share Option Scheme” to
the Prospectus

AABMAERREE - EF - FRAKMER EFRSE8BH RAERETE
MEEESENEBENNGN _E—RAFN\B Z+HEHRMNERES > 2
FERROBEHCIBIREIE TSR0 — AT R—RER — D BRI

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HEMARXZFIARAE

per cent

Bt
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